. CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A I R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Board Meeting
Wednesday, November 16th, 2016 at 10:30 p.m. in the Airport Terminal — Lower Level Conference Room

AGENDA
Call to Order
Consent Agenda
1. Minutes — August 2016
2. Financial Statements —September 2016 (Unaudited)
3. Airport Statistics - July 2016, August 2016, September 2016
4. Construction Contract for Phase 1 — Step Replacement Project
5. FAA Grant for Runway/Taxiway Rehabilitation Project

Matters from the Public

All person desiring to make presentations as part of the MATTERS FROM THE PUBLIC section of the
Agenda are requested to advise the administrative office prior to commencement of the meeting to assist the
Chairman in conducting the meeting in an efficient and productive manner; allowing for maximum input.
Speakers are encouraged to limit remarks to five minutes. Additional time may be granted solely at the
discretion of the Chairman unless such presentation is extended by reason of the Authority’s request for
additional information.

Action Items
1. Resolution No. 2016-11: Re-appointment of FY 16 Audit Committee
2. Ratification for Work Orders for Delta Airport Consultants and Talbert & Bright for the Runway
Taxiway Rehabilitation Project (Construction)
3. Approve Amendment to FY16 and FY17 Capital Budgets
4. Ratification for Work Order for Talbert & Bright for Engineering Construction Administration and
Project Inspection Fees for Phase 1 — Step Replacement Project

Information Items
1. Executive Director’s Update .
a. Parking Feasibility Update/Rental Car Agreement Update
b. Personnel Update
c. Construction Update
d. Marketing and Air Service Update
Next Scheduled Meeting: Wednesday, January 18, 10:30 a.m., Airport Lower Level Conference Room

Adjourn



/__. ——
— CHO
EE_&RLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARL_E
A ] R P O =2 T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Board Meeting
Friday, August 12th, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. in the Charlottesville City Hall - Basement Conference Room

MINUTES

Members Present: Donald Long, Maurice Jones, Tom Foley

Members Absent: None

Staff Present: Melinda Crawford, Executive Director; Penny Shifflett, Director of Finance; Bill Pahuta,
Deputy Director; Stirling Williams, Director of Landside Operations; Kristin Birdzell, Executive
Secretary

Others Present: Lisa Robertson, Deputy City Attorney, Jorge Gonzales and Allen McDonald (RS&H)
Call to Order at 3:03pm by Mr. Long

Consent Agenda
1. Minutes — May 2016

Motion to approve 2016 Minutes made by Mr. Foley
Seconded by Mr. Long
Unanimous approval by Board

2. Financial Statements —June 2016 (Unaudited)

a. Mrs. Crawford described the example of a balance sheet created by Airport Staff as requested
by the Board.

b. Mrs. Crawford cited CHO Commission member Brian Campbell’s previous inquiry about not
including depreciation information. She explained that there were items that were not
anticipated as part of the original budget, and, rather, these items were determined during the
annual audit. Mrs. Crawford also brought attention to the topic of bringing on a financial
advisor for the Airport’s investments. Staff will bring this back to the Board for discussion at a
future date.

3. Airport Statistics - June 2016
a. Overall statistics were significantly up
4. Executive Director updated Contract with Amendments

Motion to approve Consent Agenda made by Mr. Jones
Seconded by Mr. Foley
Unanimous approval by Board

Matters from the Public: Jorge Gonzales and Allen McDonald at RS&H shared interest in CHO’s upcoming
parking lot construction projects.

Employee Recognition:

Penny Shifflett and Kevin Sullivan are celebrating 5 years at CHO.

M. Stirling Williams and Mrs. Penny Shifflett have received their C.M. (Certified Member) accreditation
from the AAAE (American Association of Airport Executives)



Action Items:
1. RECOMMENDATION: Award of Custodial and Window Cleaning Services Contact and
Authorization of Resolution No. 2016-6 “Administration of Busy Bee’s 2016 Contract”
a. Busy Bee was deemed the best value for the Airport. The first year cost of custodial services
came in at $151,000. Staff agreed their contract will be evaluated every year in lieu of
automatically increasing their annual fee by 5% which was implied in their original proposal.

Motion to Award of Custodial and Window Cleaning Services Contact and Authorization of Resolution No.
2016-6 “Administration of Busy Bee’s 2016 Contract” made by Mr. Foley

Seconded by Mr. Jones

Unanimous approval by Board

2. RECOMMENDATION: Award of Multi-Trade Technician Contract and Authorization of Resolution
No. 2016-7 “Administration of VIP Customs’ 2016 Service Contract”
a. VIP Customs was the lowest bidder after an RFP process.

Motion to Award of Multi-Trade Technician Contract and Authorization of Resolution No. 2016-7
“Administration of VIP Customs’ 2016 Service Contract” made by Mr. Jones

Seconded by Mr. Foley

Unanimous approval by Board

3. RECOMMENDATION: Resolution No. 2016-8 “CHO’s 2016 Air Service Incentive Program”
a. This is a renewal of the expired program, and it serves as a great marketing tool when seeking
to acquire new or expanded air services

Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2016-8 “CHO’s 2016 Air Service Incentive Program” made by Mr. Foley
Seconded by Mr. Jones
Unanimous approval by Board

4. RECOMMENDATION: Amend Employee Cost Saving Incentive Program
a. At the last Board meeting, it was suggested by legal counsel that Staff takes each instance of
possible employee-suggested revenue increase on a case-by-case basis. Annual reporting of the
program has also been included in the guidelines.

Motion to Amend Employee Cost Saving Incentive Program made by Mr. Foley
Seconded by Mr. Jones
Unanimous approval by Board

5. RECOMMENDATION: Resolution No. 2016-9 “Authorizing the Executive Director to Accept the
Federal Aviation Administration Grant and to Award the Construction Contract for Runway 3-21
Rehabilitation Project”

a. This resolution will allow Mrs. Crawford to accept the grant when it comes in and to execute
the construction contract with Chemung associated with the project.

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2016-9 “Authorizing the Executive Director to Accept the Federal Aviation
Administration Grant and to Award the Construction Contract for Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation Project” made
by Mr. Jones

Seconded by Mr. Foley

Unanimous approval by Board

6. RECOMMENDATION: Resolution No. 2016-10 “Authorizing the Executive Director to Award the
Construction Contract and Approve the Engineering Service Fees for Phase 1 - Step Replacement
Project”



a. This project will be taking place in phases; Phase 1 (the construction for the replacement of two
sets of stairs) has been advertised with Bids closing on September first.

b.  This resolution will allow Mrs. Crawford to award and execute construction and engineering
contracts when bids are received for the project

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2016-10 “Authorizing the Executive Director to Award the Construction
Contract and Approve the Engineering Service Fees for Phase 1 - Step Replacement Project” made by Mr.
Jones

Seconded by Mr. Foley

Unanimous approval by Board

7. RECOMMENDATION: Approve Amendment to FY 2017 Operating Budget
a. At the last meeting, Staff did not have the final numbers concerning the insurance program, the
funding for the grounds-keeping position, and a few smaller items were not in the budget as
presented in May.

Motion to Approve Amendment to FY 2017 Operating Budget made by Mr. Foley
Seconded by Mr. Jones
Unanimous approval by Board

Information Items
1. Discussion of 2016 Audit Committee Membership
a. CHO staff has been notified that an Audit Committee member has retired. Mr. Bill Kehoe,
former CHO Board Chairman, has suggested Craig Lafonowicz to take their place.

Motion to appoint Craig Lafonowicz to serve the balance of term of the retired Audit Committee member
made by Mr. Foley

Seconded by Mr. Jones

Unanimous approval by Board

2. Executive Director’s Update
a. Parking Feasibility Update/Rental Car Agreement Update
a. The rental car agreement is on hold until Staff has more information on the parking
feasibility study
b. Personnel Update
a. Mr. Brantley Ussery left the marketing department leaving that position vacant.
¢. Construction Update
a. The remarking of the Air Carrier Ramp at Gate 5 has been completed and will allow
American Airlines to begin push back operations.
b. Triturator Project- A notice-to-proceed has been issued and the equipment has been
ordered
d. Marketing and Air Service Update
a. Deita is adding another flight to Atlanta

Next Scheduled Meeting: TBD - Airport Lower Level Conference Room

Adjourn at 3:48pm

Approved Minutes- 8/12/2016




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of September 30, 2016



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Profit & Loss Notes
As of September 30, 2016

$10K and 10% change

Revenues:

A. Airline Landing Revenue:-- year-to-date revenue = $170,217 Budgeted = $153,195
This revenue line item is computed by multiplying a landing fee by the weight of the
plane. The Airlines put larger aircraft into the schedule and additional flights have also
been sporadically added to the schedule.

Expenses:

B. Various Expense Line Items:-- The contract with Buzy Bee for janitorial services did not
begin until September 1, 2016. This resulted in decreased expenses in the Terminal cost
center under Janitorial Contract, but also resulted in corresponding increased expenses in
Wages and Overtime in the Parking and Terminal cost centers due to airport staff and
temporary employees picking up the extra duties during the request for proposal process.

Administrative:

C. Wages:-- year-to-date expenses = $138,330 Budgeted = $154,407
Expenses are lower in this category due to a vacancy in the marketing department and the
unfilled intern positions.

D. Professional Fees and Advertising and Promotion Expenses:
Expenses in both of these line items are under budget due to timing of events. There are
anticipated expenses in both of these areas that will occur in the next few months.

Net Income

September year-to-date net income before other income = $100,770.



%80'}- (oLs61°LLS) 00'999'285°LS 06°0LF'0LS'LS %6L°L 12'906'8€$ 00'6£Z°L¥SS  LL'SPL 085S
%EY05- (18'210°23) 00'S06°CLS 61°268°9% %98°€L~  (¢L'vee’9g) 00°5£9°8% 82°00£°2$
%00'0 000 00'v06'S DO'%08'S %000 000 00'896'L 00'896'1
%00°001- (00°000'¥) 00°000't 00'0 %00°00L-  (00°000'%) 00°000'¥ 000
%0000~ (00 000°2) 00°000'2 000 %00°00L-  (00°000'2) 00°000°2 000
%000 §Z'¢l 000 cZel %00°0 A 000 SZ'EL
%82 LS (00'920°1) 00°1L00'2 ve'v26 %/ 128" (26'2¥E) 00°299 £0'BLE
%P0'E 90°609'LLS DO'LOS'LBES  90°0LL'S6ES %P6l §2'599°23 00°L9L°22LS  SZZe9'6ZLY
%00°0 ¥z'0) 00'6/E°}1 82°8/E°L) %000 (80°0) 00°€6L'E Z6'26L'E
%E£a'0 £LT 00'286'9 £Lv86°8 %E00 160 00'v66'C 16'P66°2
%16°LS 98'650'¢ 00'525'GlL 9E'¥85°cZ %94'SZ 91'ece') 00'GLL'S g1'805'0
%000 00'0 00'698'1 00'698'L %00'0 000 00'€Z9 00'€29
%000 00°0 00'vE0‘yL 00'vE0'PE %00°0 000 00'8.9'y 00'8.0'y
%000 00'0 000000 00°000°9 %000 000 00°000'2 00°000°2
%000 05zt 000 05'/L %000 000 000 000
%000 150 00'666'68} LS'666'881 %00°0 10 00'£E'co l'eee'es
%08'¥E £9'826°c 0000t L £9'8Z6°21 %95'€2 06'0SL') 00°008'y 06'086'S
%00'0 150 00'ELE'BLL LSELEBLL %000 610 00'122'68 6l'12/'68
%990 §L°210°2% 00'61L.°89€8  SL'96L°0LES  %p6vE 89°6SFCPS 00°CLE'VELS  89°2E8'19i%
%886 (bo'ozi'®) 00°000'89 00'08Z°19 %98'8LL 00'082'¢cE 00'000°82 00092°18
%806 00'v9L°1 00'S.8'} 00'6£9'E %095 05 00’16 00's29 009951
%LLZE 00'89¢ 00'szL'} 006y} %EL'061L 0o'cHs 00'6.€ 00'880'1
%10°0 661 00°95¥'92 66'LSY' 92 %10°0 L0 00'256'S 1v'2s6's
%99 (e6°£52'9) 0081 LLL Z0'Pob' vl %b1' 62'6/2'2 00'901'28 62'68¢'6E
%00'001- (00°000°8) 00'000'¢ 000 %00'0 000 000 000
%IP'E L (09'v08) 00'05L'c o¥'SFe'E %L 651 or's68') 00°0SZ'1 (1] 20
%LLLE ¥L120'2) 00'S61L'ES1 L9120 %ZE'8 85'05Z'y 00'90' LS 85'SLE'SE
%062~ (05°898°ces) 00°LbS'E288  09°€L9°6613 %bZ 0~ (0g°£89%) 00901828  09°08¢'08Z%
%00°04 00°0¢9 00°006 00°0E8°L %00'G 00'S1 00'00€ 00°GlE
%29'9821 00509 00°051 00'65L'Z %00'0625  00'6Z9'2 00'05 005292
%0€"€~ (os'coL'22$) 00 LBY'22as 05'28€'66.$ %811 (os'eze'es) 00'742°08Z$ 05'06¢'2428
abejusotad jebpng Junowy jebpng WNOoWy ebejueniay 1ebpng unowy yebpng wnoury
1oy (Japury) a-1-A a-1-A 18n0 (Jepun) pousd usung poued juenn)

crel

8102 ‘0t tequieideg ‘Aepud Buipua syluon easy, s Jod

\’\.
O\ P

DN S SSOT W MPOIY

Auouny Hodury eptewad|y sjjinsenoleyD

JusWele)S SSOT pue Woid
$507 pue Wold /102

SBNUIASY |ejol

SNUBADY SAJRNSIUIIPY 1B)0L
Juswiesinguiiey Ye1s v10
awdojaaeq aanag Iy

‘quiley uojowiold 9118

8WiooU)| Snosue{jaasIy

WOodL Jsalajuy

SONUDBASY aApeASIUIMIPY

snusAey [BulULIB] [B10]

weyy/eed adlues vy
asea ysSL

SUOISSHLDD) PIS/Poad
UoISSIoUOD W1V

65897 PUET 1D 18] [BlUay
$904 UogerodsURI] PUNOIL)
"ASY UOISSaDU0T) “OSI
onuaAsy Jen [Buey
Buispieapy

sy suiy

SONUBASY (euUIuLID ]

8nueAey piojLYy (8o
PlewIy souBuSIE 9)E)S
anuaAay [0JU0Y $s800Yy AuUnosg
anueney osIN

sy punole

enusAsy Og4

obemold pvy
anusney Jspeyn

ohusney BuipueT sujny
SINUBADY PIoIMY

anusAay Bupied 18104
aseg Mald

£89 shosue|2asiy
enuanaey Bupped
senuaaay Bupjied

aloz/a/Ll



%EPL veSLL'YS 00°22.2628  ¥2'206'962% %0L°E- (r6°82c°cs) 00'6.2°20L8 90°9¥6°€0LS
%000 0z'L 00'828'cY 0T'628'sY %000 o0 009/2'G1 0v'9.2'GlL
%000 060 00'2e9'LE 06'Zg9'LE %000 0€0 00'¥¥S0L 0L ¥¥G'0L
%00°001- (0o'19) 00°'LS 000 %0000t~  (00°Z1L) 0021 000
%00°0¢€} 0062 00°0¢ 0069 %00°'00% 00'0% 0001 00'0S
%80°El SriLE'y 00°000'cE 15 AR ) %L¥'92 211182 00°000°4 1L Z2 L8l
%00"001L- 00'200'1) 00200t 000 %0000~  (00'¥EE) 00'¥EE 000
%0000}~ (0oo'062'1) 00'062'} 000 %00001-  {00'0th) 00°0cY 000
%00°001~ (00'29) 00°.8 000 %0000L-  (00'62) 00'62 000
%I9S0k} 00'566 00006 005681 %0000k~  (00°00%) 00°00¢ 000
%88'¥S 86'18. 00'sZy'L 86'902' %00'00L-  (00'S/¥) 00'S.¥ 000
%GL'S 6L Ze 00045 61209 %gL'8Z 05°€S 00061 0s'ere
%00°001- (00'¢ss'?) 00'€s5'e 000 %00°00L-  (0O’1S8) 00158 000
%00°00}- (0oo'sc8't) 00'658°L 000 %00°00L-  (00'€19) 00°€L9 000
%S 1 p.- (ov's20'y) 00'82¥'S 09°C0V'L %00°004-  (0D'608°L) 00'608'tL 000
%126 89°/8¢ 00°68L'y 88°Z/S'Y %eECL 69'€20°L 00°G6¢'L 69'8LY'2
%0€ 08 600159 00°'£28'02 60°¢EL'L2 %62 2¢- (€c'1v2'2) 00'L¥6'0 19'669'F
%Li'6Ee AR 00'¥6¥'L 62°990'S %00°004-  (00'96%) 00°86¥ 000
%E0°0 150 00 L¥6°L LS LY6'L %E0'0 10 00'2#9 L1299
%EL'CT- (T aa] 0006 65'89 %eT 02~ (z0'9) 00°0¢ £6'¢T
%91'2¢ €129 008082 £L'0EP'e %EY'S 0.0 00°€€6 0.'c86
%LLs 8z v9) 00'sZL'L 2,090t %85°Z- (g9'6) 00'slc ¥£'59¢
%ET L L~ (s6°821) 00'6¥L'} 20020} %LL'g- {(so'Le) 00°€8g Z6°'15¢
%80°¥2- (06'L) 00'viL 0L'ZeL %01"0¢- (96°81) 00°€9 oY
%E6'V1- {(00°g55'¢) 00°'808'cZ 00°€52'02 %280}~ (00'658) 00'9¢6'2 002202
%b0 - G1's9) 00°882'9 68'222'9 %0.°01- (61'v22) 009602 19°128'L
%bLT 96'9v1L 00'Zs8's 96'866'0 %2E'S e'ssl 00'026'Z 6¥'G20'E
% by Seh 0t'€80'8 000061 0v'c86'6 %%0°0Z5 SZ0vo'e 00'00Z GZOve'y
%Ll (c1'z6e'9) 00°¥St' 6 29'190'98 %L0'9- (18'85+'2) 00°08¥'0F £L1z0'8e
abejusolay ebpng Junowy ja6png junowny abejusoleg 19bpng Jnowy }obpng jnowy
19A0 (18pun) a-1-A a-1L-A JonQ (tepuny) pouad uaung pousd jusung
9102 ‘0€ Jaqwiaidag ‘Aepuid Buipug sypuop 981y sy} Jod
UM EYS S50 P NJoag
Z Ruoyiny podiy s|iewaq|y ajAsanoleyD

JUSWSIE}S SSOT pue Wold
SS07 pue Jold LL0Z

soasuadxg Bupjied jejo)

Bunpred eoiwag 1994 10z
Bunited eowies 198 002
asuadxd 199 peg

Hoyg % IsAQ

junoasiq pied upsio
swIoun

sosuadxg sjoIysp

sqng p senQg

uogeonp3g

oAl

$804 Buissaooly jjoshed
Jojjuog oujes ) @ obeubis - Bupjied
salddng

aoueusyulely “dinbg Buppey
sdajg/syoogauswianed Bupied
aoueUsUIE Spunoss) Buppied
Bunysin 30 Bupped

asuadxg aoueinsy|

181BMA - N

auoydsja) - AN

s Bupied - 9N

aoueInsu| )

Aygesiq uus Buon
"ddng/'suj yyes

Juswisipay

saxe | j|olhed

Bupjied - swpeno

sabepp

sesuodxy bBupjied

9L02/8/11



%LY'9- (9L°8¥5°cze) 000ZL°79¢8  P8'LLISEPES  %880- (19°192°L8) 00°Z6¥'crls  640SZ°ZHLS
%99'L }- (oo'gs1) 008691 00005t %00°00L-  (00°99G) 00°996 000
%08'2¢2- (09'avt's) 00'6LL'SL 0¥'2L9'LL %FO <L or'£€9'e 00'6£0'S ov'zioLL
%1 '29- (20'919) 00052 ¥6'CElL %Zy OF- (oo'oLL) 00052 y6ecl
%00°00 4~ (oovie’l) 00'PLE"L 000 %0000~  (00'8EY) 00°8E¥ 000
%L6'Gh- (95'g25'1) 00'bZE's $0°86.°L %BE Y 0.69% 00'801°L 0L L5}
%C6'G (b2'sov) 00'858°9 o9z'eZst'e %89" /6" (vs 2£2'2) 009822 oF'sy
%00°001 00°220'S 00'2.0's 00'¥¥L 0L %000 00°220's 000 00°2L0'S
%EC 9L (12'992) 00'05¢ 61c8 %00°00L-  (00'0SE) 00°05¢ 000
%00°001- (0ovie'l) 00'¥/6'L 000 %0000~  (00'259) 00859 000
%96'ZE- (¥6'009) 00'¥00'C o0'EYE'L %S1°0€ 657102 00899 65698
%.5'8% 00°058 00°062°L 00°009'2 %000 000 000 000
%00°001- (00'925'2) 009252 000 %Q0°00L-  (00'Zh8) 00'2¥8 000
%00°001~ {o0'6tc'?) 00'6YE'Z 000 %00°00L-  (00°€8) 008l 000
%GL'S 528 00045 51209 %91'82 05°€S 0006} 05'€he
%9/’ 09- (so'ovL'e) 00°86€'clL ¥6°262's %00°00L-  (00'99%'P) 00°99t' 000
%886~ (00'00t'8) 00°'000's8 000099/ %00'8- (00'008°2) 00°000'sE 0000Z'2E
%8 9.~ (05°¢6g'e) 00' V'Y 0S'EF0'L %00°00L-  (0O'6.¥°L) 00'6.¥'L 000
%61 G- £096Z°L) 00'898'2 €615 %G Y 96'SLY 00956 961281
%EL'ST 6¥' 262 00¥91°L 6°95Y'L %B66'ZE 66221 00'88¢ 66'G1S
%CS 62 85 v¥8'S 00'96/'61 85°0¥9'6Z %v9'CL 29'¢0L'L 00Zel'8 29'6£8'6
%EY |4~ cL'ers'l) 00°085'2 89°1€. %00°00t-  (0O°098) 00098 000
%00°0 0£0 00'69L'e 0£'691'8 %000 040 00€z2.'z 0L€2L'T
%/£09 2Z9t 0009 2296 %00°'601 08’1z 0002 08'L¥
%GL 82 GEEBY 00°912°L 626022 %8.L'0 Wy 00245 1¥'945
%02 2~ 6z'81%) 00°002'2 L2 189'9 %ST ¥~ (0s'L01) 00°00%'2 018622
%00'9- (00"g6) 002e9'L 00'¥ES'L %¥0'c- (o5'91) 00'¥¥S Py 128
%6¥ 2 09 0018 20028 %82 0z 0022 2062
%19} 06°1€¢ 00°265'02 05'€26'02 %QS" L 05801 00'998'9 0S'v.6'0
%Z6'8 ezev. 00'16E'8 gz'6¢L'6 %ZL'0- (ge¢) 002642 z9e6.'2
%8¢ G- (co'ors) 00'geeol 86'G8.'6 %SG - (01°£02) 00'vov'y 06'092't
%2E ¢~ {vz'592) 00°000'8 8. veL'L %LeYL- (8v'z65) 00'000't Z5L0v'E
%L0'2 1L'2€8'T 00°9%0'9Z1 LL'82G'8ZL %26'L 90°LE0°L 00°020'¥S 90°250'SS
abejuadiad Jebpng junouwy jobpng junouwy abejusolad 1ebpng junouwlyy jJebpng Junoly
1870 (19pun) a-1-A a-L-A 19AQ (Japun) polad Juaungy pouad jusung
9102 ‘0¢ Jequiaydeg ‘Aeplid Buipul syjuop saiyL suy} 104
aﬂo..:o«&em SSO'T @ jjoag
€ Auoyiny podity spewaqyy ajassnoleyD

JUBWISle)S SSOT pUB Woid
$S07 PUB 1ol /10T

sesuadxg praiLity jejol
Buissasoid punoibjoeg Aunoss
|ofuog ss800y AUNoss
s|eua)el) Jewize

swieal4

soddng Bupuel 444y
uswdinby 444y

"ou ¢ sayddns ZHW 008
sasiosax3 Aouabielug

soueldwos {eyuswiuoiAug
S2UBUSBJUIBIA - SULIOHUN
sqng ¥ seng

uopeanpg

ETCT]

$994 Buissasolid |jolied

IO pue ses) ssuadxg sjolyaa
QoUBUBJUIBI 9]L1S
80UBUBJUIEI SPUNOCIS) Plaly
oueUSUIEIN

aseyaind wawdinbg Julep
Wewdinb3 piey Juep
aoueua)uew Bugybi ployny
asuadxg eoueinsuy)

J81BMA - U0

suoydsjs L - jun

o083 - jun

soueInsu| o)

Angesig una | Buo
"ddng/su| yyeaH
Jawalgay

saxe] |jolheq

PRIy - sWiaAQ

sabepp

sosuadxy ploiy

9102/8/1 4



%00°L- (65°067°6¢$) 00768°C99¢ LrEOF'vZSS %0671 {09'L¥6°6%) 00'950°€02¢  OF'vLLE6LS
%000 () 00°L00'6L1L 68'666'8L1 %000 0 00'£99'6¢ £9'999'6¢
%¥S 0 (00’1 00981 00581 %00°00L-  (00'29) 0029 000
%06 76~ (88'980'2) 006612 rANAN) %04 ¥8- (88°029) 00'€ss r4% AN
%8Y 121 8v'Z0g'y 00's/€'s 8y 2292 %00'00L-  (00'sZL'L) 00'5ZL'L 000
%g0'8l zlgee 00°628'L zrelee %FLZLE 1800/ 00'529 l862¢e')
%00°001- (00-008'L) 00°008°} 000 %00'00L-  (00°009) 00009 000
%28 O (00519 00001°L 00585 %00°00L-  (00°009) 00009 000
%2099 28162 00°0St YA 72 %00'0 (€s'eq) 000 {€g'cs)
%128 (0/'z68'c) 00°0S9'¥ 0£'45. %.6'98~ (oo'gve't) 00°055'L 00202
%00°001- (ooszi') 006212 000 %0000L-  (00°6.€£'D) 00'6/¢€'2 00'0
%Ly 621 00°066 00'692 00°652°L %b9L 0002 00's52 0062
%098 2~ (5g'185) 00° L0V 2 516180 %1 . 85" egpy') 00°29%'2 £9°'810'}
%26 Ly~ (8L'gzg'sl) 00'6¥2'2¢ z8'cze'le %6601 9/°Z8¢'} 00°€85'2L 9/'696'cl
%0000}~ (0o'st2'9) 00'6¥2'9 000 %00'00L-  (00°€80°'2) 00'€80'Z 000
%00'6.- (00'0s54'€) 00°000'G 00052’} %0005~ (0o'osz'1) 0000S'2 00°0SZ'}
%GE'S- (86'c06) 00'LLB'OL Z0°200'0L %8968 89'628'v 00'2£9's 89°99¥'01
%820 8982 00'€8c'0l 20 LLY'0l %¥LGE £6'98Z'L 00°Lov'e £6'/69'%
%96'86- (0o'ges'y) 0088y 00°0S %00004-  (00'965°1L) 00'965') 000
%GL'S §.Ze 00°0.6 A0 %91'82 05°€S 00061 05'c¥Z
%Z8 €S- {09°c/L'y) 008522 0¥'28s'c %00°001-  (00°985'2) 009852 000
%..98- (06'c6t'2) 007282 ol'08g %0000L-  (00°856) 00856 000
%Y 06" (Lo'ce0'y) 00'1Lo¥'Yy 66°LZF %18°¢6- (ce'v6E'L) 00'/8¥'L 5026
%.9'82- (05'886'c) 00'020's 05°'180°L %00°00-  (00°0S0°L) 00°050°} 00'0
%9095~ (86'90%'9) 00'000'S) 20°165'9 %15 98- rsze'y) 00°000's 86’19
%0000}~ {00°009) 00009 000 %0000}~  (00°002) 00002 00°0
%08'61- (89'695) 00°2.8'C 2€°208'T %ET ST 00°10Z'1 00'656 000912
%00°001- (00'008'1L) 00°008°L 000 %00°001-  (00°009) 00°009 000
%LZ LS 16'689'2 00°000'St 16'689'2Z %BE" |- (vc'69) 00°000°S 99'0¢6'Y
%00°0 6€'0 00°'¥£0'e 6E¥EQ'S %000 £Lo 008292 £1'8/9'2
%LE0- {L1'82) 00'000'6 68°1.6'8 %9001~ (z2'109) 00°000'S 82'869'Z
%leze- (92°1€¢£'2) 00'005°0L ¥2eoL'e %0. 0¢- Uvv0')) 00°00S'¢ £5°62Y'
%L9°EZ ¥5°98¢ 00°00t'2 $5'996'2 %99°¢ 6262 00°008 62628
%el L 98'550'E 00°009'6¢ 98'659'2y %9.°G) 9£080'7 0000Z'ct 9¢°082'S1
%bS 0~ (€99 00'809°1 1£'665°) %LLZ rSyl 00925 $5°055
%6, 62- (¥6°9¢) oovelL 90°/8 %22 62- (g6°L1) 00'L¥ 2062
%9Z | 05'6Z¢ 00°zsl'sz 05'2/0'02 %9T | 05801 00858 05'269'e
%788 20528 00°9¢€'6 zZo'LolL'ol %810 {15°9) 00°ZIL'E 6¥'901'c
v1'58% 002ZZ'2) ¥2°20L'CL %050 6592 00'22L's 65°SSL'S
EO'EPS'y 00'000'8 €O'EYS'TL %P0GlL- (29'109) 00°'000'F 8£'965'S
z8'2.6'2) 00°'10£'0S1 zg'es2'col %bS'L LreLs'y 00'625'29 (KAl
abejusolad 1ebipng junowy 1obpng Junowy abejusoted 1obpng Junowy jebpng Junowy
1910 (48pun) a-1-A a-1-A 18AQ (Japun) pousad juaing pouad juaing

9102 ‘0¢ Jequisidag ‘Aepu Bulpu3 syjuo sa1y ] sty io4

JUITA)B)G SSOT] B JJOIJ

Auoyny podiy spewsq)y sjjiAsaRoleyYD

JUSWBE}S SSOT PUB Jyol4
§507 pue Wold 102

sesuadxg jeunua] 830
jeulluis | - 821M19S 1990 002
asuadxg Bumoy

sel|ddng piy Jsi14

fiojeg

08O -swiojiun

Rsjeg oljand - suopun
suofelad - uoneosnp3g
suopessdQ - jaAel |

fiojes oIgnd - faAel |
weysAg Buibed [eulwis |
sqng g seng
suopeounwWwo Aouabilawgy
JoelUOY [euoNUEr
soueUSUIB) YAV
souBUSUIE SPId
SOUBUSIUIBIA OYAH
agueUSUIB}] JOJe[EDST 10)BAS|T
fysjeg oignd - uogeonpy
$0994 Buissesold |j0JAed
sayddng [euoyuer

ey wie|n ebebbeg
souedwo) YHSO
Buidesspue feuiis |
abeubis jeujwia)
uoneauqed Buiplapd
dwejay

aseyaind uswdinb3 “juiey
souBULUIBI

asuadxg esueinsy|
fesodsiq - (80

Islep - N

suoydate] - AN

od3I3 - N

aouBINsSu| 8ji

Anqesiqg una | Huo
“ddngysu| yijes
swaey

soxe] [joJhedq

[BUILLIB | - SWILBAQD

sabepp

sasuadxy jeuturiag

9L0e/e/Ll



%00°0 10'668'810L$ 00'0% 10'668'8L0°LS %000 Zo'ovL'6ees 00'0% Z9'0¥.L'65E%
%08 LS1 2E'€LL 768 92911 19% 856886518  %08'69Z-  15°12E'¥6$ (85°656'¥vE$) 66'19£'65%
%000 000 9Z'611°cs 9zZ'8L1'es %00°0 000 Zro0LLL Z¥'e0L L)
%0L°094 | zeeLLes 00°2668'4 Ze'0LL'001 %60°6LL-  15°MZL'P6 (00'999°Z%) 19659 ¥
%969~ (z¥'396°6013) 00'699'6.S°L$ 8G°00L°69V'1$ %LL’6- {o'vLP'5SS) 00'S06'€65% pL'06¥'8ESS
%98 pi- (L6'P0LLSS) 00'826°95¢%  60'c28'P0ES  %8L'6Z-  (18'288°0¥%) 00280'0vL8  6L'66L°66%
%66Z- (Z1'6452) 00°000'9 g8°02h's %9 | 6~ (zi'szg'l) 000002 88°024
Ybi6L- (geest's) 00°SH6'E rAMAR:] %2E 8e- {ge'c0s) 00°SIE'} rAMAE:
%L BE- ez 21p2'22) 00'¥pZ' LS €106V %Z1'08- {z1'890'02) 00'890'sZ 88'6.6'F
%L SH- (sopLi‘ol) 00'058'se S6'GL0'61 %86°06~ {o0'B85'LL) 00'0s6'L1 00'19¢
Y%l Z2- (sgzel) 00°009 gl Lob %09'1Z- 6Lep) 00002 19°951
%6E"6- (LO'PS) 00'S.S 66°02S %00°0 00'0 000 000
%9L e (g5'5¢€) 00'¥.L Zresy %8L° 19~ (0o112) 00'852 00' LY
%ZLZL 0Z'Le9 00'991'g 0Z'16.'G %BL'EL (o¥'50Z'L) 00°Lb9'L 09' L b
%000 82 000 igel %00°0 00'0 000 00°0
%000 000 00°0 000 %00°0 (00'08) 00°0 (00'08)
%89'6 |~ (00'029) 00051’ 00’0252 %0188~ (ov'sze) 00'050'} 00'sZ}
%01 6p- (8e°2¢0) 00°008'} z9zo/ %0000~  (00°00%) 00°008 000
%¥0'9 96°I6¥'1 00°LIg'v2 96'805'02Z %8102 8.'899') 00'692' 8/°/¢6'6
%670 rAMA 00052z zZ1192'2 %@’ 15" (gg'cge) 0005/ ZLooe
%42'992 96'G14'8 00'6¥2'E 96796 L1 %ELTHL £1'6¥5'L 00°€80°L £2'829'
%EL'S 528 00048 GL'209 %01'8Z 05'€s 00061 05'€he
%8921~ (62" 156) 00'Z8¢'s LOOst' %L 0~ (el'650) 00'v6L' ) ZeveL'L
%LE L 62996 00'9/c'2 BE208'E %60'0 690 00°Z6. 69'26.
%G 0e 9512 00916’ FXA LN %L5°01) L 0gL'e 00246°) Ly'esL'y
%IET 0L'v01 00'86E' 01’205y %29 vE- (¥6'008) 0099t} 90°S0L'}
%EE 0L~ (8Z2L1) 00'9L2°) L2'9ES' L %bl L Oz vy 00'2L8 ¥l 128
%00'001- (00°88) 00'8% 00’0 %0000L-  (00'81) 0061 000
%9601~ (00'892'L) 00 2.8 1L 00'80¢'01 %0601 (oo'czy) 00°658'c 00'9c¥'S
%.6'G (L9'509) 00°SFL'0L 62856 %96'Z |- (v sew) o0'Lge's YA XA
YobE e L~ (coroLe'L) 0012021 SE09%'0L %60°C 1 (le'e20) 002kL's 89'80V'p
%19'88 oF'6v6°) 000022 or'srL'y %¥0'8Z ) £2ZES 00059 rara-l !
%Ly0L- (cg'9z0'01) 00" 2051 slosg'sel %4601~ (eoL82'D) 00'c/1'99 1€°216'95
abejlussiad 1ebphg junowyy jebipng Junowyy abejuadiayg jebpng junolwy Jebipng junowy
J8AQ (lepun) 1-A a-L-A 18r0 (Japuny) pousd Warng poued jeund
8102 ‘0¢ Jequieldeg ‘Kepu Bupuz sypUOW ooy | ol Jod
Juswdlelg S50 % Hjorg
g Apouyiny yodiy sjiewaq)y simsenoleyn

JUBWSIE)S SSOT PUB WOoid
$807 pue Joid 2102

“Howly g ‘oaudeq
"Howy B uopepaidaq

resuadxzy 8410

BWOodU| J8YI0 Yy 'u| JBN
pung sBelano)
Pwoauy BYIO

awoou JBYI0 ‘Jag "ou| JON

sosuadxy Bugessdo @jo)
sesusdxy ‘unupy [e10]
juswdoleas(g a0ineg Jiy
SJuaAg |edadg

suofjowold B Buiseapy
$8844 |BUCISSe)0ld

Buiddiys

sfielsoyg

ssuadxg Bunssaiy

S80N0S8Y UBwinK

s394 eoleg

sead Bupjuey

Bugesiel B UjLIpy-sqng g seng)
esee juswdinbgy

esuedxg 1eindwio)

uoneonp3y

Bunaie g UIWPyY-joARI |
s094 Buissanold jloihey
sesuadxy sayo

soyddng eoWlo

osuadxg aoueInsy|
suoydeje - |iN

aoueInsu| aj

Agesiq uus | Buon
‘ddngysuj yyeeH

juowaigay

saxe] ||olhed

UWpY - SLIMBAQ

safiep

sosuadxg anpensiuiupy

9L0Z/8/11



%SE'SLSl-  (69°6Z1'9Z6$) 92'911'19% (ev'600'5988)  %l0'Z0L  (so'eiv'svzs)  (85'656'ves) (£9'8l5°08Z9)
abejusdiay lebphg junousyy jebpng UNoLY ebejuadiey 1ebpng unowy Jebpng wnouy
1910 (Yepun) -1-A a-1-A 18AQ (Japun) poued Juaung polad juauny
9102 '0g Jequisides ‘Aepud Buipuz syjuop ssiyy ey} 104
JuaWIWIG SSO B IJoaJ
Q

Auoyy yodiry eliewaqly s(inseliopeyn

aLWele)g SSOT pUB oI
8807 pue Walid 102

V 2 Q Jouy (ss07) auj JeN

aloe/e/LlL



No balance sheet available until FY
financials are closed. Fieldwork for FY16
audit is still in progress.



EFEBLE'S

9ISk
0
068%TLT
POL'66H'T
ILE°6E
9L6°E80°T
6L9%6
908" 1L5°T
LIP'EEE
%95
618°181
Z81'$81
£69°69

LL81
1Lt
SETT
PLO'TE
9$L°0T

20T

L18°959%

1HLTrE
0
STL'S06'T
10L 68"
28'0g
018°097°1
9LY°E6
TF'ESOT
180°FIE
%65
FHET8I
689'681

90€%9L

ZE0'T
PRCLT

8LET

816°€E
¥6£°1Z

LT

¥TLTEY

8LESLE
]
166908°C
796°809°T
WEIL
86TLYOT
GRT'6L
19L°0081
SHE66T
%96
1L6°891
996891

8TC88

916%
£1007

ELLT

988°6¢
0FYET

800T

66L°E19°

EOLTOS

[ £ 4
ErBOSH’T
PILLY
POYEER
098°TL
106°3L°T
9LOVSL
%359
09L°LLT
GEY°LLL
£TTER

PEEE
CLORT

1£8°1
BRTHE
5L90T

00T

TISIST'S L9B'BP0'0 LOL'GTOL
rOI'19S  9TT'REY  686°0LY
0 0 0
TTHOFET OLE'LEYT B0H198°T
086°I6F°T SLOGEY'T 00Z'cHL1
06°EL  TI9ES  0Igo8
£OE T SO1THE  £TH696
8L 61879 sLz'e
SYIOOLT L0S™E00T £LE°861T
9ET'98T  T8IG6Z  68L0IE
%69 %EL %Z8FL
L98°561  TEY'EIT  99FIET
000961 698'S1T  1L8°TET
TLU'es  L9g78  BEL'LL
L80°€ g1r'e E90°F
PSTLT 98¥'0r  vzeor
861 ¥SLT LeT'z
P6ETE  bEE'SE  T9S'EE
TIF6T  STOBT  E6v°LT
o1z 1T TioT
Jes X Jepuaje)

TEY088°9

698699
0
TEETPET
ZOE'EFS’]
BETTL
0£6'696
42349
8TO¥EL'T
9ZT'66L
9L
F6L9TL
FLRLET

90L°TL

LEVE
60881

FE0T

FEO'TE
T8ELT

€10t

L6b'88T°L

$L8°L9L
0
TSI
SELTRET
FBO‘ES
198°800°1
79895
LFLP09T
TTE'LOE

8L

LOO'LL

LT
0r0°0T

188°1

S8L°0¢
12707

L L
Ad

SELTOT'S

S8LTIL

0
EFPTTE
Z00°LOT'T
886°90
016°866
T65°16
10¥°906'T
£65°TZE
%18
891°19C
T£9°192
£66°EL

#SL'E
sce'st
£88°1

78L'8T
6+0°07

S10T
Ad

SELTOT'S

Yol

£6L°98L

605°518

%l

E6L°98L

605°6r8

§107 yenBny i ot suonmido wseq DT SPULMEL P S 1A Jo PUs 1& uoiBido possss 1oy eqL

SRLZIL
ul

[RS8 Ve
CO0LOT'E
BREG 09

06866
FAS £

10E°906°T

391797
1EYT9T

P66°EL

rSL'e
czg61

%0
%0

%t

%6
%9
9
%RIT~

%%

Yol

Yol

Yot 1
b

%6T
%81~
%9

0 0
0 TE0'12Y
SLOTST  848°09T
95TPLL  £05'GBI
£95°s [$:184
95499 61679
65€°c 1LE'E
S6IFPT  ESTESEZ
9LEST [fAN 4
2508 %58
$T6'TT LSLET
18972 16142
££9'c PEI'S
PEI FEE
689°1 0821
£21 651
2z 1181
LLFT 0L8°1
9OT LI
QLAd dLAd

L10Z Jea |edasid-sonsnels Bunesedo

%E
%6
%90
%9~
21T
%¥
%E

YoF

%61
¥l

%6T
%81~
%9

SLOEST
95TLT
$99°¢
9599
66£°S
S6TPHC
OLE'RT
%08
STETL
1897
SE9'S

PEl
6891

£

fAtad

LL¥1
S10T
S

0
ZEO'ITT
8LB09T
£05°681
3184
61679
| frad
ESUEST
12r'se
%ER
LEL'ET
161°¢2
vST's

PEE
08Z°1

:118

1181
0LSY

9102
Aing

908 00-ANURART H]QRUOISSATND, )g

» FHUIARY £17) [OIUTY

FON
sy oy L
DT P
L Ty

11 ppe

Ui
iR Ry
PHiBg apodion iy
TN~ ¥4
podumg suogeg png 094

U Swmyaw
SIWAS! AGUBS Y

L0130,] poT pardduy
SIDBUISED,T Paunpiay
SIFUISED S pIunIh]
Suognsd() proL

dypry
HOUDIAR 22120
Sy
deesttry
HOPDIAR 002020
IXOT AR AT
utiaun]
suonmiad) Yosdy

184 0d ¥ 1Y

ITHYNIETY 31TIASILLOTEYHD

OHY

"




SPE'RLE'S

T ISE
0

06EVTLT
POL66ET
1868
9L6'580°]
6LYG6
9051481
LTFEEE
%98
GI8I81

T8I's81

LIS'9S8°S pTTELRY

TPLTHE
¢

CTL'C06'T
104465
8£5°08
018°091°7
9.9°c6
TLYESYY
180°t1¢
2468
FPETRT
689°681

SDEDL

T80T
$8CLT

8LE°1

8I6°SE
FoE'IT

LOBT

8LESLE
0

T66°908T
796°809°T
THEIL
86TLIU°T
681%6L

T9L°L08™
£PEGET
%9
146891
906891
8TT'8Y

96T
£10°0T
ELLT
98R'6E
OP9°ET

8007

GO1'EIST TODIRT'S LOR'RYO0 LEL'GTOL ZEH088'S

€0LT08
0

TTE6THT
£F8 9T
FIT°LD
VETECS
09812
106'8LH'T
ALOFET
%59

09T LLT
SEILLT
frug

FEEE
SLO'8T
1€8°1
$8T°6E
$L9°0C

FOI'I9S  HZT'BED  6RGTDLY
0 0 0

TEFOPST OLE'LEY'T BOFI98T

ORGI6FT SLO'GEYL O0TSHL'T
IBSEL 1196 016%8
EOEII6  §OT'THG  ERV'696
BLT6D 61579 SLTOY
SPI00LT L0S'E00T €LES61T
SEI9BT  CBI'GGT  GRLDTE
Ha59 W%IL %Z8'PL
L98°G6T  ZH9EIT  99F 1T
090°96Y  BO8'SIT  1LSTET
IL168 196778 8ELLL
L8OE 81IE £90°t
YOTLL  ORFOT #TET
¥86°T FEL'T LeTT
POETF  FGEBE  195°€E
TIFET  SIOBI  E6HLY
0z 1 Tz

Jea A Iepuse)

698°699
0

TEETPE'T
TYEEPR'L
8ETTL
056696
To8°5S
STOPETT
9ET'66T
%L
PET9TT
[ 75 ks

LTL

LSPE
608°81
+£0T

reois
ERELT

€10z

LOVSYTL

SLY"LOL
0

TETIE
SELTB6'T
¥BO°ED
198°800%1
79898
LELFO9TT
TTELOE
%81
POTZET
Y6E'BET

LO0LL

LPL
00z

188
SBL0E
#IT0Z

R lira
Ad

SELTOT

$8LTIL
0

TEFHTTE
Z00°L0Y'Z
88699
016866
8518
10¥906'Z
%443
%18
891192
TE9°T9F
S66°EL

PSLE
§28%1

€88°T

Z8L'8T
600

s10Z
Ad

SELTON'S

%01

£16°TLET

¥80'92L'1

221

0ZU'¢8L

SLS 088

STOZ 1endny -prus vy suonessdoe uuBa 7yTT ‘SPUIME] Pas ‘5T {4 J0 Pua 16 nopetado pasead Japlagy ayJ,

S8LTIL
0

A i a3
Z00'LO1T
RG99
016866
Z68°TS
LOF" 9062
SSL°TTE
518
ROL'TOL
1£9°19C
E6G'EL

FSL'E
5T61

£8RT
THL'ST
GFO'OT
92102
Ad

%0
YLSt

%01
Yot~
%ol
%1~

%S

%l

%8

Yl

%IT
%01~
%%zl

9
237

9Z9°9ES
Z69°69€
6’8
LPO'LYT
£b6'01
LEF'SGF
€5E°LS
%08
¥8t'or
T68'Sk
Z16°01

e
106°T

69T
rE'r
3K0°E
9167
aLid

L10Z JeaA |easid-sonspels Bunesado

0
LV

Fl'e9s
LET'LOY
8TL'E
PESLED
565°6
LTER1E
EIF19
%8
LLE'es
AT

11601

98¢
9T

8E€
733
€T
LT
airx4d

%0
%181

%9

%11
%6€
%L
349-

k13

%l

0
we'er

185482
9EHE6T
08Z°¢
162°08
PHs's
662 15T
LLE'BE
%08
6S6°EC
[§ ths x4
LTS

81T
[ATA

o

0Er'T

128
S0z

painy

0
S61°ETl

9E5Z0E
Y6L'L1T
3297
$L6'L
¥TTE
$96'79T
TETTE
%18
0e9'9r
£50°9T
L8L's

47
76T

6Ll

180T
£68°1

9102
pndny

5018 JOtI-SMURART F[GRUCITEIONO,
»INURARY 0 TR

0N

B4Ry 8y ]

D77 'sprasgm]
Py P 8rIAIg poay

1onyf g

U
e gy
sy spodio DD
TION- ¥2
Dachun g SUOBD 10T O

anupaayy Buyang
SIwag Aqupnay

401ond oY peumidiy
SeBaNT | parnyds (g
SUIHUISSV T pArvjdusg
SuRINIQ) (0L

Loy
BORIAY HMEHAD)
o]
Kampppy
UoIRA Y foiaua0y
18 P ABARDD) d1
uBABUNY
suoypaadpy yosoay

1 4 0dd¥1i1y

FTYNIETY ATUASELLOTEVHD

O_._u.,_#,_

o’




EFSIBLE'S

O0I5e
0
06EHTLT
91661
1L8'6E
9£6°680°]
6LY'GE
90§°1L8°Y
LIF'EEE
%08
618181
81681
£69'%60

L8
14%1

SECT

PLOTE
96L°0T

0T

LIB'959°S

TRLTEY
0
STL'S06'E
TOL' 9681
8£6°9¢
018°09T°T
x9'ss
TLE'ESH°T
180'1%
%65
FFETRI
689°581
0EHL

TEOT
PRSLT
8LET
816°CE
¥681T

LT

PITLIRY

BLE'SLE
0

166°908°C
796°809°1
1L
262°LP0"
681°6L
19L°L06°T

EPE'GET

%95
TL6'891
986'891
8TT'88

916
€00

£LLTT

988°6¢
0F9ET

800T

GEI'E19Y

£0L°20¢
0
TTE6TH'T
EPRIOSHT
FIT'LY
YO EER
098°1L
106°8L1°1
9L0'6T

S9

097°LLY
659°LLT
£2T'E8

PEEE
$LO'8T

1¢€8°1

£9T°6E
§L9'0T

6007

TOOIET'S LOR'BPO'D LOLGIOL

POL'IOS  DET'IED  686°0LO
0 0 0
TIVOPST OLE'LSYT BOVTO8'T
086°T6F'T SL0'6E9T 00T'SHL'T
I06°€L 11968 01508
E9ETI6  SOT'TV6  £TH'696
BLIGY  SIETY  SLT'ov
SPITOOL'T L0S°E00'T ELE'E617C
SEI98T  TRIG6T  68LOIE
%50 %L %ER'PL
LOBSET  EGY'EIT  99F°IEZ
090°G6T  BOR'SIT  1LS'TEL
TLI68  49€'TR  8ELLL
LBUE BIT'E €90
YETLT 980T #ZE0E
P86 ¥SL'1 16T
OETP  PEESE  T95°EE
TIEL ST g6rLT
00T 10T TWZ
Jes X Jlepudje)

ZEP 0880

G98'699
0
TEETPG'T
T9€ehsT
8€TTL
0£6'696
798'ss
STOFETT

9T'66T

6L'OZT
PLE'LIT
90L°TL

L5t'E
608°81

rE0'L

FZO'TE
ZRELT

€10z

LGVR8T'L

SLELOL
0
THEUTE
SELTR6'T
PROE9
198°800°1
79896
LPLV09T
TTSLOE
%BL
YOIZET
86€°BET
LO0LL

LTy
orooT

188°1
5808
F1z'z
F10z
Ad

SEL'IOT'S

S8LTIL

0
TEFYTLE
Z00°L01°T
88699
016866
68718
101°906°C

$85°TTE

891°19¢
T€9°19C
£66°CL

PELE
§TE61

£88°1

TBLBT
670°0Z

s10T
Ad

SELTIT'S

Yol

TOO'BELT

PORCEST %0

GELD9L 08L°608

107 wnBny -pun up suopiado anBaq )T SPUAIR], U ‘STX L IO PUR 15 Bopdo paskad Jenep T,

S8LTIL

0
ESHPEES
TO0'LOT'T
A86'99
G866
78818
T0+'906°2
§88%TTE
%18
BO1°192
1€9°192
E66°EL

FELE
SE8'61

6r0'0T

9T
Ad

%0
Y%LLl

%t
%9
%BIT

g
%Ll

%01
“%Ee
Yol

Yol
e

0
G6t'EET
£ET0ER
ZLLTE9S
zis'ol
896'6ET
189°51
LLLOSL
62198
%18
FIFOL
LL8°69
Fe1's1

Ly
59

80¢
110
159
210Z
aLxa

LLOTZ Jea [eosid-sonsyels Bunesodo

0 %0
S01°€9E  o4cE

L88°LS8 %0

L0668 %I~
SEQEL %TEL
BTEIET %l
05§€T %8~

RELS6L %6

L6t°E6 011

%18 25E-
69¢'0L %6
060'9L %38
09%°91 2obE
0Z6 2%8L1
90L°¢ %8¢
095 %09
4444 %EE
TEL'S %61
L1oT
aLAd

0 0
259°68 198'811
LIYEST ELYFEL
080461 £LLMT6T
898°T TIe'F
12676 FEO'FS
8ELY 4434
PLT'SST 129°LLT
QLL'ST +ROTE
HHER %18
0F6'ET T66°6T
SH6°CT are'sT
8T 6pL'S
ozt PEE
8L PEO°
GEL we
699°T 0822
£09°1 6061
SHT 9107

Jaquindey  saqusidag

SHOE JOU-DIAADT B[RBUNIEINIO
w PRURAIY JB) JOFHRY

BpaN

1YY A

DT P
BRI POcy

fanad g

UL
R denapry
pep ainadion) BT
TIO0f ¥0
padutnd SuomO 1ARg O

FUUNNY SUIYADF
SaR FguRAY
HOLMY PIMYT pRuDY
SLDBUISSDS porlag
SSDHUBSIOT pavrasy
SUNRLIAL) PR30 ]
BT
UOHRIA [43U8 0

ipaoy
Loy
UORDIA Y [OAUS0)
LD LRI S

uendgy

suoyvsadp fvsony

4 0 d 41V

FIWYHIATY TASILLOTEVED

OH2 -,




. CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A I R P O R T
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: November 16, 2016
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda Item #4: Construction Contract for Phase 1 — Step
Replacement Project
BACKGROUND: During the August 12, 2016 Board Meeting, the Board passed

Resolution 2016-10 that authorized the Executive Director to act on behalf of the Authority in making
a final decision for award of a construction contract for the Project to the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder, if such bid is within funding available for the Project, and thereafter, the
Executive Director is hereby designated as the Board’s agent for administration of said contract,
including, without limitation: executing the Contract on behalf of the Authority; giving of notices and
approvals required of the Authority, and exercising and enforcing such other rights as may be
authorized or reserved to the Authority within the Contract. Contract modifications shall be made in
accordance with state law and within the Executive Director’s contracting authority. All decisions and
contractual obligations made by the Executive Director on behalf of the Authority shall be
conditioned upon the availability and appropriation of funds by the Authority to support continuing
performance of the Contract.

FOLLOW UP: Linco Inc’s bid in the amount of $441,800 was determined to be the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder. The contract has been executed. Copies of the contract and the
bid tabulation sheet are attached for review.

PRIOR ACTION: August 2016 — Resolution No. 2016-10 “Executive Director
Authorization to Award the Construction Contract and Approve
Engineering Service Fees for Phase 1 - Step Replacement Project”

FUNDING: State:* $ 353,440
Local: $ 88.360
Total: $ 441,800
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  * The state’s portion will be funded from the Airport’s VDOA
entitlements.
ATTACHMENTS: 1) Linco Inc. Contract
2) Bid Tabulation Sheet

PRESENTATION: N/A



SITEWORK PROFESSIONALS

lincoinc@comcast.net

(540) 249-0370
7 Ellis Lane
Waynesboro, VA 22980
Fax: 540-949-0653
SwAM #652169
DBE #1443

September 21, 2016

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
100 Bowen Loop Suite 200

Charlottesville, VA 22911

Attn: Penny Shifflett, C. M.

Re: Stair Replacement Long-Term Parking Lot

Enclosed, please find executed contract, insurance certificate and payment &
performance bonds for this project.

Per our conversation at the pre-construction meeting, the notice to proceed date will be
established after receipt of delivery dates for the pre-cast concrete treads.

Sincerely,
Lo

juy Wright
Project Manager



CHARLOTTESVILLE- ALBEMARLE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

This Contract for construction, entered into this ' )'P‘) day of September, 2016, is entered
into by and between the Charlottesville Albematle Airport Authority, a political subdivision of the
Commonwealth of Virginia (“Authority”) and Linco, Inc. (“Contractor”). This contract is the result
of a competitive sealed bidding procurement procedure, referenced as Authority IFB No. 2016-100
(8/5/2016)(“IFB”).

RECITALS:
Whereas, the Authority intends to construct the Project and is engaging the Contractor to
petform labot, materials, equipment, supervision and other construction services for the Project; and

Whereas, the Authority’s engagement of the Contractor is based upon the Contractor’s
representations to the Authority that it: (i} is experienced in the type of construction services for
which the Authority is engaging the Contractor to perform; (ii) is authorized and licensed to perform
the construction services required for the Project; (iii) is qualified, willing and able to perform the
construction services required for the Project; (iv) has the expertise and ability to provide
construction services which will meet the Authority’s objectives and requirements set forth within
the IFB; (v) Contractor has reviewed and familiatized itself with the Contract Documents and agrees
to be bound by the terms, conditions and tequirements therein specified, and (vi) by signing and
submitting its Bid to the Authority, Contractor has made these representations.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION ONE: ADDRESSES AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

The names and addresses of the contacts for the Authority and the Contractor are as set forth
following below. Unless otherwise directed by the Authority or the Contractor within a notice given
to the other, notices required by the Contract Documents shall be given to their respective Contact
persons, at the address(es) herein provided.

Authority: Authority’s Project Representative:
Contact:  Bill Pahuta Contact: Chuck Boldt
E-mail:  bpahuta@gocho.com E-mail: cboldt@gocho.com

Address: 100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Chatlottesville, VA 22911
Telephone: (434) 973-8342 (o) Telephone: (434) 270-1579 ()
Telephone: (434) 981-7944 (c)
Fax: (434) 974-7476

Contractor:
Contact: Linco. ITre
E-mail fincoine@comausl net
Address: T Etlis Lan e
Waynesboro VA 229€0
Telephone: G40~ 449- 0> 70
Fax: Equ- 949 OG5 ==
Contractot’s Virginia License #: _2'10 509596%
FEIN/SSN: B4 -17306 3 2

SCCID# Q%2574 )




SECTION TWO: PROJECT IDENFICATION INFORMATION
a. Project Title: Stair Replacement for Long Term Patking Lot
b. Project Code- PC #: 2016-100 Stair Replacement LT Lot

The Project Code (PC #) indicated above is required to be shown for identification purposes on all
project—related material, correspondence and documents including but not limited to: Notices,
Requests for Payment, Submittals, Requests For Information, minutes of meetings, cotrespondence,
Schedule of Values and Certificate For Payment, test reports, and related materials.

SECTION THREE: PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK

The Contractor shall furnish, or cause to be furnished, and shall pay for out of the Contract Price: all
project management, supervision, financing, goods, products, materials, equipment, systems, labot,
services, permits, licenses, machinery, tools, watet, heat, utilities, transportation and other items or
services necessary for completion of the scope of work described within the Contract Documents.

SECTION FOUR: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The “Contract Documents” that set forth the terms, conditions, requirements of the patties’
agreement and the scope of work for the Project to be performed by the Contractor, are
(collectively) all of the following, each of which is incorporated by reference as if set forth herein
verbatim:
This Contract for Construction;
The IFB (all terms, conditions, requirements and instructions)
Contractor’s Bid (all bid forms and materials submitted therewith)
Post Bid Modification(s), if any, listed below:

N/A
Left blank intentionally
Project construction plans (sometimes referred to as “drawings”) dated July 21, 2016
Project Specifications dated July 21, 2016

o o

o

0@

SETION FIVE: TIME FOR COMPLETION

The Contractor shall commence performance of the scope of Work for the Project on the date
specified within a Notice to Proceed (“Commencement Date™) given by the Authority following
execution of this Contract for construction by both parties.

The Contractot shall achieve Substantial Completion of its scope of Work for the Project, within 90
calendar days inclusive of normal weather conditions after the Commencement Date.

The Contractor shall achieve Final Completion of its scope of Work for the Project, within 30 days
after the date of Substantial Completion.

SECTION SIX: COMPENSATION TO THE CONTRACTOR
The Owner agrees to pay and the Contractor agtees to accept, as full and complete payment for the
timely and completed performance of the scope of wotk for the Project, the following

compensation:
Base Bid: $435,500; Alternate 1: $2,000; Alternate 2: $4,300



SECTION EIGHT: AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS

The Contractor represents and warrants that certifies that, if it is organized as a stock or non-stock
corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership, or if it is registered as a
registered limited liability partnership, then it is authorized to transact business in the
Commonwealth of Virginia as a domestic or foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or
Title 50 of the Code of Virginia, or as otherwise required by law. The Contractor shall not allow its
existence to lapse, and shall not cause or allow any certificate of authority or registration to transact
business in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of the
Contract. The Authority shall have the right to void this Contract if the Contractor, for any reason,
loses the legal authotization ot status allowing it to transact business within the Commonwealth.

SECTION SEVEN: PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR

Schedule of Values

The Contractor’s Schedule of Values shall be used as the basis for Contractor’s application(s) for
partial payments. The Schedule of Values shall be submitted to and approved by the Authority prior
to the Contractor’s application for any partial payment, and an approved Schedule of Values shall be
a condition precedent to the Authotity’s obligation to accept or make payment of any such
application. The Schedule of Values shall include a detailed itemization of the basic items included in
the scope of Work for the Project, listed as may be applicable to this particular Project unless a unit
price has been established for any item(s). The Schedule of Values shall aggregate the total
compensation specified in the Bid; shall be supported by such data as Authority may require in order
to substantiate its correctness; and shall include proper shares of ovethead and profit. The Schedule
of Values shall be updated whenever a Change Order modifies the Contractor’s compensation, or
modifies the scope of work for the Project; the updated Schedule of Values shall be submitted to the
Authority prior to the Contractor’s next application for partial payment following the date of any
such Change Order. The Authority’s receipt of an updated Schedule of Values shall be a condition
precedent to the Authority’s obligation to accept or make payment of any applications for payment
following a Change Order.

Partial (Progress) Payments

Upon receipt from the Contractor of a propetly and accurately documented application for partial
payment, on form(s) provided by the Authority, the Authority will make monthly progress payments
to the Contractor on the basis of its percentage of completion of its scope of Work for the Project,
based on the most recently updated Schedule of Values, as of the last day of the month preceding
the application for payment. The Authority shall be entitled to verify the correctness of the matters
set forth within the application, prior to any payment becoming due and payable to Contractor
therefor.

Contractot’s applications for payment shall contain a cost breakout showing the amount of money
due to all subcontractors and suppliers performing work or providing materials/ equipment during
the preceding calendar month. The Authority shall not make monthly partial payments to
Contractor, when any application demonstrates that the value of work completed during the
preceding calendar month does not exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or when the time
remaining for performance of the contract is less than 45 days, with the exception of final payment.
After the time allowed for completion of the Project is reached, and unless an extension of time is
allowed, the Authority may withhold partial payments. All amounts withheld may be included in the
final payment.



Partial payment will not be made based on the value of any materials or equipment before they have
been incorporated into the Project in a permanent manner, except as otherwise specified below. The
delivered cost of equipment and non-perishable materials delivered at the work site, or in a certified
bonded, adequately insured warehouse approved by the Authority, and tested for adequacy, may be
included in an application for partial payment. Conttactor shall furnish written evidence satisfactory
to the Authority that the Contractor is the unconditional owner of such material or equipment, and
that such material and equipment will be utilized within the Project.

All materials, equipment, and work covered by partial payments made to the Contractor shall
become the sole property of the Authority. This provision shall not be construed as relieving the
Contractor from the sole responsibility for the safety and protection of all materials, equipment and
work upon which payments have been made, or the restoration or replacement of any damaged or
stolen work, equipment or property, or as a waiver of the right of the Authority to require the
fulfillment of all terms, conditions, requirements and instructions within the Contract Documents.

Retainage

Under the provisions of Virginia Code Sec. 2.2-4333 and 2.2-4334 the Contractor shall be paid at
least ninety-five percent (95%) of an earned sum, when payment is due, with no mote than five
petcent (5%) being retained to ensure faithful performance of the contract. All amounts withheld as
retainage may be included in the final payment. Any subcontract that provides for similar progress
payments shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph.

The Authority shall not be required to escrow any retainage, unless the Contractor, as part of its Bid,
notified the Authority that it desired an escrow procedure and then, within fifteen calendar days
after the notice executes and submits to the Authority an escrow form provided by the Authority. If
the escrow agreement form is not submitted within the fifteen-day period, the Contractor shall
forfeit his rights to the use of the escrow account procedure.

Withholding of Payment

The Authority may decline to approve, or because of subsequent discovered evidence may nullify or
adjust, in whole or in part, any previously approved application for payment, to such extent as may
be necessary to protect the Authority from loss on account of:

* Failure to obtain approval of a project schedule, failure to maintain an update project
schedule, or failure to maintain a level of performance within ten percent (10%) of
an approved project schedule

¢ Defective work not remedied

e Claims filed, notices of claim received, or othet reasonable evidence indicating
probable filing of claims against the Contractor

® Failure of Contractor to make payments to subcontractors or suppliers of labor,
materials or equipment

¢ Authority’s reasonable doubt that the remaining scope of work for the Project can be
completed for the balance then remaining unpaid

® Damage to another contractor

* Failure to provide as-built drawings and specifications when required by the Contract
Document

® Unsatsfactory prosecution or performance of work by the Contractor ot its
subcontractots



® Reasonable indication that the Project will not be completed within the time required
by the Contract Documents
® Failure to maintain as-built drawings and specifications up to date on a monthly basis

Final Payment

Final payment, which will include amounts withheld as retainage, less any amounts due to or claimed
by the Authority, shall not become due until the Contractor delivers to the Authortity (i) a record set
of as-built drawings and specifications (ii) an affidavit of payment of claims, on a form provided by
the Authority, and (iii) an invoice or other application for payment, on a form provided by the
Authority, provided to the Authority within 60 days of the date of Final Completion certified by the
Authority pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Documents. Within thirty (30) days after the
date on which all of these conditions have been satisfied, final payment will be made to the
Contractor. All prior estimates and payments, including those relating to Extra Work, shall be
subject to cotrection or adjustment by the final payment.

Release of Claims

The acceptance by the Contractor of any partial payment, and of final payment, shall operate as a
release of claims to the Authority for all claims and liability to the Contractor for work done or
furnished in connection with the Project. No certification for payment issued by the Authority’s
Representative, and no payment whatsoever, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by
the Authority, shall constitute an acceptance of any equipment or materials not in accordance with
the terms, conditions, requirements and instructions of the Contract Documents, not shall it
operate to relieve the Contractor of responsibility for faulty materials, equipment or wotkmanship,
or operate to release the Contractor or its surety from any obligation under the Contact or the
Performance ot Payment Bonds.

SECTION EIGHT: TERMINATION

Bankruptcy or Insolvency of Contractor

The Authority may terminate this contract for construction, upon written notice to the Contractor,
if the Contractor is adjudged as bankrupt, makes a general assipnment for the benefit of its creditors,
or if a receiver is appointed on account of Contractor’s insolvency.

Material breach by Contractor

The Authority may terminate this contract for construction, if the Contractotr commits a material
breach of its obligations under the Contract Documents (“material default”). Without limiting any
other circumstances in which Contractot’s acts or omissions may constitute a material breach of its
obligations, each of the following shall be deemed a material default by Contractor: (i) Contractor’s
refusal or repeated failure, except in cases for which an extension of time is provide, to supply
enough properly skilled workmen or proper materials and equipment; (i) Conttactor’s failure to
make prompt payment to subcontractors or suppliers of labor, materials or equipment; (i)
Contractor’s disregard of federal, state or Authority laws, ordinances or regulations. The effective
date of termination shall be no sooner than ten (10) days following written notice of default given by
the Authority to the Contractor.

Rights and obligations after termination

Upon termination of the Contract the Authority shall take possession of the work site and of all
plant, materials, tools, equipment and other property thereon. The Authority may take any actin
necessary to ensure the cleanup of the site, protection of serviceable materials, removal of hazatrds,



and other action necessary to leave a safe wotksite. Authority may finish the work by whatever
method the Authority deems expedient, and in that event, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive
any further payment. If the expense of finishing the work, including compensation for additional
managerial, administrative or construction services shall exceed the unpaid balance of the terminated
contract, then upon demand the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Authority, together with
any other expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with termination of the contract and
completion of the work.

In the event of a termination tesulting from a material breach by the Contractor, the Contractor and
its surety shall be liable for all legal fees incurred by the Authority in connection with such
termination and any subsequent litigation. Such liability for legal fees shall be in addition to any and
all damages for the breach that may be allowed to the Authority. Should it be judicially determined
that the Authority improperly terminated this contract for construction for cause, then such
termination shall be deemed to be a termination for the convenience of the Authority.

Termination by Authority for Convenience

The Authority may terminate this contract for construction, in whole or in part, at any time, and
without cause, upon giving the Contractor notice of such termination. Upon receipt of a notice of
such termination for cause, the Contractor shall immediately cease work and temove from the site
all labor forces and such of the Contractor’s materials as the Authority elects not to purchase ot to
assume. The Contractor shall take such steps as Authority may require to assign to the Authority the
Contractor’s interest in subcontracts and purchase orders designated by the Authority. After all such
steps have been taken to the Authority’s satisfaction, the Contractor shall receive, as full and final
compensation for termination and assignment the following: (i) all amounts otherwise due to the
Contractor from the Authority as of the termination date; (1) amounts due to the Contractor for
work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents subsequent to the latest approved
Schedule of Values and approved application for payment, through the date of termination; (iif)
reasonable compensation for the actual cost of demobilization incurred by the Contractor as a direct
result of such termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation or damages for lost
profits, or for any other type of contractual compensation or damages other than those provided by
the preceding sentence. Upon payment of the foregoing, Authority shall have no further obligations
to Contractor of any nature. In no event shall termination for convenience of the Authority
terminate the obligations of the Contractor’s surety on its payment and performance bonds.

SECTION NINE: MISCELLANEQUS

No waiver of rights

No failure on the part of the Authority to enforce any of the terms, conditions, requirements or
instructions set forth in the Contract Documents shall be construed as, or deemed to be, a waiver of
the right to enforce such terms, conditions, requirements or instructions. No waiver by the
Authotity of any default or failure to perform by the Contractor shall be construed as or deemed to
be a waiver of any other or subsequent default or failure to petform. The acceptance or payment of
any rentals, fees, charges or invoices by the Authority, or the performance by the Authority of its
contractual obligations shall not operate as, be construed as, or be deemed any waiver of the
Authority of any legal or contractual rights or remedies.

Severability



In the event that any term, condition, requirement or instruction within the Contract Documents, or
the application thereof to any person or citcumstances, shall be held by court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Contract Documents,
and the application of such provisions to any person or circumstances other than those to which it
has been held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby.

Headings

Section, article and paragraph headings contained within the Contract Documents have been
inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and they in no way define, limit, expand,
or describe the scope or intent of any term, condition, requirement or instruction.

Binding Effect
The terms, conditions, requirements and instructions within the Contract Documents shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the patties to this agreement and their heirs, successors, and assigns.

Entire Agreement

The terms, conditions, requirements and instructions set forth within the Contract Documents
represent the entire agreement between the Authority and the Contractor, and there are no other
agreements or undetstandings between them as to the Project described herein, which have not been
set forth within the Contract Documents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto on the day and year written below have executed
this agreement in three (3) counterparts, each of which shall, without proof or accountancy for the
other counterpatts, be deemed on original thereof. Each party represents and warrants that the
individuals whose signatures are affixed following below have been duly and legally authorized to
execute this agreement on behalf of such party, and agrees to be bound hereby.

For the CONTRACTQR? ) For the AUTHORITY: Lo

By: _ry/.\ X ft} (J@\V By: /) Lok //{cuf’ﬂjfj/féf/é
l (Signasure in ink) (date) (signature in ink) 7 (date)

Print Name: g C.Cid son Print Name:

Tide: V ice. Pres.Jont Executive Director

Date: }/‘7"// (2 Date: qp—uﬁ(p

APPROVLD AS TO FORM:
Othice of the Ch}]ﬂoncsyn}c City Attorney

~— ) -
By s "“*‘#“-"Lfgﬁ“'

[ isa Robé:tson, Esg.
Chiel Deputy City Altlormey



BID OPENING CHECKLIST

Stair Replacement

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Charlottesville, VA

Talbert & Bright Project No.
Bid Opening Date: 9/1/2016
Bid Opening Time: 2:00 p.m.
Bid Opening Location: Airport Terminal Conference Room
SEALED PROPOSAL COMPLETE BID
CONTRACTOR BID \ SIGNATURE | BID BOND FORM BID ALTERNATE1 |ALTERNATE 2

Lo v o v v Pyas aes [$22000 T8 4,200

Bids Opened By: -, m;l\

Witnesses




e’ CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A 1l R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: November 16, 2016

SUBJECT: Consent Agenda Item #5 —Acceptance of FAA Grant for “Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
Project”

BACKGROUND: In accordance with the Board approved Airport Capital Improvement Plan, an
application in the amount of $13,224,145 was submitted to the FAA in July 2016 requesting funding
for the Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation Project. During the August 12, 2016 Board Meeting, the Board

passed Resolution 2016-9 that authorized the Executive Director to act on behalf of the Authority to

accept the FAA Grant when offered.

FOLLOW UP: On September 20, 2016, the FAA extended a grant offer in the amount of
$11,872,035 for “Rehabilitate Runway (Construction): Rehabilitate Taxiway (Construction). The
grant was executed and awarded and will fund the construction costs and engineering fees for the
project.

PRIOR ACTION: August 2016 — Resolution No. 2016-9 “Executive Director Authorization to
Accept FAA Grant and Award of Construction Contract to Chemung for
Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation Project”

FUNDING: FAA $ 11,872,035
State: $ 1,319,115
Local: $ 0
Total: $13.191.150

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  The FAA grant will allow for the FAA to provide 90% funding of the
project, with the remaining 10% being funded with 8% from the Virginia Department of Aviation
(VDOA) entitlement funds. It should be noted that the Authority anticipates using its VDOA
entitlements to fund its 2% portion of the project as allowed by VDOA.

ATTACHMENTS: 1) FAA Grant AIP No: 3-15-0004-046-2016

PRESENTATION: N/A



3-51-0004-046-2016

Q

U.S. Department

of Transportation
Federal Aviation
Administration

GRANT AGREEMENT

PART | — OFFER

Date of Offer SEP 20 20% -
Airport/Planning Area Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport o
AIP Grant Number 3-51-0004-046-2016
DUNS Number 097417349 -

TO:  Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority -

{herein called the “Sponsor”)

FROM: The United States of America (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein called the
”FAA”)

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated August 26, 2016, for a grant
of Federa! funds for a project at or associated with the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport, which is included

as part of this Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project for the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport (herein called the
“Project”) consisting of the following:

Rehabilitate Runway {Construction); Rehabilitate Taxiway (Construction)

which is more fully described in the Project Application.

NOW THEREFORE, According to the applicable provisions of the former Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as
amended and recodified, 49 U.S.C. 40101, et seq., and the former Airport and Airway Improvement Act of
1982 (AAIA}, as amended and recodified, 49 U.5.C, 47101, et seq., (herein the AAIA grant statute is
referred to as “the Act”), the representations contained in the Project Application, and in consideration of
(a) the Sponsor’s adoption and ratification of the Grant Assurances dated March 2014, and the Sponsor’s
acceptance of this Offer, and (b} the benefits to accrue to the United States and the public from the
accomplishment of the Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances and conditions as herein

provided,

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY
OFFERS AND AGREES to pay ninety (90) percent of the alowable costs incurred accomplishing the Project

as the United States share of the Project.
This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:



4-

3-51-0004-046-2016

CONDITIONS

Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is
$11,872,035.

The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximum obligation for the purpose of establishing
allowable amounts for any future grant amendment, which may increase the foregoing maximum
obligation of the United States under the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 47108(b):

$0 for planning

$11,872,035 for airport development or noise program implementation

S0 for land acquisition. 2 _

The source of this Grant may include funding from the Small Airport Fund.

Perlod of Performance. The period of performance begins on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this
agreement. Unless explicitly stated otherwise in an amendment from the FAA, the end date of the project
period of performance is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of formal grant acceptance by the
Sponsor.

The Sponsor may only charge allowable costs for obligations incurred prior to the end date of the period of
performance (2 CFR § 200.309). Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the sponsor must submit
all project closeout documentation and liquidate (pay off) all obligations incurred under this award no
later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance (2 CFR § 200.343).

The period of performance end date does not relieve or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that
extend beyond the closeout of a grant agreement.

Ineligible or Unallowable Costs. The Sponsor must not include any costs in the project that the FAA has
determined to be ineligible or unallowable.

Indirect Costs — Sponsor. Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the indirect cost
rate identified in the project application and as accepted by the FAA to allowable costs for Sponsor direct
salaries and wages.

Determining the Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States’ share of allowable project costs will be
made in accordance with the regulations, policies and procedures of the Secretary. Final determination of
the United States’ share will be based upon the final audit of the total amount of allowable project costs
and settlement will be made for any upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of costs.

Completing the Project Without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor must carry
out and complete the project without undue delays and in accordance with this agreement, and the
regulations, policies and procedures of the Secretary. The Sponsor also agrees to comply with the
assurances which are part of this agreement.

Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend or withdraw
this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.

Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any part of
the costs of the project unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before September 21,
2016, or such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.

Improper Use of Federal Funds. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to
recover Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or
misused in any other manner in any project upon which Federal funds have been expended. For the
purposes of this grant agreement, the term “Federal funds” means funds however used or dispersed by
the Sponsor that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement. The Sponsor
must obtain the approval of the Secretary as to any determination of the amount of the Federal share of

2




10

11,

12,

13.

3-51-0004-046-2016

such funds. The Sponsor must return the recovered Federal share, including funds recovered by
settiement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must furnish to the Secretary, upon
request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of the amount of the Federal share or
to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements or
other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share
require advance approval by the Secretary.

United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for damage
to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or be incident to, compliance with this grant
agreement.

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration And Universal Identifier.

A. Reguirement for System for Award Management (SAM): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from this
requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its information in the
SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this grant, or receives the final
payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review and update the information at least
annually after the initial registration and more frequently if required by changes in information or
another award term. Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM
website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).

B. Requirement for Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Numbers

1. The Sponsor must notify potential subrecipient that it cannot receive a contract unless it has
provided its DUNS number to the Sponsor. A subrecipient means a consultant, contractor, or
other entity that enters into an agreement with the Sponsor to provide services or other work to
further this project, and is accountable to the Sponsor for the use of the Federal funds provided by
the agreement, which may be provided through any legal agreement, including a contract.

2. The Sponsor may not make an award to a subrecipient unless the subrecipient has provided its
DUNS number to the Sponsor.

3. Data Universal Numbering System: DUNS number means the nine-digit number established and
assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. (D & B) to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNS number
may be obtained from D & B by telephone {currently 866—-705-5771) or on the web {currently at
http://fedzov.dnb.com/webform).

Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each payment
request under this agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for Department of
Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.

Informal Letter Amendment of AIP Projects. If, during the life of the project, the FAA determines that the
maximum grant obligation of the United States exceeds the expected needs of the Sponsor by $25,000 or
five percent (5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter amendment to the Sponsor unilaterally

reducing the maximum obligation.

The FAA can also issue a letter to the Sponsor increasing the maximum obligation if there is an overrun in
the total actual eligible and allowable project costs to cover the amount of the overrun provided it will not
exceed the statutory limitations for grant amendments. The FAA's authority to increase the maximum
obligation does not apply to the “planning” component of condition No. 1.

The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to correct
administrative errors or to delete work items if the FAA finds it advantageous and in the best interests of

the United States.
An informal letter amendment has the same force and effect as a formal grant amendment.



14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

3-51-0004-046-2016

Air and Water Quality. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable air and water quality
standards for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA may
suspend, cancel, or terminate this grant.

Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all federal financial
reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate reports.

Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit
any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel or manufactured products produced outside the
United States to be used for any project for which funds are provided under this grant. The Sponsor will
include a provision implementing Buy American in every contract.

Maximum Obligation Increase For Primary Airports. in accordance with 49 U.5.C. § 47108(b), as
amended, the maximum obligation of the United States, as stated in Condition No. 1 of this Grant Offer:

A. May not be increased for a planning project;
B. May be increased by not more than 15 percent for development projects;

C. May be increased by not more than 15 percent for land project.

Audits for Public Sponsors. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit in accordance with 2 CFR Part
200. The Sponsor must submit the Single Audit reporting package to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse on
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. The
Sponsor must also provide one copy of the completed 2 CFR Part 200 audit to the Airports District Office.

Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR § 180.200,
the Sponsor must:

A. Verify the non-federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:

1. Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the System for Award
Management (SAM) to determine if non-federal entity is excluded or dis qualified; or

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-federal entity attesting they are not excluded or
disqualified from participating; or

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting individual or firm are not excluded
or disqualified from participating.
B. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier transactions
{e.g. Sub-contracts).
C. Immediately disclose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor: (1) learns they have entered into a covered
transaction with an ineligible entity or (2) suspends or debars a contractor, person, or entity.
Ban on Texting While Driving.

A. Inaccordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, December 30, 2009,
the Sponsor is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers
including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for, or on behalf
of, the Federal government, including work relating to a grant or subgrant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such

ds:
4



3-51-0004-046-2016

a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to
prohibit text messaging while driving; and
b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated
with texting while driving.
B. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all subgrants,
contracts and subcontracts.

21. Trafficking in Persons.

22.

23.

24,

A. Prohibitions: The prohibitions against trafficking in persons (Prohibitions) apply to any entity other
than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or foreign public entity. This includes private Sponsors,
public Sponsor employees, subrecipients of private or public Sponsors (private entity). Prohibitions
include:

1. Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the agreement is
in effect;

2. Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the agreement is in effect; or

3. Using forced labor in the performance of the agreement, including subcontracts or subagreements
under the agreement.

B. Inaddition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FAA, Section 106(g) of the
Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), allows the FAA to
unilaterally terminate this agreement, without penalty, if a private entity —

1. Is determined to have violated the Prohibitions; or

2. Has an employee who the FAA determines has violated the Prohibitions through conduct that is
either:

a. Associated with performance under this agreement; or
Imputed to the Sponsor or subrecipient using 2 CFR part 180, “OMB Guidelines to
Agencies on Government wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as
implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR part 1200.

AIP Funded Work Included in a PFC Application:

Within 90 days of acceptance of this award, Sponsor must submit to the Federal Aviation Administration
an amendment to any approved Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) application that contains an approved PFC
project also covered under this grant award. The alrport sponsor may not make any expenditure under
this award untit project work addressed under this award is removed from an approved PFC application by
amendment.

Exhibit “A” Property Map. The Exhibit “A” Property Map dated August 16, 2010, is incorporated herein by
reference or is submitted with the project application and made part of this grant agreement.

Pavement Maintenance Management Program. The Sponsor agrees that it will implement an effective
airport pavement maintenance management program as required by Grant Assurance Pavement
Preventive Management. The Sponsor agrees that it will use the program for the useful life of any
pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with federal financial assistance at the airport. The
Sponsor further agrees that the program will

A. Follow FAA Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, “Guidelines and Procedures for Maintenance of Airport
Pavements,” for specific guidelines and procedures for maintaining airport pavements, establishing an




3-51-0004-046-2016

effective maintenance program, specific types of distress and its probable cause, inspection guidelines,
and recommended methods of repair;

B. Detail the procedures to be followed to assure that proper pavement maintenance, both preventive
and repair, is performed;

C. Include a Pavement Inventory, Inspection Schedule, Record Keeping, Information Retrieval, and
Reference, meeting the following requirements:

1. Pavement Inventory. The following must be depicted in an appropriate form and level of detail:

a. Location of all runways, taxiways, and aprons;

b. Dimensions;

¢. Type of pavement, and;

d. Year of construction or most recent major rehabilitation.
Inspection Schedule.

a. Detailed Inspection. A detalled inspection must be performed at least once a year. If a history
of recorded pavement deterioration is available, i.e., Pavement Condition Index (PCi) survey as
set forth in the Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, the frequency of inspections may be extended to
three years.

b. Drive-By Inspection. A drive-by inspection must be performed a minimum of once per month
to detect unexpected changes in the pavement condition. For drive-by inspections, the date of
inspection and any maintenance performed must be recorded.

Record Keeping. Complete information on the findings of all detailed inspections and on the
maintenance performed must be recorded and kept on file for a minimum of five years. The type
of distress, location, and remedial action, scheduled or performed, must be documented. The
minimum information is:

a. Inspection date;

b. Location;

c. Distress types; and

d. Maintenance scheduled or performed.

Information Retrieval System. The Sponsor must be able to retrieve the information and records
produced by the pavement survey to provide a report to the FAA as may be required.

25. Project which Contain Paving Work in Excess of $500,000. The Sponsor agrees to:

A. Furnish a construction management program to the FAA prior to the start of construction which
details the measures and procedures to be used to comply with the quality control provisions of the
construction contract, including, but not limited to, all quality control provisions and tests required by
the Federal specifications. The program must include as a minimum:

1.

The name of the person representing the Sponsor who has overall responsibility for contract
administration for the project and the authority to take necessary actions to comply with the
contract.

Names of testing laboratories and consulting engineer firms with quality control responsibilities on
the project, together with a description of the services to be provided.



3-51-0004-046-2016

3. Procedures for determining that the testing laborataories meet the requirements of the American
Soclety of Testing and Materials standards on laboratory evaluation referenced in the contract
specifications (D 3666, C 1077).

4. Qualifications of engineering supervision and construction inspection personnel.

5. Alisting of all tests required by the contract specifications, including the type and frequency of
tests to be taken, the method of sampling, the applicable test standard, and the acceptance
criteria or toferances permitted for each type of test.

6. Procedures for ensuring that the tests are taken in accordance with the program, that they are
documented daily, and that the proper corrective actions, where necessary, are undertaken.

Submit at completion of the project, a final test and quality assurance report documenting the
summary results of all tests performed; highlighting those tests that indicated failure or that did not
meet the applicable test standard. The report must include the pay reductions applied and the
reasons for accepting any out-of-tolerance material. Submit interim test and quality assurance reports
when requested by the FAA.

Failure to provide a complete report as described in paragraph b, or failure to perform such tests, will,
absent any compelling justification; result in a reduction in Federal participation for costs incurred in
connection with construction of the applicable pavement. Such reduction will be at the discretion of
the FAA and will be based on the type or types of required tests not performed or not documented
and will be commensurate with the proportion of applicable pavement with respect to the total
pavement constructed under the grant agreement.

. The FAA, at its discretion, reserves the right to conduct independent tests and to reduce grant
payments accordingly if such independent tests determine that sponsor test results are inaccurate.



3-51-0004-046-2016

The Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter
provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, as provided by the Act, consti-
tuting the contractual obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to the
accomplishment of the Project and compliance with the assurances and conditions as provided herein.
Such Grant Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL 9Y|A110N ADMINISTRATION

Manager, Washington Airports District
Office
{Tite of FAA Official)




3-51-0004-046-2016

PART Il - ACCEPTANCE

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties,
covenants, and agreements contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to in
the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with ali of
the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.

| declare under penalty of pe §trjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed this Z day of _ §g¢§{nm , 20|

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
(Name of Sponsor}

Pl Conetcd”

{Signature of Sponsor's }éﬁoﬂzed Official}

By: Vel |hda,C(aurC>dz

(Typed or Printed Nome of Sponsor’s Authorized Officlal)

ive: Biogifive Divecds

(Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Oﬁcial

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY -
| LI.S& Egh&('r&.n acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws
of the State of Virginia. Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by
said Sponsor and Sponsor’s officlal representative has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof
is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State and the Act. In addition,
for grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no legal
impediments that will prevent fuil performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said
Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms
thereof.

r .
Dated atammpﬂocation)this ,2 ‘ > day of ,SQ@‘_CM& 20 % )
Ateoror(e Ao T v ﬁ /]
By:

(Signature of Sponsor’s Attarney)

(Attorney must sign and date same day
or after sponsor execution date)

! Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both,



ASSURANCES
AIRPORT SPONSORS

A. General.

a. These assurances shall be complied with in the performance of grant agreements for airport

development, airport planning, and noise compatibility program grants for airport sponsors.

These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project application by sponsors
requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle ViI, as amended. As used
herein, the term "public agency sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use
airport; the term "private sponsor" means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term
"sponsor" includes both public agency sponsors and private sponsors.

Upon acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated in and
become part of this grant agreement.

B. Duration and Applicability.

1. Airport development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency

Sponsor.

The terms, conditions and assurances of this grant agreement shail remain in full force and effect
throughout the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment acquired for an airport
development or noise compatibility program project, or throughout the useful life of the project
items installed within a facility under a noise compatibility program project, but in any event not
to exceed twenty (20) years from the date of acceptance of a grant offer of Federal funds for the
project. However, there shall be no limit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive
Rights and Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an airport. There shall be no limit on
the duration of the terms, conditions, and assurances with respect to real property acquired with
federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil Rights assurance shall be specified in the
assurances.

Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private Sponsor.

The preceding paragraph 1 also applies to a private sponsor except that the useful life of project
items installed within a facility or the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment acquired
under an airport development or noise compatibility program project shall be no less than ten (10)
years from the date of acceptance of Federal aid for the project.

Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor.

Unless otherwise specified in this grant agreement, only Assurances 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 13, 18, 25, 30, 32,
33, and 34 in Section C apply to planning projects. The terms, conditions, and assurances of this
grant agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the life of the project; there shall be
no limit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so long
as the airport is used as an airport.

C. Sponsor Certification.

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this grant that:

1. General Federal Requirements.

It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines,
and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance and use of Federal funds for this
project including but not limited to the following:

10

March, 2014



FEDERAL LEGISLATION

a. Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle VI, as amended.

b. Davis-Bacon Act - 40 U.S.C. 276(a), et seq.*

c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act - 29 U.S.C. 201, et seq.

d. Hatch Act-5 U.S.C. 1501, et seq.”

e. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 Title 42
U.S.C. 4601, et seg.*?

f.  National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 - Section 106 - 16 U.S.C. 470(f).

g. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 - 16 U.S.C. 469 through 469c.*

h.  Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act - 25 U.S.C. Section 3001, et seq.

i.  Clean Air Act, P.L. 50-148, as amended.

jo  Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 93-205, as amended.

k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 - Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. 4012a.!

. Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, {formerly known as Section 4(f)}

m. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - 29 U.S.C. 794,

n. Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

0. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.), prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability).

p. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.

g. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended.

r.  Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 -42 U.S.C. 4151, et seq.

s..  Power plant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 - Section 403- 2 U.S.C. 8373.

t.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - 40 U.S.C. 327, et seq.!

u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act - 18 U.S.C. 874.1

v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 - 42 U.S.C. 4321, et seq.*

w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended.

X.  Single Audit Act of 1984 - 31 U.S.C. 7501, et seq.

y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 - 41 U.5.C. 702 through 706.

z.  The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (Pub. L. 109-
282, as amended by section 6202 of Pub. L. 110-252).

EXecuTIVE ORDERS
a. Executive Order 11246 - Equal Employment Opportunity’

b. Executive Order 11990 - Protection of Wetlands

C.

Executive Order 11998 — Flood Plain Management

11

March, 2014



d. Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs

e. Executive Order 12699 - Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building
Construction®

f. Executive Order 12898 - Environmental Justice

FEDERAL REGULATIONS

a. 2 CFR Part 180 - OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
{Nonprocurement).

b. 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards. [OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles Applicable to Grants and
Contracts with State and Local Governments, and OMB Circular A-133 - Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations).* > 6

2 CFR Part 1200 ~ Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment

14 CFR Part 13 - Investigative and Enforcement Procedures14 CFR Part 16 - Rules of Practice
For Federally Assisted Airport Enforcement Proceedings.

14 CFR Part 150 - Airport noise compatibility planning.

28 CFR Part 35- Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government
Services.

28 CFR § 50.3 - U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964.

29 CFR Part 1 - Procedures for predetermination of wage rates.’

29 CFR Part 3 - Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work financed in
whole or part by loans or grants from the United States.’

29 CFR Part 5 - Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering federally financed
and assisted construction (also labor standards provisions applicable to non-construction
contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).’’

41 CFR Part 60 - Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor {Federal and federally assisted contracting requirements).

49 CFR Part 18 - Uniform administrative requirements for grants and cooperative agreements
to state and local governments.?

49 CFR Part 20 - New restrictions on lobbying.

49 CFR Part 21 — Nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation - effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

49 CFR Part 23 - Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions.

49 CFR Part 24 — Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and
Federally Assisted Programs.'?

49 CFR Part 26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of
Transportation Programs.

49 CFR Part 27 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities
Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance.*

12

March, 2014



s. 49 CFR Part 28 - Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or
Activities conducted by the Department of Transportation.

t. 45 CFR Part 30 - Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of
countries that deny procurement market access to U.S. contractors.

u. 495 CFR Part 32 ~ Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial
Assistance)

v. 49 CFR Part 37 — Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities {ADA}.

w. 49 CFR Part 41 - Seismic safety of Federal and federally assisted or regulated new building
construction.

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations
or circulars are incorporated by reference in this grant agreement.

FoOTNOTES TO AsSURANCE C.1.

1
2
3

These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors.

These laws do not apply to private sponsors.

49 CFR Part 18 and 2 CFR Part 200 contain requirements for State and Local Governments
receiving Federal assistance. Any requirement levied upon State and Local Governments by this
regulation and circular shall also be applicable to private sponsors receiving Federal assistance
under Title 49, United States Code.

On December 26, 2013 at 78 FR 78590, the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) issued the
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards in 2 CFR Part 200. 2 CFR Part 200 replaces and combines the former Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants (OMB Circular A-102 and Circular A-110 or 2 CFR Part 215
or Circular) as well as the Cost Principles (Circulars A-21 or 2 CFR part 220; Circular A-87 or 2 CFR
part 225; and A-122, 2 CFR part 230). Additionally it replaces Circular A-133 guidance on the Single
Annual Audit. In accordance with 2 CFR section 200.110, the standards set forth in Part 200 which
affect administration of Federal awards issued by Federal agencies become effective once
implemented by Federal agencies or when any future amendment to this Part becomes final.
Federal agencies, including the Department of Transportation, must implement the policies and
procedures applicable to Federal awards by promulgating a regulation to be effective by
December 26, 2014 unless different provisions are required by statute or approved by OMB.

Cost principles established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for determining
the eligibility of specific types of expenses,

Audit requirements established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits.

Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.
a. Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed project;
that a resolution, motion or similar action has been duly adopted or passed as an official act of
the applicant's governing body authaorizing the filing of the application, including all
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person
identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection with the
application and to provide such additional information as may be required.

b. Private Sponsor:
13

March, 2014



It has legal authority to apply for this grant and to finance and carry out the proposed project
and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this grant agreement. It shall
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file
this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in
connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be
required.

Sponsor Fund Availability.

It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to be paid by the
United States. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and maintenance of items
funded under this grant agreement which it will own or control.

Good Title.

It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to
the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the
Secretary that good title will be acquired.

For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of the sponsor, it
holds good title satisfactory to the Secretary to that portion of the property upon which
Federal funds will be expended or will give assurance to the Secretary that good title will be
obtained.

Preserving Rights and Powers.

It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this grant
agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire,
extinguish or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere
with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in @ manner acceptable to the

Secretary.

It will not sell, lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title or other
interests in the property shown on Exhibit A to this application or, for a noise compatibility
program project, that portion of the property upon which Federal funds have been expended,
for the duration of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this grant agreement without
approval by the Secretary. If the transferee is found by the Secretary to be eligible under Titte
49, United States Code, to assume the obligations of this grant agreement and to have the
power, authority, and financial resources to carry out all such obligations, the sponsor shall
insert in the contract or document transferring or disposing of the sponsor’s interest, and
make binding upon the transferee all of the terms, conditions, and assurances contained in
this grant agreement.

For all noise compatibility program projects which are to be carried out by another unit of
local government or are on property owned by a unit of local government other than the
sponsor, it will enter into an agreement with that government. Except as otherwise specified
by the Secretary, that agreement shall obligate that government to the same terms,
conditions, and assurances that would be applicable to it if it applied directly to the FAA for a
grant to undertake the noise compatibility program project. That agreement and changes
thereto must be satisfactory to the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement
against the local government if there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the
agreement.

14

March, 2014



10.

d. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on privately owned property, it will
enter into an agreement with the owner of that property which includes provisions specified
by the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this agreement against the property owner
whenever there is substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

e. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that
the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in accordance with these
assurances for the duration of these assurances.

f. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve
sufficient rights and authority to insure that the airport will be operated and maintained in
accordance Title 49, United States Code, the regulations and the terms, conditions and
assurances in this grant agreement and shall insure that such arrangement also requires
compliance therewith.

g. Sponsors of commercial service airports will not permit or enter into any arrangement that
results in permission for the owner or tenant of a property used as a residence, or zoned for
residential use, to taxi an aircraft between that property and any location on airport. Sponsars
of general aviation airports entering into any arrangement that results in permission for the
owner of residential real property adjacent to or near the airport must comply with the
requirements of Sec. 136 of Public Law 112-95 and the sponsor assurances.

Consistency with Local Plans.

The project is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of this
application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to
plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the project may be
located.

Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49, United States
Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport at which
project is proposed.

Public Hearings.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension, it
has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the economic,
social, and environmental effects of the airpart or runway location and its consistency with goals
and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by the community and it shall, when
requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such hearings to the Secretary.
Further, for such projects, it has on its management board either voting representation from the
communities where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right
to petition the Secretary concerning a proposed project.

Metropolitan Planning Organization.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension at
a medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has provided upan request
to the metropolitan planning organization in the area in which the airport is located, if any, a copy

15

March, 2014



11.

12.

13,

14,

15,

of the proposed amendment to the airport layout plan to depict the project and a copy of any
airport master plan in which the project is described or depicted.

Pavement Preventive Maintenance.

With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or reconstruction of
pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective airport
pavement maintenance-management program and it assures that it will use such program for the
useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed or repaired with Federal financial
assistance at the airport. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement
management programs as the Secretary determines may be useful.

Terminal Development Prerequisites.

For prajects which include terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in Title 49, it
has, on the date of submittal of the project grant application, all the safety equipment required for
certification of such airport under section 44706 of Title 48, United States Code, and all the
security equipment required by rule or regulation, and has provided for access to the passenger
enplaning and deplaning area of such airport to passengers enplaning and deplaning from aircraft
other than air carrier aircraft.

Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements.

a. It shall keep all project accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition
by the recipient of the proceeds of this grant, the total cost of the project in connection with
which this grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the
project supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the project.
The accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will
facilitate an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984.

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this grant. The
Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of
the proceeds of a grant or relating to the project in connection with which this grant was given
or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United
States not later than six (6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit
was made.

Minimum Wage Rates.

It shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work an any projects funded under this
grant agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be
predetermined by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40
U.S.C. 276a-276a-5), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such minimum
rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included In proposals or bids for the
work.

Veteran's Preference.

it shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded under this grant agreement which
involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor {except
in executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-lraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and smali
business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in Section 47112 of Title

16

March, 2014



16.

17.

18.

1o,

49, United States Code. However, this preference shall apply only where the individuals are
available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

Conformity to Plans and Specifications.

It will execute the project subject to plans, specifications, and schedules approved by the
Secretary. Such plans, specifications, and schedules shall be submitted to the Secretary prior to
commencement of site preparation, construction, or other performance under this grant
agreement, and, upon approval of the Secretary, shall be incorporated into this grant agreement.
Any modification to the approved plans, specifications, and schedules shall also be subject to
approval of the Secretary, and incorporated into this grant agreement.

Construction Inspection and Approval.

It will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site throughout
the project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules approved
by the Secretary for the project. It shall subject the construction work on any project contained in
an approved project application to inspection and approval by the Secretary and such work shall
be in accordance with regulations and procedures prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations
and procedures shalt require such cost and progress reporting by the sponsor or sponsors of such
project as the Secretary shall deem necessary.

Planning Projects.
In carrying out planning projects:

a. It will execute the project in accordance with the approved program narrative contained in the
project application or with the modifications similarly approved.

b. it will furnish the Secretary with such periodic reports as required pertaining to the pianning
project and planning work activities.

c. It willinclude in all published material prepared in connection with the planning project a
notice that the material was prepared under a grant provided by the United States.

d. It will make such material available for examination by the public, and agrees that no material
prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or
any other country.

e. It will give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise
use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant.

f. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the sponsor's employment of specific
consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project as well as the right to
disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional services.

g. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the use of the sponsor's employees to do all
or any part of the project.

h. It understands and agrees that the Secretary's approval of this project grant or the Secretary's
approval of any planning material developed as part of this grant does not constitute or imply
any assurance or commitment on the part of the Secretary to approve any pending or future
application for a Federal airport grant.

Operation and Maintenance,

a. The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport,
other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be operated at all times in

a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with the minimum standards as may be
17

March, 2014



20.

21

22,

required or prescribed by applicable Federal, state and local agencies for maintenance and
operation. It will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with
its use for airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the airport and all facilities
thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. Any
proposal to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be
approved by the Secretary. In furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect
arrangements for-

1) Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required;

2) Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including
temporary conditions; and

3) Promptly notifying airmen of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport.
Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for
aeronautical use during temporary periods when snow, flood or other climatic conditions
interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nathing herein shall be
construed as requiring the maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any
structure or facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or
other condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor.

b. It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns or controls
upon which Federal funds have been expended.

Hazard Removal and Mitigation.

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect
instrument and visual operations to the airport (including established minimum flight altitudes)
will be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or
otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of
future airport hazards.

Compatible Land Use.

It will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning laws, to
restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and
purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft. In
addition, if the project is for noise compatibility program implementation, it will not cause or
permit any change in land use, within its jurisdiction, that will reduce its compatibility, with
respect to the airport, of the noise compatibility program measures upon which Federal funds
have been expended.

Economic Nondiscrimination.

a. It will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of aeronautical activities, including
commercial aeronautical activities offering services to the public at the airport.

b. In any agreement, contract, lease, or other arrangement under which a right or privilege at
the airport is granted to any person, firm, or corporation to conduct or to engage in any
aeronautical activity for furnishing services to the public at the airport, the sponsor will insert
and enforce provisions requiring the contractor to-

1) furnish said services on a reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, hasis to all users
thereof, and
2) charge reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatary, prices for each unit or service,
18

March, 2014



provided that the contractor may be aliowed to make reasonable and nondiscriminatory
discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume purchasers.

a.) Each fixed-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, fees,
rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other fixed-based
operators making the same or similar uses of such airport and utilizing the same or
similar facilities.

b.) Each air carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use any
fixed-based operator that is authorized or permitted by the airport to serve any air
carrier at such airport.

¢.) Each air carrier using such airport (whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or subtenant of
another air carrier tenant) shall be subject to such nondiscriminatory and
substantially comparable rules, regulations, conditions, rates, fees, rentals, and other
charges with respect to facilities directly and substantially related to providing air
transportation as are applicable to all such air carriers which make similar use of such
airport and utilize similar facilities, subject to reasonable classifications such as
tenants or non-tenants and signatory carriers and non-signatory carriers.
Classification or status as tenant or signatory shall not be unreasonably withheld by
any airport provided an air carrier assumes obligations substantially similar to those
already imposed on air carriers in such classification or status.

d.) It will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which operates to prevent any
person, firm, or corporation operating aircraft on the airport from performing any
services on its own aircraft with its own employees [including, but not limited to
maintenance, repair, and fueling} that it may choose to perform.

e.) In the event the sponsor itself exercises any of the rights and privileges referred to in
this assurance, the services involved will be provided on the same conditions as
would apply to the furnishing of such services by commercial aeronautical service
providers authorized by the sponsor under these provisions.

f.) The sponsor may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory,
conditions to be met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and
efficient operation of the airport.

g.) The sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of
the airport if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or
necessary to serve the civil aviation needs of the public.

23. Exclusive Rights.

It will permit no exclusive right for the use of the airport by any person providing, or intending to
provide, aeronautical services to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, the providing of the
services at an airport by a single fixed-based operator shall not be construed as an exclusive right if

both of the following apply:

a. It would be unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-based
operator to provide such services, and

b. If allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide such services would require the
reduction of space leased pursuant to an existing agreement between such single fixed-based
operator and such airport. It further agrees that it will not, either directly or indirectly, grant
or permit any person, firm, or corporation, the exclusive right at the airport to conduct any
aeronautical activities, including, but not limited to charter flights, pilot training, aircraft

19

March, 2014



rental and sightseeing, aerial photography, crop dusting, aerial advertising and surveying, air
carrier operations, aircraft sales and services, sale of aviation petroleum products whether or
not conducted in conjunction with other aeronautical activity, repair and maintenance of
aircraft, sale of aircraft parts, and any other activities which because of their direct
relationship to the operation of aircraft can be regarded as an aeronautical activity, and that
it will terminate any exclusive right to conduct an aeronautical activity now existing at such
an airport before the grant of any assistance under Title 49, United States Code.

24. Fee and Rental Structure.

It will maintain a fee and rental structure for the facilities and services at the airport which will
make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the particular
airport, taking into account such factors as the volume of traffic and economy of collection. No
part of the Federal share of an airport development, airport planning or noise compatibility project
for which a grant is made under Title 49, United States Code, the Airport and Airway Improvement
Act of 1982, the Federal Airport Act or the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 shall be
included in the rate basis in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.

25. Airport Revenues.

a. All revenues generated by the airport and any local taxes on aviation fuel established after
December 30, 1987, will be expended by it for the capital or operating costs of the airport; the
local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned or operated by the owner or
operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the actual air
transportation of passengers or property; or for noise mitigation purposes on or off the
airport. The following exceptions apply to this paragraph:

1) If covenants or assurances in debt obligations issued before September 3, 1982, by the
owner or operator of the airport, or provisions enacted before September 3, 1982, in
governing statutes controlling the owner or operator's financing, provide for the use of the
revenues from any of the airport owner or operator's facilities, including the airport, to
support not only the airport but aiso the airport owner or operator's general debt
obligations or other facilities, then this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by
the airport (and, in the case of a public airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply.

2) If the Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a public sponsor and
provides funding for any portion of the public sponsor’s acquisition of land, this limitation
on the use of all revenues generated by the sale shall not apply to certain proceeds from
the sale. This Is conditioned an repayment to the Secretary by the private owner of an
amount equal to the remaining unamortized portion (amortized over a 20-year period) of
any airport improvement grant made to the private owner for any purpose other than
land acquisition on or after October 1, 1996, plus an amount equal to the federal share of
the current fair market value of any land acquired with an airport improvement grant
made to that airport on or after October 1, 1996.

3) Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, production, lease, or
other means at a general aviation airport (as defined at Section 47102 of title 49 United
States Code), if the FAA determines the airport sponsor meets the requirements set forth
in Sec. 813 of Public Law 112-95.

a.) As part of the annual audit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the sponsor will
direct that the audit will review, and the resulting audit report will provide an opinion
concerning, the use of airport revenue and taxes in paragraph (a), and indicating
whether funds paid or transferred to the owner or operator are paid or transferred in a

20

March, 2014



26.

27.

28,

manner consistent with Title 49, United States Code and any other applicable provision
of law, including any regulation promuigated by the Secretary or Administrator.

b.} Any civil penalties or other sanctions will be imposed for violation of this assurance in
accordance with the provisions of Section 47107 of Title 49, United States Code.

Reports and Inspections.
it will:

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the
Secretary may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make
available to the public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a
format prescribed by the Secretary;

b. for airport development projects, make the airport and all airport records and documents
affecting the airport, including deeds, leases, operation and use agreements, regulations and
other instruments, available for inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary
upon reasenable request;

c. for noise compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating to the project
and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and assurances of this grant
agreement including deeds, leases, agreements, regulations, and other instruments, avallable
for inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request; and

d. inaformat and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available
to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail:
1) all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for
which each such payment was made; and
2) all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.

Use by Government Aircraft.

It will make available all of the facilities of the airport developed with Federal financial assistance
and all those usable for landing and takeoff of aircraft to the United States for use by Government
aircraft in common with other aircraft at all times without charge, except, if the use by
Government aircraft is substantial, charge may be made for a reasonable share, proportional to
such use, for the cost of operating and maintaining the facilities used. Unless otherwise
determined by the Secretary, or otherwise agreed to by the sponsor and the using agency,
substantial use of an airport by Government aircraft will be considered to exist when operations of
such aircraft are in excess of those which, in the opinion of the Secretary, would unduly interfere
with use of the landing areas by other authorized aircraft, or during any calendar month that -

a. by gross weights of such aircraft) is in excess of five million pounds Five (5) or more
Government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on land adjacent thereto; or

b.  The total number of movements (counting each landing as a movement) of Government
alrcraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative welght of Government aircraft using the
airport (the total movement of Government aircraft multiplied.

Land for Federal Facilities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air traffic
control or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication activities related to
air traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein, or rights in buildings of the sponsor
as the Secretary considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at

21

March, 2014



Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be
made available as provided herein within four months after receipt of a written request from the

Secretary.

29. Airport Layout Plan.
It will keep up to date at all times an airport layout plan of the airport showing:

1) boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the

2)

3)

4)

boundaries of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes
and proposed additions thereto;

the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and structures (such
as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all
proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities;

the location of all existing and proposed nonaviation areas and of all existing
improvements thereon; and

all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the airport’s property
boundary. Such airport layout plans and each amendment, revision, or modification
thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary which approval shall be
evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized representative of the Secretary on the
face of the airport layout plan. The spansor will not make or permit any changes or
alterations in the airport or any of its facilities which are not in conformity with the airport
layout plan as approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinion of the Secretary,
adversely affect the safety, utility or efficiency of the airport.

a.) If a change or alteration in the airport or the facilities is made which the Secretary
determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any federally owned,
leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is not in conformity with the
airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or operator will, if
requested, by the Secretary (1) eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by
the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such property (or replacement thereof)
to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs of restoring such property (or
replacement thereof) to the level of safety, utility, efficiency, and cost of operation
existing before the unapproved change in the airport or its facilities except in the case
of a relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a change in the
Secretary’s design standards beyond the control of the airport sponsor.

30. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shali,
on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any
activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds received from this grant.

Using the definitions of activity, facility and program as found and defined in §§ 21.23 (b) and
21.23 (e) of 49 CFR § 21, the sponsar will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or
conduct all programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by, or

pursuant to these assurances.

a.

Applicability
1) Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other federal assistance)

for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the

22

March, 2014



sponsor’s programs and activities.

2) Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other federal financial assistance to construct,
expand, renovate, remodel, alter or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance
extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.

3) Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in
the form of, or for the acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the
assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

Duration.

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance
is to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or.
any transferee for the longer of the following periods:

1) So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits; or

2) So long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property.

Required Solicitation Language. It will include the following notification in all solicitations for
bids, Requests For Proposals for work, or material under this grant agreement and in all
proposals for agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source:

“The {Name of Sponsor), in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all
bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged
business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to
this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin in consideration for an award.”

Required Contract Provisions.

1) It will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts
and regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT,
and incorporating the acts and regulations into the contracts by reference in every
contract or agreement subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of
the DOT acts and regulations.

2) It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is
subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.

3) It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor.

4) It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, or handicap as a covenant running with the
land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, or similar instruments entered into by
the sponsor with other parties:

a.) For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable
activity, project, or program; and

23

March, 2014



b.) For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.

it will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the
Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other
participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all
requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any
matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

31. Disposal of Land.

For land purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes, including land
serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the land is no longer needed for such
purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of acquisition of such land
will be, at the discretion of the Secretary, {1) reinvested in another project at the airport, or {2)
transferred to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give
preference to the following, in descending order, (1) reinvestment in an approved noise
compatibility project, {2) reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding
under Section 47117(e) of title 49 United States Code, (3) reinvestment in an approved airport
development project that is eligible for grant funding under Sections 47114, 47115, or 47117
of title 49 United States Code, (4) transferred to an eligible sponsor of another public airport
to be reinvested in an approved noise compatibility project at that airport, and (5) paid to the
Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund. If land acquired under a grant for
noise compatibility purposes is leased at fair market value and consistent with noise buffering
purposes, the lease will not be considered a disposal of the land. Revenues derived from such
a lease may be used for an approved airport development project that would otherwise be
eligible for grant funding or any permitted use of airport revenue.,

For land purchased under a grant for airport development purposes {(other than noise
compatibility), it will, when the land is no longer needed for airport purposes, dispose of such
land at fair market value or make available to the Secretary an amount equal to the United
States' proportionate share of the fair market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds
of such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition
of such land will, (1) upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred to another
eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give preference to the
following, in descending order: (1) reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project, (2)
reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant funding under Section 47117(e)
of title 49 United States Code, (3) reinvestment in an approved airport development project
that is eligible for grant funding under Sections 47114, 47115, or 47117 of title 49 United
States Code, (4) transferred to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be reinvested in
an approved noise compatibility project at that airport, and (5) paid to the Secretary for
deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

Land shall be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance if (1) it may
be needed for aeronautical purposes (including runway protection zones) or serve as noise
buffer land, and (2) the revenue from interim uses of such land contributes to the financial
self-sufficiency of the airport. Further, land purchased with a grant received by an airport
operator or owner before December 31, 1987, will be considered to be needed for airport
purposes if the Secretary or Federal agency making such grant before December 31, 1987, was

24

March, 2014



32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

notified by the operator or owner of the uses of such land, did not object to such use, and the
land continues to be used for that purpose, such use having commenced no later than
December 15, 1988S.

d. Disposition of such land under (a) (b) or (c) will be subject to the retention or reservation of
any interest or right therein necessary to ensure that such land will only be used for purposes
which are compatible with noise fevels associated with operation of the airport.

Engineering and Design Services.

It will award each contract, or sub-contract for program management, construction management,
planning studies, feasibility studies, architectural services, preliminary engineering, design,
engineering, surveying, mapping or related services with respect to the project in the same
manner as a contract for architectural and engineering services is negotiated under Title IX of the
Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949 or an equivalent gualifications-based
requirement prescribed for or by the sponsor of the airport.

Foreign Market Restrictions.

It will not allow funds provided under this grant to be used to fund any project which uses any
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by
the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction.

Policies, Standards, and Specifications.

It will carry out the project in accordance with policies, standards, and specifications approved by
the Secretary including, but not limited to, the advisory circulars listed in the Current FAA Advisory
Circulars for AIP projects, dated December 31, 2015 and included in this grant, and in accordance
with applicable state policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary.

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition.

a. It will be guided in acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable under State law,
by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 CFR Part 24 and will pay or reimburse
property owners for necessary expenses as specified in Subpart B.

b. It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in Subpart C and
fair and reasonable relacation payments and assistance to displaced persons as required in
Subpart D and E of 49 CFR Part 24.

¢. It will make available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, comparable
replacement dwellings to displaced persons in accordance with Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24.

Access By Intercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or
other modes of transportation to have access to the airport; however, it has no obligation to fund
special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award
and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the award and
performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In addition, the
sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the
administration of its DBE and ACDBE programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The
sponsor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure

25
March, 2014



nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession
contracts. The sponsor’s DBE and ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as
approved by DOT, are incarporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of these
programs is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this
agreement. Upon notification to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the
Department may impose sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate
cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil
Remedies Act of 1936 {31 U.S.C. 3801).

38. Hangar Construction.

If the airport owner or operator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar is to be
constructed at the airport for the aircraft at the aircraft owner’s expense, the airport owner or
operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term lease that is subject to such
terms and conditions on the hangar as the airport owner or operator may impose.

39. Competitive Access.

a. If the airport owner or operator of a medium or large hub airport (as defined in section 47102
of title 49, U.S.C.) has been unable to accommodate one or more requests by an air carrier for
access to gates or other facilities at that airport in order to allow the air carrier to provide
service to the airport or to expand service at the airport, the airport owner or operator shall
transmit a report to the Secretary that-

1) Describes the requests;
2) Provides an explanation as to why the requests could not be accommodated; and

3) Provides a time frame within which, if any, the airport will be able to accommodate the
requests.

b.  Such report shall be due on either February 1 or August 1 of each year if the airport has been
unable to accommaodate the request(s) in the six month period prior to the applicable due
date.

26
March, 2014



Current FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use in AIP Funded
and PFC Approved Projects

Updated: 12/31/2015

View the most current versions of these ACs and any associated changes at:
htto://www.faa.gov/airports/resources/advisorycirculars

NUMBER TITLE
70/7460-1L | Obstruction Marking and nghtmg
150/5020-1 | Noise Control and Compatibility Planning for Airports
150/5070-6B Alrport Master Plans
Changes 1- 2 '
150/5070-7 | The Airport System Planning Process

Change 1

150/5100—13B | Development of State Standards for Nonprimary Airports

150/5200—28E | Notices to Airmen {NOTAMS) for Airport Operators

150/5200-30C | Alrport Winter Safety And Operations
Change 1 |

150/5200-31C Airport Emergency Plan
Changes 1-2

150/5210-5D Pamtmg, Marking, and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an Airport

———— T i

150/5210-7D Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Communications

150/5210-13C Alrport Water Rescue Plans and Equipment

150/5210-14B Alrcraft Rescue Fire Flghtmg Equlpment Tools and Clothing

150/5210-15A | Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Station Building Design

150/5210-18A Systems for Interactive Training of Airport Personnel

FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use AIP Funded and PFC Aﬁm\_led Pro}ects

27

Updated 12/31/2015



|
|
|
[

TITLE

150/5210-19A

150/5220-10E

Driver's Enhanced Vision System (DEVS) Ground Vehicle Operations on Airports

Guide Specification for Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicles

150/5220-16D

Automated Weather Observing Systems (AWOS) for Non-Federal Applications
l —_— -

150/5220-17B

150/5220-18A

150/5220-20A

Alrcraft Rescue and Fire Flghtlng (ARFF) Tramlng Facilities

Bu:ldlngs for Storage and Maintenance of Airport Snow and Ice Control
Equipment and Materials

Airport Snow and Ice Control Equipment

150/5220-21C

Aircraft Boarding Equipment

150/5220-22B

150/5220-23

Engmeered Materials Arrestlng Systems (EMAS) for Aircraft Overruns

Frangible Connections

150/5220-24

150/5220-25

150/5220-26
Change'1

150/5300-7B

f FAA Policy on Facility Relocations Occasioned by Airport Improvements of

Forelgn Object Debris Detection Equipment

Anrport Avian Radar Systems

Airport Ground Vehicle Automatic Dependent Surveillance - Broadcast (ADS -B)
Out Sqmtter Equipment

Changes

150/5300-13A
Change 1

150/5300-14C

150/5300-16A

150/5300-17C

150/5300-18C

150/5300-188
Change 1

| Airport Design |

Design of Aircraft Deicing Facilities

General Guidance and Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys: Establishment of |

Standards for Using Remote Sensing Technologies in Anrport Surveys

|

Geodetic Control and Submission to the National Geodetic Survey

Survey and Data Standards for Submission of Aeronautical Data Using Airports
GIS

General Guidance and Specifications for Submission of Aeronautical Surveys to
NGS: Field Data Collection and Geographic Information System (GIS) Standards

150/5320-5D

Airport Drainage Design
1

150/5320-6E

FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use AIP Funded and PFC Approved Projects

| Airport Pavement Design and Evaluation

N
Updated 12/31/2015



150/5320-12C
Changes 1-8

Measurement, Construction, and Maintenance of Skid Resistant Airport
Pavement Surfaces |

| 150/5320-15A

Management of Airport Industrial Waste

150/5235-4B

150/5335-5C

Runway Length Requirements for Airport Design

Standardized Method of Reporting Airport Pavement Strength - PCN

150/5340-1L

—T—

| Standards for Airport Markings
|

150/5340-5D

150/5340-18F

Segmented Circle Airport Marker System

Standards for Airport Sign Systems |

150/5340-26C

| Maintenance of Airport Visual Aid Facilities I

150/5340-30H

150/5345-3G

150/5345-5B

150/5345-10H

150/5345-12F

150/5345-7F

De5|gn and Installation Detalls for Airport Visual Aids

SpeCIﬁcation for L-821, Panels for the Control of Airport nghtlng

Circuit Selector Switch

SpeCIF cation for L-824 Underground Electrlcal Cable for Alrport nghtmg Circuits |

Spemf ication for Constant Current Regulators and Regulator Monitors

Specification for Alrport and Hellport Beacons

150/5345-13B

Specification for L-841 Auxiliary Relay Cabinet Assembly for Pilot Control of
Airport nghtmg Circuits

| 150/5345-26D
150/5345-27E

150/5345-28G

FAA Speaf cation For L-823 Plug and Receptacle Cable Connectors |

Spec:ﬁcatlon for Wind Cone Assemblies

| Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) Systems

150/5345-39D

150/5345-42H

| Specification for L-853, Runway and Taxiway Retro reflective Markers J

Specification for Airport Light Bases, Transformer Housings, Junction Boxes, and |
| Accessories

150/5345-43G

150/5345-44K

150/5345-45C

FAA Advisory_cirzula;s Required for Use AIP Funded and PFC Approved Projects

| Specification for Obstruction Lighting Eqmpment

. Specification for Runway and Taxiway Signs

Low-Impact Resistant (LIR) Structures

. 29
Updated 12/31/2015




NUMBER

THLE

| 150/5345-46D

Specification for Runway and Taxiway Light Fixtures

150/5345-47C

|5 —

' 150/5345-49c

150/5345-50B

| S —

150/5345-518

150/5345-53D

150/ 5345-52A

Systems

Specification for Series to Series Isolation Transformers for Airport Lighting

| Specuflcatlon L-854, Radio Control Equipment

| Specification for Portable Runway and Taxiway Lights

Speciﬁcation for Discharge-Type Flashing Light Equipment

i
Generic Visual Glideslope Indicators (GVGI)

Alrport Lighting Equipment Certification Program

150/5345-54B

Systems

150/5345-55A

150/5345 56B

| 150/5360-12F

150/5360-13

Specification for L-884, Power and Control Unit for Land and Hold Short Lighting

| Specification for L-893, Lighted Visual Aid to Indicate Temporary Runway

| Closure

Specuﬁcatlon for L-890 Airport Lighting Control and Monitoring System (ALCMS)

! — R

| Airport Signing and Graphics

. Planning and Design Guidelines for Alrport Terminal Facmtles
! Change 1
150/5360-14 Access to Airports By Individuals With Disabilities
L |
[ _
150/5370-2F i Operational Safety on Airports During Construction

150/5370-10G

150/5370-11B

Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports

| Use of Nondestructive Testing in the Evaluation of Airport Pavements

‘ 150/5370-13A

150/5370-158

150/5370-16

150/5370-17

Off-Peak Construction of Airport Pavements Using Hot-Mix Asphalt

AlrS|cIe Applications for Artificial Turf

' Rapld Construction of Rigid (Portland Cement Concrete) Airfield Pavements

1

| Airside Use of Heated Pavement Systems

150/5380-6C

| Guidelines and Procedures for Maintenance of Airport Pavements

I

| 150/5380-9 Guidelines and Procedures for Measuring Airfield Pavement Roughness
. _ i I S

' |

I 150/5390-2C Heliport Design

FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use AIP Funded and PFC Approved Projects

30

Updated 12/31/2015



ey se e =, [

Seaplane Bases

31
FAA Advisory Circulars Required for Use AIP Funded and PFC Approved Projects Updated 12/31/2015




THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL APPLY TO AIP PROJECTS ONLY
Updated: 12/31/2015

|
| NUMBER TITLE
| s
150/5100-14E, Architectural, Engineering, and Planning Consultant Services for Airport Grant
Change1 Projects ) -
150/5100-17 Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport improvement Program

Changes1-6 L Assisted Projects
150/5300-15A Use of Value Engineering for Engineering Design of Airports Grant Projects

150/5320-17A Airfleld Pavement Surface Evaluation and Rating (PASER) Manuals

150/5370-12B | Quality Management for Federally Funded Airport Construction Projects

|
150/5380-6C ‘ Guidelines and Procedures for Maintenance of Airport Pavements ‘

150/5380-78 Airport Pavement Management Program |

150/5380-9 Guidelines and Procedures for Measuring Airfield Pavement Roughness

32
12/31/2015



OMBE Number: 4040-0004
Expiration Date: 08/31/2016

/A pplication for Federal Assistance SF-424

*1. Type of Submission * 2. Type of Application * If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):
Preapplication New B

Appiication 7] Continuation * Other (Specify)

[7] Changed/Comrected Application | [7] Revision

*3. Date Received:

4. Application ldentifier:

CHO

5a. Federal Entity Identifier:
3-51-0004

* 5b. Federal Award ldentifier:

State Use Only:
6. Date Received by State: | 7. State Application Identifier:
8. APPLICANT INFORMATION: -
* a. Legal Name:  Charlottesville-Albemarie Airport Authority
* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. Organizational DUNS:
54-1262262 09-741-7349
d. Address:

" Street1: 100 Bowen Loop
Street 2. gyite 200

*City:  Charottesville
County: Albemarle

* State:  Vinginia
Province:
Country: USA

*Zip/ Postal Code: 22911

e. Organizafional Unif:

Department Name:

Division Name:

i. Name and contact information of person fo be confacied on malfers Involving this application:

Prefid Ms.
Middle Name:

*Last Name: Crawford
Suffix:

file: Executive Director

Organizational Affiliaton:

* Telephone Number. (434) 9723-8342

~ Fax Number. (434) 974-7476

* Emall: merawford@gocho.com




OMB Number; 4040-0G04
Expiration Date: 08/31/2016

pplication for Federal Assistance SF-424

*9, Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
X. Other (specify)
Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
- Select One -
Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
- Select One -

* Other (specify): Airport Authority

* 10. Name of Federal Agency:
Department of Transportation / FAA / WADO

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

20.106

CFDA Title:
Airport Improvement Program

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:

Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counfies, Stales, efc.):
City of Charlottesville, Albemarie County, Commonwealth of Virginia

*95. Descriptive Title of Applicanf's Project
Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation - Construction Phase

" Attach supporting documents as specified In agency instructions,




QMB Number: 4040-0004
Expiration Date: 08/31/2016

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:
*a, Applicant VA-005 *b. Program/Project: 5 & 7

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

17. Proposed Project:
*a. Start Date: 09/01/2016 *b. End Date: 09/01/2017
18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a. Federal 11,872,035.00

*b. Applicant 263,824.00

*c. State ' 1,055,292.00

*d, Local

*a. Other

*f. Program Income
*g. TOTAL 13,181,151.00

*18. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

[J a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on
£l b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372

#20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt? (if “Yes®, provide explanation on next page.)
0 Yes ) No-

21. *By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances™ and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me

to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)
** | AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an iniemet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or
agency specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefic Ms. *First Name: Melinda

Middie Name::
*Last Name: Crawford

Suffix:

*Title: Executive Director

*Talephone Number: (434) 973-8342 Fax Number: (434) 974-7476

* Email: merawford@gocha.com

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:

INAA . AL 3 (2Lt
7.




U.S. Department of Transportation OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
@& Federal Aviation Administration EXPIRATION DATE: 4130/2017

Application for Federal Assistance (Development and Equipment Projects)
PART i1 - PROJECT APPROVAL INFORMATION

Part Il - SECTION A

The term “Sponsor” refers to the applicant name provided in box 8 of the associated SF-424 form.

item 1.
Does Sponsor maintain an active registration in the System for Award Management | O
(www.SAM.gov)? Yes No

item 2.
Can Sponsor commence the work identified in the application in the fiscal year the

grant is made or within six months after the grant is made, whichever is later? Xyes [INo [INA

ltem 3.

Are there any foreseeable events that would delay completion of the project? If yes, ]

provide attachment to this form that lists the events. [lyes No [Ina
item 4.

Will the project(s) covered by this request have impacts or effects on the

environment that require mitigating measures? If yes, attach & summary listing of [Oyes RiINo CIna

mitigating measures to this application and identify the name and date of the
environmental documeni(s).

tem 5.

Is the project covered by this request included in an approved Passenger Facility

Charge (PFC) application or other Federal assistance program? If yes, please [3yes
identify other funding sources by checking all applicable boxes.

XiNo [IN/A

O The project is included in an approved PFC application,
If included in an approved PFC application,
does the application only address AIP matching share? [lyes [INo

O the project is inciuded In another Federal Assistance program. lts CFDA number is below.

item 6.

Will the requested Federal assistance include Sponsor indirect costs as described in =

2 CFR Appendix Vil to Part 200, States and Local Government and Indian Tribe Clves XNo [lna
{indirect Cost Proposals?

if the request for Federal assistance includes a claim for allowable indirect costs, select the applicable indirect cost rate
the Sponsor proposes to apply:

_D De Minimis rate of 10% as permitted by 2 CFR § 200.414.

[[] Negotiated Rate equal to % as approved by (the Cognizant Agency)
on (Date) (2 CFR part 200, appendix Vil).

Note: Refer to the instructions for limitations of application associated with claiming Sponsor indirect costs.

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 1af7



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017

PART Ul - SECTIONB

Certification Regarding Lobbying ,
The declarations made on this page are under the signature of the authorized representative as identified in box 21 of
form SF-424, to which this form is attached. The term “Sponsor” refers to the applicant name provided in box 8 of the

associated SF-424 form.

The Authorized Representative certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and bslief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Sponsor, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, cortinuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2} if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or'attempting to influence an officer or empioyee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Authorized Representative shall complete and submit Standard
Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The Authorized Representative shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards ‘at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans,
and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which rsliance was placed when this transaclion was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prarequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 2 of 7



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017

PART Il - SECTIONC

The Sponsor hereby represents and cerlifies as follows:

1. Compatible Land Use — The Sponsar has taken the following actions to assure compatible usage of land adjacent
to or in the vicinity of the airport:

Albemarie County zoning code inciudes protection for the airport from erection of tall structures and incompatible fand
use.

2. Defaults — The Sponsor is not in default on any obligation to the United States or any agency of the United States
Govemment relative to the development, operation, or maintenance of-any airport, except as stated herewith:

None

3. Possible Disabllities — There are no facts or circumstances (including the existence of effective or proposed leases,
use agreements or other legal instruments affecting use of the Airport or the existence of pending litigation or other
legal proceedings) which in reasonable probability might make it impossible for the Sponsor to carry out and complete
the Project or carry out the provisions of the Grant Assurances, either by limiting its legal or financial ability or
otherwise, except as follows:

None

4. Consistency with Local Plans — The project is reasonably consistent with plans existing at the time of submission
of this application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to pian for the
development of the area surrounding the airport.

Yes

5. Consideration of Local Interest — It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the
praject may be located.

Yes

6. Consultation with Users - in making a decision to underteke an airport development project under Title 49, United
States Code, it has consulted with airport users that will potentially be affected by the project (§ 47105(a)(2)).

Yes

7. Public Hearings - In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway or a major runway extension, it
has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the economic, social, and environmenta
effects of the airport or runway location and its consistency with goals and objectives of such planning as has been
camied out by the community and it shall, when requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such
hearings to the Secretary. Further, for such projects, it has on its management board sither voting representation from
the communities where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right to' petition the
Secretary conceming a proposed project.

NIA

8. Air and Water Quality Standards — in projects involving airport location, a major runway extension, or runway
location it will provide for the Govemnor of the state In which the project is located to certify in writing to the Secretary
that the project will be located, designed, constructed, and operated so as to comply with applicable and air and water
quality standards. In any case where such standards have not been approved and where applicable air and water
quality standards have been promulgatad by the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency, certification
shall be obtained from such Administrator. Notice of certification or refusal to certify shall be provided within sixty days
after the project application has been received by the Secratary.

N/A

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page3of7



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/207

PART il - SECTION C (Continued)

9. Excluslve Rights — There Is no grant of an exclusive right for the conduct of any aeronautical activity at any airport
owned or confrolled by the Sponsor except as follows:

None

10. Land - (a) The sponsor holds the following property interest in the following areas of land, which are 1o be developed-
or used as part of or in connection with the Airport subject to the following exceptions, encumbrances, and adverse
interests, all of which areas are identified on the aferementioned property map designated as Exhibit “A”. [1]

See Exhibit A, Airport Property Map on file at the Washington ADO

The Sponsor further certifies that the above is based on a tile examination by a qualified attorney or tite company and
that such attorney or titlte company has determined that the Sponsor holds the above property interests.

(b) The Spensor will acquire within a reasonable time, but in any event prior to the start of any construction work
under the Project, the following property interest in the following areas of land on which such construction work is to be
performed, all of which areas are identified on the aforementioned property map designated as Exhibit "A”. [1]

N/A

(c) The Sponsor will acquire within a reasonable time, and if feasible prior to the completion of all construction
work under the Project, the following property interest in the foliowing areas of land which are to be developed or used
as part of or in connection with the Airport as it will be upon completion of the Project, all of which areas are identified on
the aforementioned property map designated as Exhibit "A”. [1]

N/A

' state the character of property intersst in each area and list and identify for each all exceptions, encumbrances, and adverse
interests of every kind and nature, including liens, easements, ieases, etc. The separate areas of land need only be identified here by

the area numbers shown on the property map.

FAA Form 5100-100 {3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Paged4of 7



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017

PART ili - BUDGET INFORMATION - CONSTRUCTION

SECTION A - GENERAL
1. Federal Domestic Assistance Catalog Number; 20.106
2. Functional or Other Breakout: Airport Improvement Program
SECTION B - CALCULATION OF FEDERAL GRANT
: e Aot con € hencunt Total
Cost Classification {Uss only for (Usa only for m
revisions) revisions)

1. Administration expense $ 30,004
2. Preliminary expense

3. Land, structures, right-of-way

4. Architectural engineering basic fees 598,134
5. Other Architectural engineering fees 100,000
6. Project inspection fees 497 868
7. Land development

8. Relocation Expenses

9. Relocation payments (o Individuals and Businesses

10. Demolition and removal

11. Construction and project improvement 11,667,145
12. Equipment

13. Miscellaneous

14. Subtotal (Lines 1 through 13) $ 13,191,151
15. Estimated Income (if applicable)

16. Net Project Amount (Line 14 minus 15) 13,191,151
17. Less: Ineligible Exclusions (Section C, line 23 g.)

18. Subtotal (Lines 16 through 17) $ 13,191,151
19. Federal Share requested of Line 18 11,872,035
20. Grantee share 263,824
21. Other shares 1,055,292
l 22. TOTAL PROJECT (Lines 19,20 & 21) i | $ 13,191,151

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION

Page 5of 7




OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017

SECTION C ~ EXCLUSIONS
23, Classification (Description of non-participating work) m%wm
a.
b.
C.
d.
e.
f.
g9 Total
SECTION D - PROPOSED METHOD OF FINANCING NON-FEDERAL SHARE

24. Grantea Share - Fund Categaries Amount

a. Securities -

b. Morigages

c. Appropriations (by Applicant) 263824

d. Bonds

e. Tax Levies

f. Non-Cash

g- Other (Explain):

h. TOTAL - Grantee share $ 263,824
25, Other Shares Amount

a. State 1,055,202

b. Other )

c. TOTAL - Other Shares $ 1,055,282
26. TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FINANCING $ 1,319,116

SECTION E - REMARKS
{Altach sheets if additional space is required)

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/16) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page6of 7




OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 430/2017

PART IV - PROGRAM NARRATIVE
{Suggested Format)

PROJECT: Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation - Construction Phase

AIRPORT: Charlottesville-Albemarie Airport (KCHO)

1. Objective:

The Runway 3-21 and Taxiway A pavement have reached the end of their useful lives. A rehabilitation is necessary
to maintain an adequate pavement condition and extend its useful fife. This grant application is to request funding for
the Construction and Construction Administration.

2. Benefits Anticipated:

The rehabilitation will improve the safety of the airfield by reducing the potential of FOD, improve the ride ability of the
pavement, and consolidate afl rehabilitation actions into one project reducing the impacts on airport operations.

3. Approach: {See approved Scope of Work in Final Apptication)
The design has maximized the use of available funding. Bid altematives/bid options have been developed.

4. Geographic Location:
Albemarle County, Virginia, United States of America

5. If Applicable, Provide Additional information:

6. Sponsor's Representative: (include address & telephone number)

Ms. Melinda Crawford, Executive Director, Charottesville-Albemarie Airport Authority, 100 Bowen Loap, Suite 200
Charlottesville, Virginia 22911, (434) 973-8342 phone

FAA Form 5100-100 (3/18) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 7 of 7




PROJECT COST SUMMARY - Alternate One REVISED

Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 (Construction)
Charfotiesvilie-Albemarie Airport
Charlottesviile, VA

| GRANT AMOUNTS
AlP PROJECT NO. 3-51-0004-041-Pending [FAA (80%) $11,872,035.00
STATE PROJECT NO. CF-0004-Pending
DELTA PROJECT NO. 13057 STATE (8%) $1,055,282.00
SPONSOR: Charlottesville-Albemarie Airport Authority lLDCAL {2%) $263,824.00
FAA REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST NC. TOTAL $13,181,151.00
DATE: 91252016
BUDGET COST THIS TOTAL COST %
LINE CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT REQUEST TO DATE COMP
a. ADMINISTRATION
DBE Plan - $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
{FE $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Owmner Administration $10,003.75 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal: $30,003.75 $0.00 $0.00 0%
d.  ARCHITECTURAL ENGINEERING FEES
Delta Construction Admin - Altemate 1 $586,134.00 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal: $596,134.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
e. OTHER ARCHITECTURAL ENGINEERING FEES
FAA Reimbursable Agreement # $100,000,00 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotak $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
f  PROJECT INSPECTION FEES
" TBI $497,868.25 $0.00 $0.00
Sublotal: $497,868.25 $0.00 $0.00 0%
k. CONSTRUCTION AND PROJECT IMPROVEMENT COST
Contractor Name - Atemate #1- Chemung $11,857,145.00 $0.00 $0.00
Utility Relocation/Connections $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Owner/FAA Fumished Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal| $11,967,145.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
TOTALS:  $13,191,1561.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
FAA  $11,872,035.00 $0.00
STATE $1,055,292.00 $0.00
LOCAL $263,824.00 $0.00
TOTAL: $13,191,151.00 $0.00 0%




TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

«”' CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A I R P O R T

Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
November 16, 2016

Action Item #1: Resolution 2016-11--Re-appointment of the 2016
Membership of the Audit Committee

For the Board to approve the Resolution Re-appointment of the 2016
Membership of the Audit Committee

Attached is a proposed resolution re-appointing the 2016 membership of

the Audit Committee. This was originally established at the March 2016 meeting, however, one of the
members, Susan Perry Williams resigned. The Board decided at the August 2016 meeting to appoint
Craig Lefanowicz as her replacement. This resolution simply updates the 2016 membership.

PRIOR ACTION:
FUNDING:
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:

PRESENTATION:

Resolution 2016-1
N/A
N/A

Attachment #1 - Proposed Resolution Re-appointment of the 2016
Membership of the Audit Committee

N/A



—

«”' CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A I R P O R T
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: November 16, 2016
SUBJECT: Action Item #2 — Ratification of Work Orders for Delta Airport Consultants
and Talbert & Bright — Runway/Taxiway Rehabilitation Project
(Construction Phase)

RECOMMENDATION:  Ratification of Approval of Work Authorizations for Delta Airport
Consultants to perform Engineering Construction Administration Services in the not-to-exceed
amount of $596,134 and Talbert & Bright to perform Resident Project Representative Services in
the not-to-exceed amount of $487,418 for the Runway/Taxiway Rehabilitation Project.

BACKGROUND: In accordance with the Board approved Airport Capital Improvement Plan,
an application in the amount of $13,224,145 was submitted to the FAA in July 2016 requesting
funding for the Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation Project. All FAA grant applications reqiire firm bid
prices so the project was bid in accordance with state and federal guidelines. The bid from
Chemung was identified as the bid offering the best value for the Authority.

In addition to the construction costs for this project, the application as noted in Attachment #1 also
contained costs for engineering construction administration and project inspection services. The
work orders for these services were subject to an Independent Fee Estimate Review as required by
the FAA, and an FAA grant was processed/accepted that included these fees.

Resolution 2016-9 authorized the Executive Director to accept the FAA grant when offered and to
execute the related construction contract to Chemung in an amount not to exceed $11,957,145 with
the understanding that the two work orders for engineering services for this project would be
brought back to the Board for ratification.

PRIOR ACTION: January 2015 — Board awarded a Professional Engineering Service contract
to Delta Airport Consultants

January 2015 - Board awarded a Professional Engineering Service contract
to Talbert & Bright.

May 2016: Board approved the 6 year Airport Capital Improvement Plan
which included the above referenced project that was comprised of the
construction costs, engineering fees, and miscellaneous expenses.



August 2016: — Resolution No. 20169 “Executive Director Authorization
to Accept FAA Grant and Award of Construction Contract to Chemung for
Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation Project”

FUNDING: FAA $ 975,196.80
State: $ 108,355.20
Local: $ 00
Total: $ 1,083,552.00

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  The FAA grant will allow for the FAA to provide 90% funding of
the project, with the remaining 10% being funded with 8% from the Virginia Department of
Aviation (VDOA) entitlement funds. It should be noted that the Authority anticipates using its
VDOA entitlements to fund its 2% portion of the project as allowed by VDOA.

ATTACHMENTS: #1 — Work Order with Delta Airport Consultants for
Runway/Taxiway Rehabilitation Project (Construction)
#2 - Work Order with Talbert & Bright for Runway/Taxiway
Rehabilitation Project (Construction)

PRESENTATION: None



PROJECT ORDER NO. 1 — Revised 2

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROJECT: Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
DELTA PROJECT NO: 13057/106
DATE OF ISSUANCE: August 25, 2016

ATTACHMENTS:
Fee Summary (5 pages)
Fee Schedule (1 page)
Subconsultant Proposals (18 pages)

METHOD OF PAYMENT: Construction Administration: Unit Price + Fixed Fee, Not to Exceed

TASK ORDER AMOUNT:  Runway: $ 448,854
Taxiway: $ 147,280

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construction Administration Services

The original Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Charlottesville-Albemarle |
Airport Authority (SPONSOR) and Delta Airport Consultants, Inc., (CONSULTANT) for Professional
Services at the Charlottesville-Albemarie Airport dated April 22, 2015 and renewed April 22, 2016, shall |
govern all PROJECT TASK ORDERS executed under this Agreement unless modified in writing and

agreed to by CONSULTANT and SPONSCR. ) =
ACCEPTED: APPROVED: ‘

<l | e 7 s /";‘/ﬂ,';
Ry < <3 by I/’)/ /4 /4/“/ ;’«5{

| Susan E. Winslow Melinda Crawford
Vice President ‘ Executive Director
Delta Airport Consultants Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

9711 Farrar Ct. Suite 100 ‘ 100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Richmond, Va 23236 Charlottesvifle, Va 22911

#8447



Construction Administration Services

FEE SUMMARY

Project Title: Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation

Airport Name: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Airport Location: Charlottesville, Virginia

Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. AP Praject No.

8711 Farrar Court, Suite 100 State Project No.

Richmond, VA 23236 Delta Project No.,

Date:  June 17, 2016

Revised: June 23, 2016

Revised: August 25, 2017

RUNWAY 120 Days
Construction Observation $177,624
Project Administration $44,730
Resident Project Representative {by others) $0
Travel & Miscellaneous $10,000
Printing $4,000
Materials Testing (S&ME) $85,000
Construction Surveys (RGA) $33,900
AGIS As-Built Surveys (Woolpert) $44,600
Per Diem (by others) $0
Fixed Fee $49,000
Runway Budget: $448,854
TAXIWAY 60 Days (assumes concurrent award)
Construction Observation $68,448
Project Administration $13,112
Resident Project Representative (by others) $0
Travel & Misceflaneous $3,000
Printing $1.000
Materials Testing (S&ME) $29,000
Construction Surveys (RGA) $16,720
Per Diem (by others) $0
Fixed Fee $16,000
Taxiway Budget: $147,280
COMBINED: $596,134




Construction Administration Sarvices

FEE SUMMARY
RUNWAY
Project Title:
Airport Name: PO B
Airport Location:
Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. AIP Project No.
State Project No. | N
Delta Project No.
Date:
Revised: June 23, 2016
Revised: Auqust 25, 2017
Fleld
PRIN PM/RP DP PP/PA CLER Rep
Descrigtion No. {hr) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr)
RUNWAY 120 Calendar Days
Construction Observation
Preconstruction Conference 0 12 12 4 4
Site Visits/Progress Meetings & Notes 12 132 48 12 12
Construction Correspondence 0 60 24 60 o
Requests for Information 0 12 10 20 0
RPR Coordinatiorv Qs 4 60 60 40 0
Shop Drawing Review & Goordination 1] 40 80 60 1]
Contractor QC Plan Review 0 4 12 8 0
Review Test Results 4] 60 40 60 0
Review Confractor Pay Request 0 20 0 20 0
Owner/FAA/State Coordination 4 80 0 40 0
Pre-Final Inspection 0 12 0 0 2
Final Inspection 0 12 0 0 2
20 504 286 324 20 0
Project Administration
Subconsuttant Coordination 0 8 16 12 4
Coordinate Award & Contract Forms 0 8 0 8 2
Project Applications 0 8 (4] 8 2
FAA 7460 Form 0 2 0 8 2
Released for Construction Documents 0 4 8 40 0
QA/Construction Management Plan 0 8 o 12 0
Agency Coordination (County, DCR) 4 24 12 8 4
FAA Pay Request/Budget Summary 0 12 0 36 4]
Construction/Record Drawings 0 8 12 24 8
Project Closeout / Final Report / ALP Update 0 8 4 12 12
4 90 52 168 34 0
Rasident Project Representative
Primary Field Representative
Supplemental Fleld Representative —
Pre/Post (Badging, Mobilize, etc.) by
[} 4] 0 0 0




HOURS x RATES Construction Administration Services

RUNWAY
Project Title: Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
Airport Name: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Airport Location: Charlottesvifle, Virginia
Deita Airport Consultants, Inc. AIP Project No.
State Project No.
Delta Project No.
Date:  June 17, 2016
Revised: June 23, 2016
Revised: August 25, 2017
RUNWAY
Est Est Rates
Description Hours Cost 2017
Construction Observation
Principal 20 $4,700 $235
Praj Mgr/Registered Prof 504 $102,312 $203
Design Professional 286 $36,036 $126
Proj Production/Administration 324 $33,606 $104
Clerical 20 $880 $44
Resident Project Representative 0 $0 $94
Subtotal: 1154 $177,624
Project Administration
Principal 4 $940
Proj Mgr/Registered Prof 90 $18,270
Design Professional 52 $6,552
Proj Production/Administration 168 $17,472
Clerical 34 $1,496
Resident Project Representative 0 $0
Subtotal: 348 $44,730
Resldent Project Representative
Principal 0 $0
Proj Mgr/Registered Prof 0 $0
Design Professional 1} $0
Proj Production/Administration 0 $0
Clerical 0 $o
Resident Project Representative 0 $0
Subtotal: 0 $0



FEE SUMMARY Construction Administration Services

TAXIWAY
Project Title: y
Airport Name: rport
Airport Location:

Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. AlIP Project No.
State Project No. ;-
Delta Project No.

Date: .
Revised: June 23, 2016
Revised: August 25, 2017

Field
PRIN PM/RP DP PP/PA CLER Rep
Description - No. (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr) (hrj

TAXIWAY 60 Calendar Days

Construction Observation
Preconstruction Conference ——
Site Visits/Progress Meetings & Notes
Construction Correspondence
Requests for Information
RPR Coordination/ Qs
Shop Drawing Review & Coordination
Contractor QC Plan Review e
Review Test Results
Review Contractor Pay Request
Owner/FAA/State Coordination
Pre-Final Inspection
Final Inspection

4 196 92 180 12 0

Project Administration
Subconsultant Coardination
Coordinate Award & Contract Forms
Project Applications
FAA 7460 Form
Released for Construction Documents -
QA/Construction Management Plan 7
Agency Coordination (County, DCR)
FAA Pay Request/Budget Summary
Construction/Record Drawings ———— -
Project Closeout / Final Report / ALP Update e —

Reslidant Project Representative
Primary Field Repres (8 hr/day)
Supplemental Field Representative s
Pre/Post {Badging, Mobilize, etc.) ==




HOURS x RATES Construction Administration Services

TAXIWAY
Project Title: Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
Airport Name: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Airport Location: Charlottesville, Virginia
Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. AIP Project No.
State Project No.
Delta Project No.
Date:  June 17,2016
Revised: June 23, 2016
Revised: August 25, 2017
RUNWAY
Est Est Rates
Description Hours Cost 2017
Construction Observation
Principal 4 $940 $235
Proj Mgr/Registered Prof 196 $39,788 $203
Design Professional 92 $11,592 $126
Proj Production/Administration 150 $15,600 $104
Clerical 12 $528 $44
Resident Project Representative 0 $0 $94
Subtotal: 454 $68,448
Project Administration
Princlpal 0 $0
Proj Mgr/Registered Prof 32 $6,496
Design Professional 12 $1,512
Proj Production/Administration 44 $4,576
Clerical 12 $528
Resident Project Representative 0 $0
Subtotal: 100 $13,112
Resident Project Representative
Principal 0 $0
Proj Mgr/Registered Prof 0 $0
Design Professional 0 $0
Proj Production/Administration 0 $0
Clerical 0 $0
Resident Project Representative 0 $0
Subtotal: 0 $0



2017 FEE SCHEDULE
Delia Airpori Consultants, Inc.
Date: April 21, 2016

tem 2017
Work Hours Billing Rates (with averhead)
Principal $235
Project Manager/Registered Professional $203
Design Professional (Engineer/Planner) $126
Project Production/Administration $104
Clerical $24
Field Representative $94
Direct Nonsalary Expenses
Automobile (per mile) Federal Gov. guidelines
Aircraft (per mile) Federal Gov. guidelines
Per Diem - Resident Project Rep Federal Gov. guidelines
Long term - meals & lodging {per cal day)
Airline, Rental Car, Charter, etc. Direct
Printing Direct
Bid Advertisement Direct
Meals, Lodging, etc. (short term) Diract
Miscellaneous Direct
Subcontracted Services Direct
Delta Profit Fixed Fee
Notes:

1. Billing rates for future years will be increased by 3% annually.
2. Billing rates based on estimated 2017 salaries (i.e.: 2016 salaries plus 3% inflation).
3. Work hour rates include labor overhead, general & administrative

overhead per FAA AC 150/5100-14E, paragraph 4-10



€ S&ME

June 15, 2016

Delta Airport Consultants, Inc.

9711 Famar Court

Suite 100

Richmond, Virginia 23236

Attention: Ms. Susan E. Winslow, P.E.

Reference: Proposal for Construction Materials Acceptance Testing
Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
Charlottesville, Virginia 22911

AJP No.: 3-51-0004- Pending
S&ME Proposal Number 34-1600225

Dear Ms. Winsiow:

S&ME, Inc. (S&ME) appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal to pravide materials acceptance
testing services for the referenced project. This proposal indudes a summary of our understanding of the
project, our proposed scope of services, and an estimated fee. Our Agreement for Services (Form AS-071)
is attached and is incorporated as part of this proposal.

PROJECT INFORMATION

Our understanding of the project is based on the following:
* Request for Proposal from Ms. Susan E. Winslow, PE, dated June 9, 2016.
*  Bid Plans and Specifications downloaded from Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. Info Exchange site.
s S&ME Geotechnical Exploration Report dated March 20, 2015 (S&ME Project No.: 1305-14-119).

We understand that rehabilitation of existing runway 3-21 at the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport will
include overlaying the runway and taxiway plus widening the taxiway shoulders. We understand that the
cantract time for the runway is 120 days with double shift anticipated for 20 days. Taxiway contract time is
60 days. We understand construction is anticipated to begin June 2017. The materials testing services will
include the following materials and approximate quantities:

5,000 cubic yards of P-152 Undassified Embankment
1,000 cubic yards of P-154 Base Course

48,000 tons of P-401 Bituminous Surface Course
8,000 tons of P-403 Bituminous Surface Course
2,000 linear feet of pipe backdill

S&ME, Inc. | 3201 Spring Forest Read | Raleigh. NC 27616 | p 919.872.2660 | f 919.876.3958 | www.smeinc.com



Proposat for Construction Matesizls Acceptance Testing June 15, 2016
Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. Page 2

We have broken out pricing to show testing costs for the runway and taxiway. Attached to our
praposal is also a copy of our AMSHTO Accreditation induding ASTM D3666 as requested.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Based on review of the pravided documents and our experience on similar projects, we understand the
foliowing services will be required.

FAA P-152 Unclassified Embankment Acceptance Testing- Our personnel can perform laboratory
testing of proposed fili and baddill to determine material's classification and standard or modified
Proctor moisture/density relationship. These laboratory tests will be required far each type of fill
material used. Fill placement will be ohserved to document maximum lift thicknesses, moisture
cantent, and in-place sail density for comparison to project specification requirements.

FAA P-154 Base Course Acceptance Testing — Our personnel can perform field density tests on P-
154 after compaction to determine the in-place moisture and degree of compaction achieved. Field
density testing will be performed by the nudear method (ASTM D6938) and / or the sand cone
method (ASTM D1556). Moisture testing will be performed by the nudear methad {ASTM D6938).

FAA P-401 and P-403 Asphalt Testing — Our personnel can perform the required QA testing per the
FAA P-401 and P-403 Plant Mixed Bituminous Pavement specifications. Typically, QA testing is
performed in the contractor’s laberatory, utilizing the contractor's equipment. Contractor will obtain
asphalt cores and retum them to the laboratory for testing. QA testing typically involves the
following: Marshall bulk sampling of the mix, Maximum Thearetical Specific Gravity and air void
calculations of the mix, and specific gravity testing of the cores. S&ME will review Job Mix Formulas
and submittals. S&ME can also perform inspection of asphalt plants as necessary.

Utility Pipe Backfill — Our personne! can perform in-place density tests of backfill soils within the
pipe utility trenches. Field density testing will be performed by the nuclear method (ASTM D6938)
and / or the sand cone method (ASTM D1556). Soil moisture testing will be performed by the nudear
method (ASTM D6538). In addition, we will perform one-point Proctors in the field to confirm and /
or adjust the laboratory modified Proctor moisture / dry density values, as appropriate.

Reporting — Our personnel will prepare daily field reporis. These reports will summarize our field
personnel’s preliminary obsetvations and testing results. This infarmation will be transmitted ta cur
office, reviewed by an S&ME praject manager, and issued in a formal report, when applicable.

S&ME will assign a Project Manager to be committed to aversight of our services during construction of
the project. All test data will be reviewed by the Project Manager and formal reports will be submitted to
the appropriate parties.

EXCLUDED SERVICES

Unless the scope of work outlined in this proposal is modified in writing, the following items are
specifically excluded from our Scope of Services.

S&ME, Inc.



Prepasal for Construction Materials Acceptance Testing hme 15, 2016
Delta Airport Consultants, Inc. Page 3

Asphalt observations/testing in the field during paving operations, and obtaining asphalt cores. We
understand the asphalt subcontractor will perform their own quality control testing during placement
and that any additional tests will be performed by others. If any of these services are required, please
contact us so that we can madify this proposal, or provide an additional proposal, for these services.

+  Directing of any contractor’s or subcontractor's work.

#  Any aspect of site safety other than safety of S&ME employees.

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES
We ask that you be responsibie for the following:

Plans and Specifications — Provide us with current project plans and specifications, including any
revised or additional drawings/directives that are produced during construction of the project.

Scheduling — Provide us with the name of the individual who will be respensible for scheduling and
directing our testing services. Provide, or instruct your appointed representative to provide, a
minimum 24-hour notice for our services. When our services will be needed on weekends and/or
holidays (Memorial Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve,
Christmas Day, and New Year's Day), we require a minimum 48-hour notification.

Report Distribution - Provide us with all applicable names and addresses for report distribution.

Orientation or Passes — We understand security badging is required by the airport. Please provide
us with contacts to schedule these safety classes and orientation. Time and expenses for these itemns
will be billed at the unit rates shown on the cost estimate.

COMPENSATION

Costs for testing services will be based on actual quantities of work performed and the attached unit rates.
We have based our cost estimate on project documents, past experience with similar scale projects and
our understanding of the contract time for construction of the runway and taxiway. We have estimated a
total testing cost of approximately $114,000. To break this up, we would estimate: $75,000 for the runway
and $29,000 for the taxiway. Please note that the total testing cost is dependent on many factors, and is
significantly influenced by the actual construction schedule. If the actual construction schedule varies from
that provided, the total cost for testing services will also vary. We will not exceed the estimated testing
fee without your authorization.

Please note that our invoice payment terms are 30-days net. Once a contract is agreed upon and you
receive our first invoice, we ask that you verify our invoice headings, descriptions, and mailing address to
assure prompt payment.

** AUTHORIZATION

This Our Agreement for Services (Form AS-071) is attached and is incorporated as a part of this proposal.
Please indicate your acceptance of our proposal by signing the forms and retuming them to our office.
We will execute both and return one copy for your files. We will then proceed with the performance of
services,

S&ME, Inc.



Proposal for Construction Materials Acceptance Testing June 15, 2016
Deita Airpart Consultants, Inc. Page 4

H you elect to accept our proposal by issuing a purchase order, then pleass reference this proposal
number and date. Your purchase order will be an acceptance of our Agreement of Services and an
authorization to proceed with the performance of our services. The terms and conditions induded in any
purchase order shall not apply, as our agreement is for services that are not compatible with purchase
order agrecments,

If this proposal is transmitted to you via emall, and if you choose to accept this proposal by email, your
reply email acceptance will serve as your representation to S&ME that you have reviewed the proposal
and the associated Agreement for Services (Form AS-071) and hereby accept both as writter.

This proposal is solely intended for the basic services as described in the Scope of Services. The Scope of
Services may not be modified or amended uniess the changes are first agreed to by the client and S&ME.
Use of this proposal and resulting documents, induding final report is limited to the above referenced
project and dient. No other use is authorized by SBIME.

%+ CLOSURE

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you on this
project. If you have any questions conceming information presented herein, please contact us at your
convenience,

Sincerely,
SBME, Inc.
2%%71’
Eric 3. Shaffer, P.E.
Senior Project Manager
Senior Engineer Review: John R, Browning, P.E
Attachments:  Cost Estimate

AASHTO Accreditation
Agreement for Services, Form AS-071

S&ME, Inc.



WSS S S &IME

Charlottesvifle- Albamarie Airport
Runway 3-21 Rehabilitation
Charlottesville, VA 22911
34-1600225

I F-152 Esrthwork (umclassified excavation 5600 CY)

3 Technivias 6 daysX 8 ‘thwidayX $ 6500 /bowr H 3,120.00

b. Technician OT; 6 daysX 2 hidayX $  97.50 /howr s 1,170.00

¢  Technician (sample pickap); 1 daysX 8 hsiayX § 6500 Mow s 520.00

& 5ol - (Proztar) - Modified Effort; esch 2 seopleX  $ 22500 Jesch s 450.00

e PecDiem 6 X $ 13500 /dsy s 810.00

f  TrpChamges 2 mpsX $ 70000 fuip } 1,400.00
Subtotsl: § 747000

IL  P-154 Base Cenrse (1,080 CY)

a.  Technician; 3 daysX 8  hsfdayX $ 6500 Mour 5 1,560.00

b.  Technician OT; 3 daysX 2 hrddayX § 9750 fhowr s 585.00

¢ Soil - (Prociar) - Modified Effory; each I smpkX § 22500 feach 5 22500

d. PerDiem 3 X $ 13500 iday $ 405.00

¢ Trip Charges 1 wipsX 5 700.00 fuip [ 700.00
Subtotel: § 347500

I P-481 Asphalt (48000 tons- includes 1 day test strip and plant inspection)

a  Asphalt Leb Technician; 50 daysX 8  bhrsidayX § 7500 fhour S 30,000.00

b Techuician OT; 50 daysX 2 befdayX $ 11250 fhowr s 1125000

¢. PerDiem S0 b ¢ $ 13500 /day s 6,750.00

d.  Trip Charges 25 tmpsX $ 70000 /irip 5 17,500.00
Sabtotal: § 65,500.00

1V. P-403 Asphalt (8000 tons- includes 1 day test strip)

2. Asphalt Eab Technician; 9 daysX B MesldsyX § 7500 /hour $ 5,400.00

b.  Techoician OT; 9 daysX 2 hesidsyX § 11250 /bour 5 2,025.00

c. PerDiem 9 X § 13500 fday s 1,215.00

d.  Trip Charges 4 wipsX $ 70000 frip 3 2,800.00
Subtotal: § 11,440.00

V. Pipe Backfili (2000 LF)

a.  Teshnician; 8 daysX 8§ frsidayX $ 6500 fhowr s 4,160.00

b.  Technician OT; 8 daysX 2 lusidiyX § 9750 /howr s 1,560.00

«. PerDiem 8 X $ 13500 /day s 1,080.00

d.  Trip Charges 2 mipsX $ 70000 Arip s 1,400.00
Subtotal: § 8,200.00

VL Support Staff

8. Seaior Professional P5; 50 thousX § 17500 /hour 3 8,750.00

b.  Administrative Support: 40 hoursX § 5000 fhowr s 2,000.00

. Senior Geoterhnjeal Fngineer Site Visits P4; 4 visisX  $1,750.00 feach 5 7,000.00
Sublotal: § 17,750.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: § 113,835.00



ROUDABUSH, GALE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

) . L PROFESIORAL CORBOQAE 1
LAKD SURVENTNG 1t ]

g = Serove Vs rr S
Liv\gﬁ?mc 914 B1ON TICELLO ROAD
CHARLOTTESH LE VIRGINTA
‘ﬂ”'l
\WILLIAM | EEDRETTER LS
CHRISYOPHER C MULLIGAN, PE

AMMY M GEORGE LA

June 15, 2016

Mrs. Susan Winslow

Delta Airport Consultants, Inc.
9711 Farrar Comt, Suite 100
Richmond, Virginia 23236

Re: Request for proposal: Construction and As-Built Surveys Runway 3-21 Rehab

Dear Mrs. Winslow,

FPHONE (439 977-0205
EAX (£34) 296-5220
INFOgROUDABUSH . COM

J CLINT HARMON, LS
DAVID A JORDAN, LS
BRIAN I, JAMISON, LS,

§

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with surveying services for your upcoming project.

Please see proposal below.

1. Taskl

Runway on Call: Provide Survey Services as necessary from 11:00 pm-5:00 am

Field Surveying 80 Hours at $206/lir = $16,480
Office Computations 40 Hours at $110/hr = $4,400

*Light Rentals As necded at $313/night*

2. Task2

Taxiway on Call: Provide Survey Services as necessary dwing normal operating hours.
Field Surveying 40 Hours at $155/hr = $6,200
Office Computations 20 Hours at $110/hr =$2,200



3. Task3
Runway As-Builts-Provide cross sections on a 50 interval of Ranway 3-21 from station
8+00 — 80+00. Work will be performed from 1:00 to 5:00 am. (2 crews, 6 hours per night

for 5 nights)
Field Surveying 60 Hours at $206/hr = $12,360
Office Computations ¢ Hours at $110/hr = $660

4, Task4
Taxiway As-Builts-Provide cross sections on a 50° interval of taxiways A,C,F, and G.

Field Smrveying 32 Hours at $155/hr = $4,960
Office Compntations 4 Hours at $110/hr = §440

5. Tasks
Provide locations of new drainage structures and ditches.

Field Surveying 16 Hours at $155/hr = $2,480
Office Computations 4 Hours at $110/hr = $440
Price Breakdown
Field Surveying (day) 88 Hours at $155/hr = $13,640
Field Surveying (night) 140 Hours at $206/hr = $28,840
Office Computations 74 Hours at $110/hr = $8,140
*Light Rental (5 nights)*=$1,575
Total Price to provide fieldwork and office computations = $52,195
*Additional Light Rental may be required for on czll work and s not included i this proposs!*
Roudabush Gale & Associates is in compllance with Title Vi Assurances.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quote and we look farward to warking with you on this
project. If you have any questions do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

Brian Jamison

P



VAF

WOOLPERT

June 17, 2016

Susan Winslow, P.E.

Delta Airport Consultants, Inc.
9711 Farrar Court, Suite 100
Richmond, VA 23236

RE: Response to Request for As-Built AGIS Survey for Runway 63-21 Rehabilitation at
the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Dear Ms. Winslow:

Wocalpert Inc. appreciates the opportunity to propose on Surveying and Mapping
services at the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport, in Charlottesville, Virginia.

Woolpert understands the requiremnents for obtaining the necessary airport survey
entities as part of the tasks for runway as-built surveys. | hope that the information
below will assist you in identifying Woolpert as the most capable firm for this project.

Woolpert has been providing professional surveying services since 1911 and GPS
services since 1987. Our history of aviation services spans an entire century—dating
back to work performed for Orville Wright. The depth of our services includes projects
for the military, public and private airports, airport tenants, the FAA, state aviation
departments, and private developers. Consider the benefits of working with an
established professional services consulting firm that is an innovator in Information
Technology, Geographic Information Systems (GIS), and Surveying/Global Positioning
Systems (GPS). Woolpert is an industry leader in these fields and is nationally
recognized for our performance in meeting our clients’ needs. With a staff of over 650
professional and technical personnel to draw from, Woolpert can dedicate the
appropriate expertise and resources to meet the needs of your project.




June 17, 2016

Page 2

As ane of the nation’s most distinguished geospatial services firms, Woalpert has
worked with both the FAA and the NGS on the development of the FAA Airports GIS
System. Woolpert has worked hard at developing solid working retationships with the
FAA at many levels, including the ADOs, Regional Offices and at Headquarters, which
will be extremely valuable given the time sensitive nature of this project. Woolpert
has worked directly with the FAA in the development of Airport GIS (AGIS) and
national geospatial standards (Advisory Circulars 150/5300-16A, -17C, and -188) and
also worked closely with the FAA Office of Airports to develop the FAA's first web-
based, geaspatial training program (IDLE) on the three AGIS Advisory Circulars for use
throughout the aviation industry. Woolpert currently has 21 staff available and who
have campleted the advanced IDLE Level ifl training, providing Delta Airport
Consultants with the level of expert knowledge necessary to successfully complete this
praject and any subsequent fitiatives.

- . vesara

Over the past decade, the . .= =
demand for new geospatial data o R TR Lt ;
for instrument approach Fea 2t .-.; i TR

procedures, and facility AR TR

management has increased TN TR Rl

significantly and Woolpert has '%— s B8 g

completed similar projects at = AR L

more than 1200 airports in 47 =R e

different states. The majority of R

this work has been provided in - R

direct support of the FAA’s Air I

Traffic Organizations (ATO), T, RS —=
i:t::‘['&‘:v“ﬂgf;‘;tf&mtem Woolpert WAAS - LPV Projects (2005-2012)

program office but also includes successful support to multiple state aviation
departments, airport sponsors, military installations and consultants across the
country and overseas. Our experience on the technical components of this project,
accompanied by strong relationships with multiple stakeholders in the FAA wilt benefit
the schedule and cost of this project, in conjunction with speedier approval of
deliverables and the ability to directly connect with the right people if the need
arises.

I hope that the attached Scope of Services and Fee proposal will describe the work to
be performed, as well as assist you in identifying Woolpert as the most qualified firm
for this project and how it will benefit Delta Airport Consultants and the airport.

Thanks again for the opportunity and please feel free to contact me if you have any
questions.

11301 CARMEL COMMONS BOULEVARD, SUITE 300 } CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704.525.6284 | WOOLPERT.COM



June 17, 2016

Page 3

Sincerety,

WOOLPERT, INC.

Fod 7 o 7

Paul F. Akers, PSM Thomaz F. Mochty, PS

Project Manager Awatxon Practice Leader
Senior Vice Presidant

Attachments

11301 CARMEL COMMONS BOULEVARD, SUITE 300 | CHARLOTTE, NC 28226
704.525.6284 | WOOLPERT.COM



SCOPE OF SERVICES —GIS As-BUILT SURVEY AT
CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE AIRPORT (CHO) IN
CHARLOTTESVILLE, VIRGINIA

The surveying and mapping information collected during this project will be used for Airport
Construction As-Builts. The project includes the collection of data at Charlottesville-Albemarle
Airport (CHO) in Charlottesville, Virginia.

Delta Airport Consultants is requesting an asrial survey and mapping to provide as-built
planimetric and topographic data. It is understood that this survey is required to be in compliance
with FAA AC 150/5300-16, 17, and 18. Planimetric data and contour intervals of 1’ will be
produced for the runway and taxiway construction areas as depicted on the mapping limits exhibit
below.

The project work flow is summarized as follows where each milestone will initiate the
completion of the following tasks:

1. Establishment of the necessary photo control.

2. Acquisition of stereo aerial imagery.

3. Compile base mapping (topographic and planimetric) with 1 foot contour intervals for the
runway and taxiway construction areas as depicted in the mapping limits below.

4. Development of AutoCAD deliverables (Delta CAD standards and 18B compliant)

The tasks identified above list the major milcstones of the data development and delivery process.
In completing those tasks, the following technical steps will be completed. Woolpert will be
completing these technical tasks in order to provide Delta Airport Consultants with the geospatial
information they require for as-built/record survey purposes.

Woolpert understands that the Airport is planning to rehabilitate Runway 03/21. Delta Airport
Consultants is requesting an acronautical survey that meets or exceeds the standards outlined in
the FAA Advisory Circulars 150/5300-16A, -17C and -18B. The survey specifications utilized
will adhere to the requirements for a Construction - Airside Survey, per Advisory Circular
150/5300-18B, Chapter 2.6, Section 2.6.1.

AC 150/5300-18B 3.2 Advantages of Data Compliance

"Complying with these standards provides the airport sponsor the opportunity to “clean house”
and properly classify the data they maintain. These specifications provide the framework for
developing and maintaining the data about the airport so it can be shared with the FAA and other
users. Complying with these specifications provides the following benefits to the sponsor.”

Uniform data distribution procedure complying with FAA requirements

Clear digital distribution methods for airport staff to consistently use

Flexibility to meet changing expectations and technical requirements of end-users
Creating documentation and data-quality information for the data sets

L I s @



* Automate the distribution methods o the greatest extent possible so the data can be
delivered on demand

¢ Available “raw™ data can be quickly implemented into other projects and used
appropriately (i.e. documentation)

Survey Specifications and Standards

'I'heaixpurtcolledionofaetialimagcryofthesurveymwiﬂbeperformedinanootdaneewith
the appropriate FAA guidance. All survey data collected by the Consultant/Surveyor will mest
the accuracy requirements in the current Advisory Circulars AC 150/5300 as listed below. All
data will be in the proper format for the National Geodetic Survey (NGS) to validate the accuracy
and approve the collected data:

'+ Federsl Aviation Admiristration, ddvisory Circular: General Guidance and
Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys: Establishment of Geodetic Control and
Submission to the National Geodetic Survey. AC No. 150/5300-16A. ‘Washington:
February 13, 2006. Herein referred to as AC-16A.

*+ Federal Aviation Administration. Advisory Circular: General Guidance and
Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys: Airport Imagery Acquisition and Submission to
the National Geodetic Survey. AC No. 150/5300-17C. Washington: September 30, 2011.
Herein referred to as AC-17C.

+ Federal Aviation Administration. Advisory Circular: General Guidance and
Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys to NGS: Field Data Collection and Geographic
Information System (GIS) Standards. AC No. 150/5300-18B. Waghington: May 21,
2009. Hereln referred to as AC-18B.

Survey Scope of Work
Task 1.1: Planning and Preparations

Woolpert will perform research on all available acronautical websites, including but not limited to
AVN, AirtNAV and NASR. Research will also be performed on all NGS geodetic control marks
within the area. Woolpert will also coordinate with the airport manager or appropriate facility
staff to schedule the survey and all airside activities.

Task 1.2: Geodetic Control Survey

Woolpert will perform field reconnaissance of the existing control in an attempt to recover all
existing control within the immediate area of the airport while paying particular attention to
highly stable and undisturbed High Accuracy Reference Network {HARN) stations and Second
Order, Class II or better vertical benchmarks. A full recovery log, digital photographs, and
DDPROC recovery description will be developed for each recovered station whether the station is
included in the GPS survey or not.

As part of our initial research for Primary and/or Secondary Airport Control Stations
(PACS/SACS), we reviewed the National Spatial Reference System (NSRS) database for
evidence of existing geodetic control on the airfield. CHO does possess geodetic control marks
published as PACS and SACS. These marks will be utilized for the basis of control.



Task 1.3 Photogrammetric Control Survey

The aerial data collection process begins with the establishment of ground control to support the
aerial mapping, obstruction analysis and the orthophotography rectification. The field crews will
install control targets with paint or reflective material, or will find photo identifiable (PID)
locations visible in the imagery. All ground control locations will be determined based upon the
optimum location, quality, and accuracy for controlling the aero-triangulation solution.

Task 1.4: Runway Surveys

Woolpert will perform measuring the centerline profile of the runways. The profiles will be
reduced to points at 10 foot stations along the centerline of ranway 03/21 and will also include 10
foot offsets to either side of the inway centexlines. The profile survey and deliverables will be
conducted in accordance to AC-18B.

If an existing ranway endpoint monument does not already exist at each runway end for runway
03/21, a survey nai! and washer, pre-stamped with the letters “WOOLPERT 2016” will be set to
aid in future identification. A field recovery sketch and five digital photographs as required by
AC-18B will be developed for each runway end, displaced threshold, and stop-way. Woolpert
will determine runway lengths from the positions of the runway end points using NGS’
INVERSE3D software. Runway lengths will be computed while at the airport and will also be
compared to the lengths published in the airport facility directory.

Task 1.5: Navigation Aids (NAVAIDS) Inventory

Woelpert will identify and survey all newly constructed electronic and visual NAVAIDs located
within the Mapping Limits as depicted below, along with their associated runway abeam points as
required in AC-18B.

Woolpert will determine the horizontal and/or vertical positions of each NAVAID using
conventional total station surveys, RTK GPS, Static GPS, or a combination thereof,

Task 1.6: Aerial Imagery Acquisition and Geo-referencing

Aerial imagery is required for both Quality Control (QC) purposes and efficient feature
extraction. The Woolpert photogrammetry team will develop a flight plan, coordinate the
acquisition of the photography, process and utilize the imagery.

Woolpert photogrammetrists will build a flight layout based on the specifications outlined in the
RFP and after reviewing topographic/planimetric mapping limits for CHO.

The photography flight crew will collect the imagery as defined in the flight layout,
encompassing the mapping limits as described below. The planned imagery will be collected at
1’ =300" photo scale. After the processing and development of the aforementioned serial
photography, the imagery will be scanned for use in a softcopy environment. The scanned image
will be checked for completeness, cleanliness, and image quality at the workstation and will
conform to Intel TIFF (continuous tone raster graphics/non-compressed) file format,



The scanned image will then be geo-referenced (acrinl-iriangulated) in soft-copy format to fix the
imagery to reel-world cocrdinates by utilizing the previcusly est=blished ground control features
or targets. Once the imagery is geo-referenced, ke stereo models produced will be utilized for
obstruction analysis and mapping.

Task 1.7: Obstruction Analysis
Not Included.

Task 1.8: Ortho Imagery

Woolpert shall provide two copies of ortho-rectified imagery in 0.25 ft/pixel resolution for the
eatire project area. Orthophotography data will be provided in the following formats; TIFF format
raster files accompanied by TFW image header files. In addition, Woolpert will provide four
copies of 17=400", 40" x 40” enlargements from e high altitude spot shot of the airport property.

In support of the data collection efforts and govemment photogrammetric analysis and
acceptability determination, Woolpert will acquire and submit the required deliverables as
specified in AC 150/5300-17C “General Guidence and Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys:
Airport Imagery Acquisition and Submission to the National Geodetic Survey.” Woolpert will
collect digital stereo aerial imagery covering the entire area of analysis including required sidelap
and overlap. Woolpert will deliver a final imagery acquisition report for both existing and
proposed prajects to the NGS for acceptance. The imagery will be used by the NGS for
government verification ensuring the survey data adheres to the quality requirements set forth by
FAA AC 150/5300-18B. Submission of field data will not occur without NGS ASP acceptance
of aerial imagery.

Task 1.9: Reporting and Deliverable Development

Table 2 provides a breakdown of the deliverable requirements defined in the Advisory Circulars
and the scope of this project. The National Geodetic Survey (NGS) will receive copies of
deliverables for validation of the survey. Due to the staggered deliveries required, they have been
placed in order and the triggers for each are identified,

Table 2: Required Deliverables

Deliverable Imitiation Information Comments

Outlines the project tasks and deliverables to be

Statement of Work | Official Notice to Procesd, or completed. Delivered to the FAA GIS system via

Sow) Execution of contract the web portal.
Survey Work and . ) Defines survey and project operation details and
Quality Control Official Notice to Proceed, or quality control practices, Delivered to the FAA

Execution of contract

Plan GIS system via the web portal.

Defines technical aspects for acquisition of the
stereo aerial phatography. Delivered to the FAA
GIS system via the web portal.

| Imagery Acquisition | Official Notice to Proceed, or
Plan Execution of contract




—__

e . Required for the NGS to use dining the validation
Am"g‘“";‘m" Cosplation i::“‘ of the survey data submitted to the FAA via
Po Triangul extemal hard drive.
Completien of imagery The report is 8 compilation of project susmmary and
Final Project Report | znalysis and reducticns of all digital data collected during the survey project.
survey data. Delivered to FAA GIS system viz the web portal,
The survey data collected during the survey project
Digital Data Completion of imagery will be formatted to allow the data to be digested
Delive amalysis and reductions of all | directly into the FAA's Airport GIS system via the
Ty survey data. web portal. Submitted simultancous to Final
Surveyor Report.

All data submissions to the FAA will be through the prograim’s web site at http://airports-
gis.fag.gov. Imagery will be subumitted directly to NGS at the address listed in AC 150/5300-17C
on an appropriately labeled recordable media such as CD, DVD, portable hard drive etc., with the
label identifying the airport and company contact information.

Task 1.10: Topographic and Planimetric mapping

Woolpert will collect imagery which will be utilized to pravide 1"=30" scale digital terrain model
(DTM) and planimetric mapping and 1* contours for the area depicted in the mapping limits
exhibit below.

The features collected will be delivered in Delta CAD standards format and AC-18B compliant
features. Woolpert technicians then verify that the raw data meels or exceeds the applicable
ASFRS Class I, and that the generated contours are consistent with the DTM data.

Task 1.11: 18B Compliant Mapping Feature Attribution

The topographic and planimetric mapping created in Task 1.10 above will be supplemented by
ground surveys and the resulting features will be translated to the Geographic Information System
- GIS format in accordance with AC-18B. Basic Features as required in Table 2-1 from AC
150/5300-18B (see Appendix A) within the FAA standards will be extracted from the imagery
and ground surveys. Woolpert will not be responsible for population of attribution outside of
basic feature description. The volume of attributes defined in the FAA GIS standards is not
exclusively collectable from cither field or imagery acquisition. Woolpert will provide well
defined and visible attributes for all features collected as part of the FAA GIS compliant mapping
submittal. Catculable attributes will also be provided for each feature and included in the final
data set,







Task 1.12: Collect and Format Master Plan Data to AGIS Standards
Not included.

Task 1.13: Airport Mapping (field locations)

Not included.

Task 1.14: Set PACS and SACS

Not included.

Project Schedule

Project will be completed within ninety (90) days from imagery acquisition.,

The Survey will comply with the Delta Airport Consultants Request for
Propesal:

As Built AGIS Surveys

Runway 3/21 Rehabilitation

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

AIP Project No. 3-51-0004 Pending

Dated: June 9, 2016



e ——

APPENDIX A: COST ESTIMATE

Estimate
Task Description Fez Estimate

1.1 - Planning and Preparations $6,300.00
1.2 — Geodetic Control Survey $3,700.00
1.3 — Photogrammetric Control Survey $3,200.00
1.4 - Runway Surveys $1,700.00
1.5 - NAVAID Survey $500.00
1.6 — Aerial Imagery Acquisition and Geo-referencing $7,200.00
1.7 — Obstruction Analysis nfa
1.8 - Ortho Imagery and Deliverables $4,200.00
1.9 — Deliverable Development $3,800.00
1.10 — Topographic and Planimetric Mapping $5,800.00
1.11 - 18B Compliant Mapping Feature Attribution $4,500.00
1.12— Collect and Format Master Plan Data to AGIS Standards n/a
1.13 — Airport Mapping (field locations) Wa
Direct Expenses 3,300.00

Total=| $44,600.00




TALBERT & BRIGHT

WORK AUTHORIZATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A, C,E, & G
Inspection (RPR) Services
ALTERNATE |

Work Authorization No.: 16-02
June 27, 2016
TBI Project No.: 2215-1602

It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of
our Contract for Professional Services.

Description of Work Authorization: Talbert & Bright shall provide Professional Services
as described in the attached Scope of Services.

Time Schedule: The schedule for the above referenced work shall be completed per
the attached Scope of Services.

Cost of Services: The method of billing and payment for Professional Services shall be
in accordance with the attached Scope of Services.

Approved:

"I_:or: Charlottesville-Albemarle
Airport Authority

Title: F"\L{-“( Lﬂ:\w h N C( 10— Title: ce President
&Mﬁm‘mf 27 20\ Date: September 28, 2016
oo oL b //P( AL

Witness; ) Witie:«:s

2215-1602 WA Cover ALT Ldoex ALTI



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Project Title: Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A, C,E & G -
Inspection (RPR) Services
ALTERNATE1

Project Location:  Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Prepared For: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

TBI Project No.:  2215-1602

Date: September 2, 2016

Deseription:

Construction of the project will include the rehabilitation of Runway 3-21 and Taxiways A, C, E
& G - ALTERNATE 1 as shown on the plans developed by Delta Airport Consultants identified

as Project No. 13057,

Services:

A) Preliminary (Phase 01) will include scope of work preparation, coordination with and
development of the independent fee review package, and attendance at one (1) pre-
construction meeting

B) Construction Administration (Phase 06) will include the following services during the 180

calendar day construction project, review of daily/weekly FAA reports, construction
correspondence, 4 construction observation visits and 4 reports, as well as calls/coordination
with the Resident Project Representatives (RPR). The other tasks not mentioned here that are
included in Attachment 1 — Manhour and Fee Estimate for which zero hours are assigned are
not included in this scope of services and will not be performed without an amendment to
this scope of services agreed upon and executed by both the airport sponsor and Talbert &
Bright.

C) Resident Project Representative (Phase 51) will provide full-time Field Inspection will be

TALBERT & BRIGHT

during the construction and for the verification of quantities relative to the contractors pay
requests. Field Inspection will include:

¢ Insuring that critical phases of the work are completed in accordance with applicable
plans and specifications.

Coordinating the Contractor’s activities with the Owner and Engineer.

Coordinating daily records of construction activities and preparing inspection reports.
Review the contractor’s pay requests for accuracy.

Attend all on-site meetings and attend final and punch list inspections.

Project close out reports and documentation.

It is anticipated that two inspectors will be utilized to cover the anticipated daytime and
nighttime work requirements.

Page 10f2

2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Scope ALT I 2016-09-02.docx



'SCOPE OF SERVICES

D) Subconsultant Services
* No subconsultant services are anticipated for this Scope of Services.

E) Invoicing will be completed monthly based on services rendered and/or estimated percentage
complete. See Attachment 1 for project fees.

F) Schedule: Anticipated Project Milestones are noted below:

e  Work Authorization Approval Summer 2016
* Notice to Proceed Summer 2017

G) Attachments:

e Attachment 1 Manhour & Fee Estimate

TALBERT & BRIGHT - o Page 2 of 2
2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Scope ALT I 2016-09-02.docx



TALBERT & BRIGHT

MANHOUR ESTIMATE - ALTERNATE I
Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A,C.E, & G - Inspection (RPR) Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.; 2215-1602

September 2, 2016
PHASE DESCRIPTION PRIN PMGR ENG3 TCH5 PMA3

01 PRELIMINARY
Scope of work preparation
Request for proposals & coordination with subs
Grant applications
Coordinate independent fee review
Coordinate construction contracts
Pre-construction meeting (1)
Prepare and distribute meeting minutes
SUBTOTAL

NMooomwmoow
hlowowo oa
Slococococooco
VDoooocoow
Alocomvwooha

L

06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
Construction management program
Review general construction item submittals
Review daily/weekly FAA reports
Review field modification proposals
Construction correspondence
Calls/coordination with RPR and Contractor
Coordinate with state/local inspectors
Coordinate with geotechnical inspector
Review geotechnical testing reports
P-401 submittal review
Compute/verify percent within limits
Review contractor pay requests (#)
Process certified payroll (#)
Construction observation site visits (4)
Construction observation reports (4)
Final inspection
Punchlist inspection
Regulatory Permit Coordination (Photos, Reports)
Coordinate with surveyor (as-built)
Review as-built survey for grade verification
Record drawings
Process reimbursement requests FAA & DOAV (#)
Final report
DBE reports
FAA quarterly reports
Grant administration & project closeout 0
SUBTOTAL 6

[
NOOOOCT

QWO oo
L

w

MO ODSDOoOCoCcOoOO o

DQOOOOOOOOOOOOANOOOO
(75

OQOOQOOOOOOW&OOOOOQO

[¥.]
L"OOOOOOQOOOOW&-OOOOOOQOWOOOO

>
Noooooocooo oo w
Ty,
Wy
a

Qo

File: 2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Manhours ALT 1 2016-09-02 xisx
Sheet: MANHOURL Attachment 1-1



TALBERT & BRIGHT
FEE ESTIMATE
Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A,C.E, & G - Inspection (RPR) Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
TBI Project No.: 2215-1602
September 2, 2016
PHASE DESCRIPTION

01 PRELIMINARY

DIRECT LABOR RATE MANHOURS AMOUNT
Principal PRIN $ 184.00 4 $ 736.00
Project Manager PMGR $ 172.00 14 $ 2,408.00
Engineer Il ENG3 $ 103.00 0 $ -
Technician V TCHS $ 98.00 2 $ 196,00
Administrative PMA3 $ 108.00 6 $ 648.00
SUBTOTAL 3 3,988.00
01 PRELIMINARY
DIRECT EXPENSE RATE UNITS AMOUNT
Travel M $ 0.54 500 5 270.00
Copying EA $ 0.25 0 $ -
Reproduction EA $ 3.00 0 $ -
Shipping/Postage MO $ 50.00 1 $ 50.00
Tolls,Meals,Supplies MO $ 50.00 1 $ 50.00
SUBTOTAL 3 370.00
06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
DIRECT LABOR RATE MANHOURS AMOUNT
Principal PRIN $ 184.00 6 $ 1,104.00
Project Manager PMGR 3 172.00 86 $ 14,792.00
Engineer Il ENG3 $ 103.00 82 $ 8,446.00
Technician V TCHS $ 98.00 15 $ 1,470.00
Administrative PMA3 § 108.00 39 $ 4,212.00
SUBTOTAL $ 3002400
06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
DIRECT EXPENSE RATE UNITS AMOUNT
Travel MI $ 0.54 1,000 $ 540.00
Copying EA $ 0.25 100 $ 25.00
Reproduction EA $ 3.00 12 b 36.00
Shipping/Postage MO $ 50.00 6 $ 300.00
Tolls,Meals,Supplies MO $ 50.00 6 $ 300.00
SUBTOTAL 3 1,201.00
21 FIXED FEE - RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
FIXED FEE ESTIMATE ADMIN AMOUNT
Resident Project Rep EA $ 330,000.00 15% $  49,500.00
SUBTOTAL $  49,500.00

File: 2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Manhours ALT I2016-09-02.xIsx
Sheet: FEE1 Attachment 1-2



TALBERT & BRIGHT

MANHOUR ESTIMATE - RPR

Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A,C.E, & G - Inspection (RPR) Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.: 2215-1602

September 2, 2016

PHASE DESCRIPTION CAL DAYS RPR
180

51 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
Preconstruction activities 40
Project Inspection - RPR 1 Hours/CD: 12 2,160
Project Inspection - RPR 2 Hours/CD: 12 2,160
Project closeout activities 40
SUBTOTAL 4,400

File: 2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Manhours ALT 12016-09-02 xlsx
Sheet: RFR HOUR Attachment 1-3



TALBERT & BRIGHT
FEE ESTIMATE - RPR
Rehabilitate Runway 3-21 & Taxiways A,C,E, & G - Inspection (RPR) Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
TBI Project No.: 2215-1602
September 2, 2016
PHASE DESCRIPTION

51 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECT LABOR RATE MANHOURS AMOUNT
Inspector RPR $ 75.00 4,400 $ 330,000.00
SUBTOTAL § 330,000.00

51 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECT EXPENSE RATE UNITS AMOUNT
PerDiem-RPR 1 PD $ 197.00 180 $ 35,460.00
Per Diem - RPR 2 PD $ 197.60 180 $ 35,460.00
Travel (Mob and DeMob) MI $ 0.54 1,000 $ 540.00
Copying EA 3 0.25 500 $ 125.00
Reproduction EA 3 3.00 50 $ 150.00
Shipping/Postage MO $ 50.00 6 $ 300.00
Tolls,Meals,Supplies MO $ 50.00 6 $ 300.00
SUBTOTAL 3 7233500

File: 2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Manhours ALT [ 2016-09-02.xIsx
Sheet; RPR FEE Attachment -4



TALBERT & BRIGHT

PROFESSIONAL FEE SUMMARY

Rehabilitats Rugway 3-21 & Taxiways A,C,E, & G - Inspection (RPR) Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.: 2215-1602

September 2, 2016

PHASE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
01 Preliminary LABOR $ 3,988.00
01 Preliminary EXPENSE $ 370.00
06 Construction Administration LABOR $ 30,024.00
06 Construction Administration EXPENSE $ 1,201.00
21 Resident Project Representative FIXED FEE $ 49,500.00

FIXED FEE TOTAL $  &85,083.00
PHASE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
51 Resident Project Representative LABOR $ 330,000.00
51 Resident Project Representative EXPENSE § 72,335.00

TIME & EXPENSE TOTAL 3 402,335.00

TOTAL PROJECT $ 487,418.00

File: 2215-1602 Runway Rehab RPR Manhours ALT 1 2016-09-02 xlsx
Sheet: SUMMARY Attachment 1-5



e CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A Il R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: November 16, 2016
SUBJECT: Action Item #3: Amended FY16 and FY17 Capital Budgets
RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to approve the FY16 and FY17 Capital Budgets as

amended.
BACKGROUND: In the previous FY16 and FY17 Capital Budget, the project for the

Runway and Taxiway Rehabilitation was phased over the two fiscal
years. The FAA was able to give the airport a grant for the entire
project in FY16. This means a shift in FAA entitlements as originally,
FY16 and FY17 entitlements were scheduled for the project. Now, only
FY16 entitlements are allocated to the project and the total project costs
needed to be moved to FY16. An escalator project was moved from
FY16 to FY17. The funding source changed for the heating and
cooling upgrade in FY17. A line item was added in FY17 for a skid
unit related to the all-terrain ARFF/EMS unit.

PRIOR ACTION: Previously approved budgets
FUNDING: As noted by the columns on the spreadsheets in Attachment #1

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  The FY16 Capital budget increased $2,783,847. The FY17 Capital
budget decreased $3,337,681.

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 FY16 and FY17 previous and amended capital budgets

PRESENTATION: None



918150 PaAoiddy pieog diov JA 9\1eBpng jendes /TA:\198png /102 Ad\sue}d jende) g sy=dpng\:N

i

i 1
i |
L ZRanQey

i B | PI2MICy PSlLES SUGLIBRUS YV
| §€0 626 1 81 AJ 10} SqE|/EAR SJUBLIGRIUS Y
I — m RS T PIBMIO] POLLED SRINGTINO VYT
%8 % | %0 LY "~ Toeg Thoor B T
6vZ'560" T svLloh 7 T TosZeve [ v2eae'y | 985'850' 1 T T
ooz’ 008’ “oog's T o8I epEuiENOD 8O0 6ild
000°0i T | 0000k ) - (sld) ABojouoe] Uil
0009 | ] 1 1 T | Tooe® - " lepeaidg siebje
ano'oy - T T e00'0F usuieoe|dey 8GN
000°FE - | 000 | 000'sg opeibdn wigishs Aunses
€6E'6 T T Teogz T N |"000°Zi ‘RuieAIdL] sBeupeq ier) abebteg
00vE i w " dog’eT m 600727 ! - aneday WieD ebubbeg
{008 — T | ooz'st N ['aco'st . - weuwdinbg Bufled pleyy
698'r | n T ™ i -l | E'es wiewidinbe Bugsa} UoRou) piepy
L w T T 777 Tooves (1Y =epIyeA Aigjes eomdaly
"000°0F | 000'0F T ‘ooo'es T T C T Vueuissede) ope) Sliay
00% T T T eeewr T T . 000’0z T TuosueiiaL} 2Auncy ajieilieqiy epeiBdn oipey
008 = i T = 000} - © T T buiforg eaomioid dduly weiiscsiday |
0087 _ _ AT T F I " 000'F1 suoeyy 185 Vi WSS YEOS
000 T | 1 - i 1 60008 . — Aprig Se835y ueinasped
| T Teedos ~ ~" ooo'os [ {uoniod YGAT 900G 1R0 IOWERIUZ 91818 |
"000'6Z e R B [ 00062~ “Yooq Biipiied sjEAelY pelieg 1553
o0 N T - - i | ood'oe E0lb oSl | e1BE JaLIIC] Jo LD[Se(] pUS SIEARLY
8961 ~ 'oriz0 T T T [ BRRECL T Bupiaajy Remx] Aemuny
0000y T [ooo'o9s” ) T | 00’002 T(ETAS YisTE/viAd Si028) BUEURASsaq o T ileawnu0 sng
 000°0E Bl " o00'02i - | 000'0S1 - _ 5188 (£} sioog eauBiuT
000'0§Z lwu T o 1000052 T oeyey Bupeorl
000002 i — 71 | oodoz " geuRY JaRINeg YL S8 euey
oz | doo'ar [_ o 00009 - - T Teiepd) Buigwng
00002k l 4 o008y T . | 000708 - § @980 Wisliece|doy winjEEoeT
0006z~ _ M | N | 000002 uBjsag- BUpET (o) 89eIB3/8SBIE] (FhOS PUe oN GeLaN
(dde D peu quiies ¥ees o) 0£2'086 - 0sZ'ev'y ¥2E'BLE'Y 08’208’ LU0 ~GBYSH ML B 128 MY
_ _ | | || 19102 Hv3A Tvosid
.. QWeNW3O0dd| INm os1a N3 _ osd T 1800 ___ loaroud
ALNGHLOY a1vis _ wvd vioL t L
i _ | # |
T T '/\._‘QU/UZ | [ av e
A ﬁ*Aw ‘Nufllf _ us(d jeyde 894 XS

AIMOHANY LYOJNIV I RIVWIE TS TIABILLOTUVHD

7




918150 paro.ddy pieog dIDV JA 9\1aBpng (exde) £TAI\I198pNg 2107 Ad\sueld |ende) g syedpng\:iN

T - _ _ PIBMIG) PAILIFO SIUBLIGRALS Yy
000 0002 1 Z1 Ad 10} O[qEHEAS SUSWERAS Yy
H] o T m - | I Esze POLUBD ejuRWSHRIS Yy
L L 1 —_— ||_.I . - | —_— | e
%EE %zl %1Z %0 ®iz %8 | %00} !
vei'elee #OoviL | 000'0002 - " oov'ovos T | GEFEl® | | 199'%66B i T
|
oodez I B T - o002z i T T Bayusng
L . S B S e
00z’ T 008zt [ [ T | ‘ool T {¥seH) reBuBH PU3 Wints
"oo0'glL . | I A [T oo T {eshouedid) BulLe) piO 6] wewesr|day g
00091 . T 000'v8 T _ | |0o0'08” h Jepao
00005 3 ) B _ - | doo'os . (Bliichnsai7iy-»5EI7BO8aS 10| V.ID
[ o000 “ [ . - {uBRiod YOA) SojAlg Jqeq WewsRIU e
000'0E i .fiA‘l ..... _ T T b0o'ce , - Tuatueosiar eredil]) spiuBA Wlipy SoRGEY
0002 000'F "o _ | ~Tooooe ” " puUNGIE GAOW! UBS) 10607 oSS PMS
0002 N ooz | T T | oo0'se i N SNV ueleL v
‘pin'se N T . N R au_ﬁ, OS5 P} sRiYen vGT Bupyig ece|day
KT — ooooy | Ooos WoUiBGRTRT Opel [eussq]
[y S ooo'dy i | ooo'os R “GEije) BSnoyBd PiD
0000z o00'c8 . . . T - 00000t [ T cumy/m Bupe jecoles Tesmionn
ooz | oo | T |J U T T T oo | T " g omeild opRIBdn) Wayshg Mpnoes
ooe U obo'os & ] T 5 oo | — SMOPLA - TiReopipoly (teug
000'$Z} [ i 4 L _ . oob'sek _ (wiesBo.d vais/Euppes) 15| Svwv
G0 — 00061 toegez T | I ’ T ooo’oez | JeuujeigInjoy oBpUG oT
aoSSm T .| | D ﬁ;‘fi'll T Tooooe [ - T AeaSiEAR pasened J8Q Euey
000001 ooooor | I e _ 506000 ~ i - T Z 98ild JeRueD
‘000021 .~| . [ooo'oey T T _. _ oo0'ode [ R H&Ea Pus Jawcy S5g ) § oU() epeiidn Bujoes pus BuResl
000'06F 7] [ 1T~ I _ _,momsv Blipted s163idg o)L pesanon
360708 looo'o2e T i | 000’00k _ N 7T [suonoss omy) syEmepis pasen)
000’0k L _ "~ 000'08% i T T T | 000'66L 7] uaongsuog-Bupised woy sse.BF/Esaib [noS PiiE LAION GEGeY
ooz | T T 1_ | moooz | 1ONSUGSUBIERE - I88s ALUOUCOR/q8ys BUPIBd 18/17
v86'E6 | uesiE E - B Y SUBGT 8BPUE UoRIeNboy FUET YOO Z 10 Weulkedey
0z'ele 000'000'Z pey'ess g89'z8l'e (NELg 03 dn) 48UOD - JBUSH ML B 128 MY
! 1ZM0Z MVAA VOSIS
| QuWE0dd | NS MRy N | osW | SO,
Eon:c.. [ m_?—m _ 7 - <<.~"_ T -
T N, VI VA LT 21 Ao
] \yi\miwﬂ, T /‘\/M*lr.l SR \# 2 . e 1ydeD 189 X
— Ao O Gy |




9T9TTT PajuUasald pieog dIDV JA 9\1a8png |euded LTAL\198png L10Z Ad\sueld jeude) @ s1e8png\:N

- ¥

| PIeMIC) BILLIED SUISLUBRALS Yy
| SEO6L61 91 Ad 10 O[qR{EAS SJUSWISRILG YW
T - g19'00v's l pIEAICS PalLIES SusWBHAUS VY
%L Iy %el TR T %0E %08 (%004 l-l -
e¥e'sze | eviOn " oov'ses’t = L  s8Lezv'L | eEvEraYL I.l o T T
002t oos's I . - 009’8 40j0e43 SlBL|WENe) [BaD) Bild
06004 il T _ ; _ 00004 7 (§ai) ABojounge] jeujiia L
000'9 =1 | i | [ 000 “ RPSRIE WWL ||
ooaoy [ 111_1 0c0'op - Waliiesgidey Jemo
000°}} 000FF i i _ 000'sS T epeifidh weisAs Gunoeg
6E'6 Too]l N A — 1 swoo. Il eweAssdil} abeujeiq lero sfEBieg
‘oov'e 1 © T Toog' 7 o0l areday unsd sbebieq
008t | m 00z'8s TTT 7 oeo'sl Wowdinb3 Bunuied plowY
oo _ac. W T wees T T - weuidihbe Buyae} uoRoL pieiiy
oogos  © | i - ~ 00608 T - (1Y SSMeA Aejes veidey
0000} ) .ﬁ i, oo T I " 000'08 WauISbE[dsT Gjpel sy
000 Teooek T — 77 000Gz .i (UsstieH Wo L] ZRiunes) syrewsdly speibdn opsy ™
008T 00704 R oog el - T Buinoi) eagasjold JHV Weuisoeldey
a8z~ | 00T 1v _ i I R T T " uIoEp e i BN VEOS
000'CE il I - | oo0'de e —— Torag sResdy Ueaeped
T ' 06008 [i. I T oooos T - {lopiod VAN 89j/AIeS 1080 IWeiUeRAUS oS
Goosz  ~ [ T I T [ o00'se 7 - %000 Bupied siskEly weueg w00
0008 T = leoeve T T I _ 1 u.oo%mw i ""B816 j601 |, ayee J61LI0] jo UBIBA pUs SEAEUY
I | “opi'ze | i\wd | v BUPIEI Aampa L Remuiy
oooab o000k | \u\z i 000’002 (61 A 515181 A4 5i0Z8) ul_%_s ni/uBisaq oueT k3 IBAVALD ‘sng
0000 000°021 e [ G [ c Soﬁ%rl 8198 {¢) 8i00Q soueqz
06006z , 1 SW@ = ﬁ.mlv U&« 00052 " GeueY BupeNsIL
oooooz T T _ u.ﬁ_J \M\JN .J 1 ﬁ\ | 000'00Z GPUaY 19jUncg Je3DIL B0 ey
00024 | 000'sY [ / T -1 . | 000’08 M - eiepdn Euquinig
000002 - * T I oy T 000002 _ uBisa(r- Buped Woy S9eIB5/esalBUl YINSS PUB RIoN qeyey
{dde 94d peU guIRI Hee8 ) GLI'BLE') - veral g8L'ezt'L ISL'181'eL A5U0Y - GBYRY ML B LZ-E MY
- _ _ _ L 19102 HV3A Vo8
|| duey )3 Odd N3 281Q ITE] o8ia 1809 _ 103roud
- MMOHIOY | | ToEvis ﬁ T wa T Ywiel - T ) o
T a i | [ woelid v | ~ ) Bl

usig |8die JBBA KIS

T ALMOHLNY LNOCYIY ITHYWABTV-ETIASILLOTHVHD




9TITTT PaYRSIId pieog dIDY JA 9\1a8png (exde) LTAJ\I198pNg £T0Z Ad\sueld jendes g s138png\:N

PBAI0) PAILIES SUSWIBARGS Yy
T 0000002 _ I A 16} Se|EAT SwueRue vy
- 1 T PIBAIG) PLLIES RJSUIGHIUS Yy
lllllll - | ! : | _ _ o
() %Ll T %EZ “1%0 %0 (860 %00} _
BLPEE 8Tiz's | oeg'ese’t  i- B B 9e8'vs0S | T
00z i T 00T - Bougeha
G0z " 5008 - T T $B580 WRIRIT T
002'¢” © 00521 7 = 00091 T T Tvesh) sibusy pug yifog |
oog'sy” T T [T 0009} (esndije.i) jBuuue . pIC 10) WiGLISIETOY 6D
0600'5H T T oodbe D B T i 866
00008 I 0008 < T | T T (Bidisaiyroaionscomees 15 V1D
000'08 _ - 00008 _ (Uapiod wGA] 6ojieg WET WeleRiLz Gas
0000E [ N i 000’08 (Usuisdeides BpdL] SBIHIA Ujlipy cosidey
Q601 '| doo'EF 00008 {pUnoIe @0 Lien) JepedT Jeg PG
002z ooe's 000'LL ALN Uisus) e S 104 Jun FRIS ST 2
000"z 000'ez L 000'sE | YN SWRLSYY UBLeL iy
000'EE e 4 T — Bpiyer G5 PIo) BMEA VOT Bunjiey eceidsl
0000l L | oo00s H N - R T
[ T L 2 - " ooo'os eI SRR BI0
000'0Z ) _ . | oon'go} T T dumi Bupe RG0S feseoRin)
o'z . ooo'os I - ~i'boo‘oot - Z @8l epeibdn WejsAs Ko
00002 " 00008 & " 000004 . T SMopuiA - UBHeagIsen ABisig
0005Z1 = T ) m - (WesBoxd yaiS/BUSRea) 131 Svvy
oo0r “Tozoer oes'sz” | 000002 - weuhEgnjey aBoug 18p
000008 I - i | Doo'ooe i ) T AemojjBAA PaIBAGD J83 ey
'z ooo'osr S 4 i b AT Bod'oos (schiifrd Bl 1owal OE | 9Ui)) 6piBan BuycoD pus BLjeaH
00000+ -\Tw MpUr) T ROW | T m s ~ :\v\ﬁ ~  |oooor T Bupieg sewds iS0[ paisncd
066G L R A Qe T T Ao o) simepls paierc
000'0Z1 000'08Y A i 000009 S G120 JuRwWeosdey sBEoey
000'0rL | ooo'oag ( , _ _ _ Bo.oR :éwé_ﬁa Wi} seexiafessiBy) ynog LB LRON ceuex
000'006T | ! [ 10000007 nasUcoFUBEs - beg AlllcToo3/aeNEy BUPEd T6/11
wizh — 7 e Ol 1T l_‘; | iz _ - susc] oBpE UoRSIBaY PUET YOOA € 10 Heuikeday
‘ T1 B T N | . M0z UvEA ¥ould
| | ueNwIoad | INA | o8l __ AN3_ os@ | ___1sod N o _ 103roud
ALIHOHLAY Jivie Wi qvior
e e _J_ . - _
| ] [wgay |
- _ _-}.IIITI R _i ! Ueid TmydBO 0L XS |

ALMOHLAY 1804 318VWIS T3 TIABILLONNYHD




-/ CHO

CHARLOTTESVILLE ALBEMARLE

A R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: November 16, 2016
SUBJECT: Action Item #4 — Ratify the approval of the Construction

Administration Work Order and Project Inspection Fees — Parking

Step Project
RECOMMENDATION: The Board ratifies the approval of the work order for Talbert

& Bright for construction administration in the not-to-exceed amount of $63,529 and
approval of project inspection fees to be performed by the airport’s seasonal employee in an
amount not to exceed $7,500 as related to the approved Parking Step Project.

BACKGROUND:

PRIOR ACTION:

FUNDING:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:

PRESENTATION:

The project has been approved. The construction contract has
been awarded, and the engineering service fees have been
approved. The action item at the August 12, 2016 meeting
recommended authorization of the use of a seasonal employee
to perform project inspection fees, but the resolution itself did
not contain the wording, nor did it address the engineering
construction administration aspect of the project.

Board approved the FY17 Capital Budget that contained a
$700,000 construction project for the “Rehab North and South
Ingress/Egress from the Parking.” Resolution 2016-10 passed
at the August 12, 2016 meeting that authorized the award of
the construction contract and the engineering service fees for
the Step Replacement Project.

State: $ 560,000
Local: $ 140.000
Total: $ 700.000

This project will be funded from State Entitlements (80%) and
Airport Funds (20%).N/A. No new financial impact. Capital Project
approved in entirety.

#1 — Work Order with Talbert & Bright — Stair Replacement for
Long Term Parking Lot — Construction Phase Services.

None



' SCOPE OF SERVICES

Project Title: Stair Replacement for Long Term Parking Lot —
Construction Phase Services

Project Location:  Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Project Sponsor:  Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
TBI Project No.:  2215-1603
Date: August 8, 2016

Description:

This scope is for the construction administration phase for the replacement of the stairs between
the existing long term parking lot and the terminal building designed and bid as part of TBI

Project No. 2215-1502.

Talbert & Bright will provide construction administrative services for the project as outlined
below.

Services:

A) Preliminary (Phase 01) includes project scoping and start up services. This shall also
include seeking proposals for subconsultant services, contract preparation and project set up

coordination.

B) Construction Administration (Phase 06) will include on-site and interoffice coordination
with the contractor for the duration of the 90 calendar day construction project, plan
interpretation to ensure proper installation and construction, and coordination with sub-
consultants for geotechnical and architectural services. Also included is the review of
material submittals, review of geotechnical testing reports for earthwork, drainage and
concrete items, the processing of contractor pay requests, the preparation of record drawings,
and project closeout activities.

C) Subconsultant Services will be procured for this project. The services to be subcontracted
include:

¢ Acceptance Testing (Phase 71) will include compaction and density/strength testing to
ensure the foundation/embankment, stone and concrete materials are installed per the
contract specifications. The Geotechnical subconsultant will perform all required for
acceptance testing,

» Architectural Services (Phase 72) will include attendance at pre-construction meeting,
material submittal review, answering contractor’s questions, 2 site visits throughout
construction, and attendance at final inspection.

D) Project Closeout includes the administrative portion of closing the project

Talbert & Bright Page 1 of 2

2215-1603 Stair Replaciment Long Term PLot - Scope



SCOPE OF SERVICES

E) Invoicing will be completed based on estimated percentage complete for Fixed Fee phases
and time spent/costs incurred for Time & Expense phases. See Attachment 1 for project fees.

F) Schedule: Project milestones are noted below:

Work Authorization Approval
Advertise for Bids
Construction Contracts
Pre-Construction Conference
Construction Notice to Proceed
Substantial Completion
Project Close Out

G) Attachments:

e Attachment 1 Manhour & Fee Estimate
o Attachment 2 Subconsultant Proposals
Talbert & Bright ) )

2215-1603 Stair Replacment Long Term PLot - Scope

August 2016
August 7, 2016
September 2016
September 2016
October 1, 2016
December 31, 2016
January 31, 2017

Page 2 of 2



MANHOUR ESTIMATE

Stair Replacement Long Term Parking Lot - Construction Phase Services
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.; 2215-1603

August 8, 2016

TALBERT & BRIGHT

PHASE DESCRIPTION PRIN PMGR PMA4 ENG3 TCHS ADM4

01 PRELIMINARY
Scope of Work 2 1 1 0 2 0
Subconsultant Coordination 1 2 1 0 2 0
Construction Contract Coordination 1 2 0 0 0 2
Pre-Construction Meeting (1) 0 8 0 8 2 2
Prepare and Distribute Meeting Minutes 0 1 0 2 2 4
SUBTOTAL 4 14 2 10 8 8

06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
Review General Construction Item Submittals 0 2 0 10 0 2
Submittal Response Notifications / Letiers 0 2 0 6 2 2
Review of Field Modification Proposals 1 2 0 4 0 0
Construction Observation Visits (6) 6 12 0 36 2 2
Construction Observation Reports (6) 0 3 0 6 2 12
Review Contractor Daily Reports 0 10 0 30 0 2
Construction Correspondence 1 2 4 1] 2 6
Calls/Coordination with Owner and Contractor 2 8 2 20 4 4
Contractor Pay Requests (3) 0 3 12 10 0 3
Coordination with Geotechnical Sub 0 2 0 4 2 0
Review Geotechnical Testing Reports 0 2 0 4 0 0
Local and Owner Coordination 0 8 8 12 2 * 0
Final Inspection (1) 8 8 0 0 ¢ 0
Punchlist Inspection (1) 0 6 0 0 0 0
Record Drawings 0 2 0 8 12 0
SUBTOTAL 18 72 26 160 28 33

File; 2215-1603 Siair Replavment Long Term PLot - MH

Sheet: MANHOUR| Attachment 1-(



FEE ESTIMATE

Stair Replacement Long Term Parking Lot - Construction Phase Services

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
TBI Project No.: 2215-1603
August 8, 2016

PHASE DESCRIPTION

01 PRELIMINARY

DIRECT LABOR
Principal PRIN
Project Manager PMGR
PM Asgsistant PMA4
Engineer Il ENG3
Technician V TCHS5
Adminstrative ADM4
SUBTOTAL

01 PRELIMINARY
DIRECT EXPENSE
Travel Ml
Copying EA
Repreduction EA
Internet/Phone/Fax MO
Shipping/Postage MO
Misc MO
SUBTOTAL

06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
DIRECT LABOR
Principal PRIN
Project Manager PMGR
PM Assistant PMA4
Engineer OI ENG3
Technician V TCHS
Adminstrative ADM4
SUBTOTAL

06 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
DIRECT EXPENSE
Travel MI
Copying EA
Reproduction EA
Internet/Phone/Fax MO
Shipping/Postage MO
Misc MO
SUBTOTAL

File: 2215-1603 Stair Replacment Long Term PLot - MH
Sheet: FEE!

RATE

“ O o5 B N oo

184.00
172,00
135.00
103.00
98.00
68.00

RATE

2P Be

0.54
0.25
3.00
50.00
50.00
50.00

RATE

2 2 o2 B0 P o

184.00
172,00
135.60
103.00
98.00
68.00

RATE

3 P N LB

Aftachment 1-2

0.54
0.25
3.00
50.00
50.00
50.00

TALBERT & BRIGHT

MANHOURS AMOUNT

4
14
2
10
8
8

UNITS
200
5,000
100

MANHOURS
18
72
26
160
28
33

1,600
2,500
100

Wies 00 0 2 5 o 0|2 o0 o8 BA o e

6D 0 B oo o

736.00
2,408.00
270.00
1,030.00
784.00
544.00

5,772.00

AMOUNT
108.00
1,250.00
300.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

1,958.00

AMOUNT
3,312.00
12,384.00
3,510,00
16,480.00
2,744.00
2,244,00

40,674.00

AMOUNT
864.00
625.00
300.00
200.00
200.00
200.00

2,389.00



TALBERT & BRIGHT

FEE ESTIMATE - SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES
Stair Replacement Long Term Parking Lot - Construction Phase Services

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.: 2215-1603

August 8, 2016
PHASE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
71 Acceptence Testing $  1,930.00
72 Architectural $ 10,806.00
s 12,736.00

SUBTOTAL

Fille: 2215-1603 Stair Replacment Long Term PLot - MH

Sheet: SUBS Attachment 1-3



TALBERT & BRIGHT

PROFESSIONAL FEE SUMMARY
Stair Replacement Long Term Parking Lot - Construction Phase Services

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

TBI Project No.: 2215-1603

August 8, 2016
PHASE DESCRIPTION TYPE OF SERVICE AMOUNT
01 Preliminary DIRECT LABOR $ 5,772.00
01 Preliminary DIRECT EXPENSE $ 1,958.00
FIXED FEE TOTAL 5 7,730.00
PHASE DESCRIPTION TYPE OF SERVICE
AMOUNT
06 Construction Administration DIRECT LABOR H 40,674.00
06 Construction Administration DIRECT EXPENSE $ 2,389.00
71 Acceptance Testing SUBCONTRACTED SERVICE $ 1,930.00
72 Architectural ) SUBCONTRACTED SERVICE 3 10,806.00
TIME & EXPENSE TOTAL b 55,799.00
TOTAL PROJECT 3 63,529.00

File; 2215-1603 Stair Replacment Long Term PLoi - MH
Sheset: SUMMARY Attachment 1.4



ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC “Setting the Standard for Service”

éh Geotechnical * Construction Materials + Environmerital « Facilities

Mr. Christopher Jaeger, P.E.
Talbert & Bright

10106 Krause Road
Chesterfield, VA 23832

August B, 2016

ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP

Reference:  Proposal for QA Materials Testing Services and Special Inspections
CHO Stairway Replacement for Long Term Parking
Charlottesville, Virginia

Dear Mr. Jaeger,

As requested, ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC (ECS) is pleased to present the following estimated cost
proposal for providing materials and construction QA observation testing for the stair
replacement project connecting the long term parking lot with the airport terminal at the CHO

Airport in Albemarie County, Virginia.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

We understand that the project consists of the construction of new concrete stairways on the
western slope along the long term parking lot. Additionally, new sections of concrete sidewalks

will be installed and electrical conduit placed.

The anticipated scope of services for this project Is outlined in Appendix | of this proposal. It is
expected that our services will be required to perform compaction testing on subgrade prior to
stone placement for concrete stairs and sidewalk and concrete testing and sampling.

Woe have prepared this proposal using Plan Sheet § prepared by Talbert & Bright dated July 25,
2016 and conversations with your office. A consfruction schedule was not available at the time
this proposal was prepared. However, we understand the project is scheduled fo start on
October 1, 2018 and last for 90 calendar days. For estimating purposes, we have assumed a
techniclan on-site for part time as needed testing for the duration of the project. We have
assumed two (2) days with a nuclear gauge for compaction testing and five (6) concrete polrs
that will have four (4) compressive strength cylinders cast for each concrete pour.

4004 Hunterstand Count, Sulte 102, Charoltesvllle, Virginia 22011 « T: 434-973-3232 * F: 434-073-3238 + www.ecslimlted.com
EGS Caplol Servioes, PLLC + EGS Caroles, LLP » ECS Genlral, PLLG « ECS Florida, LLG « ECS Mid-Allnc, LLG « ECS Midweat, LLG + ECS Southeast, LLC » ECS Teras, LLP



ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 2016

ELECTRONIC REPORTING AND NON-COMPLIANCE ITEMS

In order to ensure the accuracy of data reporting, ECS will utilize advanced communications
and information technology to reduce the time from actual field reporting to the distribution of an
approved report. During each day of construction activities, ECS field technicians electronically
enter test data into ETHEL (ECS Technician Handheld Electronic Logbook) while in the field.
The test data is then transmitted to the branch office via wireless technology. The field report is
completed by faxing the sketch or other attachments (directly from the site where available) and
the completed report is entered into our database and released into FRED (Field Report

Electronic Distribution).

Once in FRED, the electronic copy of the field report is reviewed by first the Project and then the
Principal Engineer. Upon final review, electronic signatures and a seal (as appropriate) are -
applied to the report. The report is then printed, mailed, faxed or emailed to those on the
distribution list and an electronic copy is archived on our servers for rapid refrieval. This system
makes it possible to provide all project reports on a CD-ROM at the end of the project. The
implementation of FRED has significantly improved efficlency In the review and approval
process of reports through the office, while allowing managers to efficiently monitor progress of
the project. Additionally, ECS facllitates daily communication between field personne! and
management staff and regular site visits to ensure project awareness and reporting accuracy.

We are generally able to submit solls laboratory results within 48 hours of testing, and concrete
laboratory festing within 24 hours. Our dally field reports usually can be sent within 24 to 36
hours of the performance date. If deficiencies or non-compliance in procedures or materials are
recognized in the field, the general contractor will be verbally notified as soon as possible so
that the problem may be resolved prior to the performance of additional work. Deficient
laboratory results are reported by facsimile or email to the client, structural engineer, and
general contractor by the Project Engineer. Copies of reports will be forwarded to each party
designated by the client, at no extra charge, as part of our service.

QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

ECS is a group of affiliated geotechnical, environmental, and construction materials engineering
firns headquartered in Chantilly, Virginia with 45 offices across the Eastern United States.
Since the start in 1988, we have eamed a solid reputation for providing thorough, cost-
conscious, and competitively-priced engineering analysis and construction materials testing and

special inspection services,

ECS employs over 1200 personnel, with over 400 in the Commonwealth of Virginia. ECS is an
employee owned firm with the primary owners being geotechnical engineers. ECS is fully
committed to providing high quality and innovative engineering services.

ECS MID ATLANTIC, __LLC

Ko EdT At

S8 Q1 E H A (17




{

ECS Proposal No. 28:1633-CP August 8, 2016

ECS has performed numerous geotechnical engineering and special inspection services for
large commercial, residential, industrial and governmental projécts throughout the state. Our
knowledge of the geologic conditions and construction practices in the area, and our practical
approach to solving design and construction problems, have earned ECS a reputation as a

leader in our fields of expertise.

ACCREDITATIONS

L]

Our (aboratories participate in proficiency sample testing programs for soils, concrete, and
masonry which are administered by the American Assoclation of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTQ), Construction Materials Engineering Council (CMEC),
Materials Reference Laboratory (AMRL) and the Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory
(CCRL). These external agencies aiso perform regular on-site assessments for our solls and
concrete laboratories. The on-site assessments, as well as our internal quality assurance
program, have led to accreditation by AASHTO and CMEC.

TECHNICIAN CERTIFICATIONS

In order to meet the requirements of local Special Inspections programs, ECS has developed in
house training programs that produce cerlified technicians at all levels, ECS Mid-Atiantic
currently has staff holding the following certifications and regisirations avalilable for Special

Inspection projects:

ACI Level | Concrete Inspector
WACEL Level | Concrete Inspector

WACEL Level Il Concrete Inspector

WACEL Structural Masonry Inspector

WACEL Level [ Salls Inspector

WACEL Level il Soils Inspector

VDOT Solls, Aggregate & Asphalt

WACEL Foundation Technician

WACEL Structural Steel Inspector

WACEL Structural Steel Technician

FACE Company Certifled Floor Fiatness

AISC Certified Welding Inspector

Registered Professional Engineers, Geologists and Soil Scientists

1

This unprecedented depth in certifled technical staff makes ECS well equipped to provide
quality testing and inspection services.

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC

P OTETMIGAY - RETHROL




ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 2016

UNIT RATE SCHEDULE

All services provided for this project will be billed in accordance with the unit rate schedule
provided in Appendix [l of this proposal. It is our belief that all required services have been

included In our unit, price list.

The services will be rendered portal to portal from our office in Charlottesville, Virginia. Our unit
rates are based on an 8 hour workday, Monday through Friday. Overtime in excess of 8 hours
per day, or outside normal business hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. or on weekends and
holidays will be involced at a rate of 1.5 times the normal hourly rate. Scheduling should occur
prior to 3:00 p.m. on the day before setvices are required.

Because our services are largely provided on an on-call basis, we cannot accept any
responsibility for failing to observe and test a specific area if proper notification has not been
provided. Normally, the contractor is responsible for coordinating these services. The services
provided by ECS in no way relieve the contractor of his responsibility to perform his work in
accordance with the approved plans anc specifications.

TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION

The estimated cost to provide materials testing and construction engineering services as
described in our scope of services is $1,930.00. This estimated cost proposal is the product of
careful consideration of information available to us during preparation of this proposal.

Any and gll deviations from the estimated durations are not included in our estimated cost and
will be considered as an addition to our budget estimate. Additional site visits for the specific
task of retesting failed tests are also not included in the estimated cost. The fotal estimated cost

for this project is outlined in Appendix Il

BILLING AND CONTRACT CONDITIONS

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis and will provide a week by week breakdown of billing
units, unless modified by request of the client. They are normally processed on or around the
10th of each month and represent costs incurred during the previous month. These invoices will
also display a monthly cumulative summary of project costs to date. This monthly summary will
serve as a means of monitoring job expenses as they relate to job progress. We request that

payment be rendered within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.

HYTRBCH 0N Mal £4 g TA

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC




ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 201&

SUMMARY AND ACCEPTANCE

Our insurance carrier requires that we receive written authorization prior to initiation of work,
and a signed contract prior to the release of any work product. This letter is the agreement for
our services. Your acceptance of thls proposal may be indicated by signing and returning the
enclosed copy to us. We are pleased to have this opportunity to offer our services and look

forward to working with you on the project.
Respectfully,

ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC

g
I B At
teven J. Crouch, C.P. G B. Scott Gresham, P:E.

Environmental Geologist Vice President
Charlottesville Branch Manager

Attachments:  Appendix | - Scope of Services
Appendix Il - Project Unit Rates

Appendix llI - Proposal Acceptance

ECS MID ATLANT C LLC

GEDIEEHMHIE s CONITHUC LG (%3 E PR AR R AF TS T B B8 FRECHLITIE S




ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 2016

APPENDIX | - SCOPE OF SERVICES

I Earthwork/Foundations:

1. Perform appropriate laboratory testing on materials proposed for use as fill,
backfill, and paving subgrade in accordance with project speclfications. Testing

may include:

a. Grain Size Distribution, ASTM D-422
b. Liquid and Plastic (Atterberg) Limits, D-4318
c. Proctor Moisture Density Relationships ASTM D-698 OR Proctor Moisture

Density Relationships ASTM D-1557 OR VTM-1
d. Additional testing as specified.

2. Monitor excavation operations to verify removal of unsuitable materials including
trash, debris, frozen soil, problem clays or stones with a maximum dimension

greater than 6 Inches.

3. Observe conditions at bottom of excavations prior to foundation preparation,
including visual observation and other testing of subgrades; note seepage of water
and suggest and observe corrective measures at problem areas.

4, Observe placement of fill and backfill (including backfill in utility trenches) to verify
compliance with project requirements. Perform in-place density tests as required
by project specifications, and verify that each lift is properly placed and compacted
prior to placement of additional fil.

5. Document that dimensions of foundation elements and report compliance with
design specifications and approved drawings.

6. Where deficiencles are noted during fill or backfill placement, suggest and observe
remedial actions, including reworking and recompacting of materials.

7. Provide documentation of daily events in the field and notify the appropriate
persons immediately upon recognition of deficiencies.

[ Cast-In-Place Concrete:

1. Test and report concrete for compliance with local bullding codes, generally
accepted construction practices, and speclfic project requirements.

2. Observe placement of reinforcing steel and document proper size, grade, spacing
cover, cleanliness, length, location and type of splices, and report compliance with
project plans and specifications.

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC

Coass t BECnd BATERIALG - FMV IR




ECS Proposal No. 28:1633-CP " August 8, 2016

3. Confirm that the contractor has provided proper storage and curing facilities for the
first 24 hours after casting of cylinders.

4, Visually observe formwork, shoring and reshoring to document compliance with
Contract Documents and sound construction practices.

5. Observe placement of concrete and document procedures with regard to forming,
vibration, and curing.

6. Provide & supply of standard cylinder molds at the site.

7. Sample concrete at the frequency stated in the project specifications and perform

the following tests and functions:

a. Confirm mix design

b. Slump

¢. Air Content

d. Temperature

e. Batch-to-placement time
f. Cast test cylinders

Sampling, testing, and curing of specimens in the fleld shall be performed in
accordance with applicable ASTM guidelines and project requirements. Additional
tests shall be performed as needed in the event deficiencies are encountered.

Compliance with extreme weather procedures will also be documented.

8, Cure and test compressive strength of concrete cylinders in the laboratory as
directed by the project specifications and in accordance with ASTM C-31/39.

HY IR sam s b A

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC




ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 2016

APPENDIX Il - PROJECT UNIT RATES

ran “Roits- - | - MidtGost [ T Eatb: Total -2

] 6 HR $34.00 $204.00

2 Nuclear Gauge Rental 2iipe) @ 1 ea 2 EA $10.00 $20.00
3 Standard Proctor (ASTM D698) 1 EA $85.00 $86.00
4 Sleve Analysis 1 EA $60.00 $60.00
5 Mileage 2 trip(s) & 3 miles 6 M $0.60 $3.60
Subtotal Earthwork Preparation: $372,60

B COMGIEB o1 oot i o rem e oo s o 1o Quanty . |- -Usiis. - | - Oalt Cost .|, .-Est. Tatdl .
1 Goncrete Technician 6 tip(s) @ 4 hou 20 HR ~$34.00 $580.00
2 Concrete Cylinders 20 EA $10.00 $200.00
3 Cylinder Pick Up When Not Onsite 5 TRIP $36.00 $35.00
4 Milesge 5 tips) @ 3 miles 15 M $0.60 $8.00/
Subtotal Asphalt : $024.00

i ot | i i

.00 $297.50

2 Principal Report Review £130.00 $260.00
3 Clericat $38.00 $72.00
Subtotal Engineering & Administration: $826.50

ESTIMATED TOTAL: $1,926.10

NOTES:
a. The abave nstimate assumes part tims, as-scheduled, single-technician support.

b. Additional site vislts based on Incomplete work, cancellations and re-Inspections will be invoiced at
unit rates shown above. The services described above will be rendered portal-to-portal from our office In
Chariottesville, Virginla. Unit ratez are based on a normal 8 hour work day, Monday through Friday,

between normal business hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

¢. Contractor scheduling to support the next day’s construction activities should be made via telephone
through the Charlottesville office prior to 3:00 p.m.

= AN LS - A

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC




ECS Proposal No. 28:1533-CP August 8, 2016

PROJECT UNIT RATES
FIELD SERVICES
DESCRIPTION UNIT RATE
Engineering Techniclan (Solls, Concrete, Masonry, & Asphalt) $34.00 / hour
Senlor Techniclan $40.00 / hour
Structural Steel Inspector $75.00 / hour
Mileage (portal to portal) $0.60 / mile
ENGINEERING/ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
DESCRIPTION UNIT RATE
Secretary $36.00 / hour
Project Manager $85.00 / hour
Principal Englneer, P.E. $130.00 / hour
LABORATORY and RELATED SERVICES
DESCRIPTION UNIT RATE
Concrete Compression Test {ASTM C39) $10.00 / each
Compression Test, 2“ Grout or Mortar Cubes $12.00 / each
Grout Prism Test - $14.00 / each
Nuclear Gauge Rental $10.00 / day
Standard Proctor {ASTM D698) $85.00 / each
Atterberg Limits Testing {ASTM D4318) $60.00 / each
Full Gradation, sofls (ASTM D1140) $60.00 / each
Full Gradation, aggregates (ASTM D422) $60.00 / each
-#200 Wash (ASTM D1140) $50.00 / each
Specific Gravity (ASTM D854) $40.00 / each

ECS MID-ATLANTIC, LLC

PTECHELC rhR TR G YD c ENVIRORMAEND




[RE] Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Landside Stair Replacement Construction Phase

[TO:] Jeff Tarkington
Talbert & Bright, Inc.

[DATE]  August 08,2016

2011-02



PRICE STUDIOS Is pleased to present the following
proposal fo Talbert & Bright, Inc. for professional
architectural and engineeting services for a proposed stair
reconstruction project at Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
in Charlottesville, Virginia. This proposal includes our
efforts for basic construction administration services for the
stair reconstruction project being bid in August 2016,

This proposal does not include civil engineering,
landscape architecture, geotechnical services engineering,
surveying, landscape design &/or procurement services.

Please let us know if you need any clarifications regarding

the described scope of services or proposed fees. We
look forward to working with you on this exciting project
and in creating something speclal for Charlotiesville-

Albemarte Airport.

Regards,

J. Sydnor Tetterfon, AlA, LEED AP

Principal

CHO Stair Replacement CA Phase Proposal - Price Studios #2011-02
Page 2



PROJECT TEAM

PRICE STUDIOS proposes to provide archifectural and engineering
construction phase services for the referenced project. To complete our
team, we intend to work with the following consultants to provide the
services outlined in this proposal:

o Struclural Engineering Draper Aden

NOTE: Landscape Design, detailed cost estimating + Fumiture selection &for
procurement services may be provided as an addlfional service based on scope
reqiirements.

The following consultants or services are assumed to be contracted to the
Client or Owner with their work coordinated with PRICE STUDIOS:

= Geotechnical or Environmental Studies (If reporis are required and

not on file)
Special Inspections and Construction Phase Testing

Signage & Wayfinding Design
Surveying

PROJECT SCOPE

The project scope generally includes exterior, land side stair replacement
to be located at the Charlottesville-Albermarle Airport in Charlottesville,

Virginia.

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE
The scope of services is as follows:
A. Review and respond to Requests for Information (RFI's)
Review and process construction submittals
Attend pre-construction meeting.

Provide two periodic site visits.

m o o w

Attend a final site meeting and review the coniractor’s punch fist.

PROPOSED FEES

Basic ABE Services - Reference fee breakdown in Exhibit A.

CHO Stair Replacement CA Phase Proposal - Price Studios #2011-02
Page 3



Qur fee for the scope of work described above is scheduled to be billed
at the end of each month or based on the completion of the current
phase of work — NET 30. Should the project terminate before completion
of services listed, PRICE STUDIOS shall be compensated for the work
completed fo date, regardiess of the quantity of payments made to that

point.
Additional services, if required, can be billed on a Time and Materials

Basis according fo cument hourly rate schedules or based as an
approved lump sum fee,

The structural engineer's scope of work s limited to RFI and submittal
reviews. Site visits will be handled as an additional service.

All expenses have been estimated & included in the proposed lump sum;
these include reproduction costs, delivery charges and any travel costs.
Mileage was calculated based on the current Federal Rate.

It is assumed that the client or sponsor will handle any requisite printing
and reproduction costs oufside of Price Studio’s intemal reproduction

needs.
See the enclosed Exhibit A for a break-down of the proposed fee.

Talbert & Bright, inc. Sydnor Tetterton, AlA
Principal

CHO Stair Replacament CA Phase Proposal - Price Studios #2011-02
Page 4



EXHIBIT A
Estimated Work hours

Client: Talbert & Bright, Inc.
Owner: Charlottesville-Albermarle Airport

Charlottesville-Albermarle Airpart (CHO)
Charlottesville, Virginia

Stair Replacement Project - Construction Phase
Price Studios Project No. 2011-02

Date: August 2016

PRIN PM/RP DP  PP/PA
Description No. (hr) (hr) (hr) (hr)
CONSTRUCTION PHASE
questions (RFI's) 2 12 4 2
submittals 2 8 4 2
Pre-construction Meeting 1 0 8 0 0
Site Vislt #1 1 0 6 0 0
Site Visit #2 1 0 6 0 0
Final Site Visit (punch list) 1 0 8 0 0
Subtotal. 4 4 48 8 4

10f3



EXHIBIT A
Summary of Fess

Client Talbert & Bright, Inc.
Owner: Charlottesville-Albermarle Alrport

Charloftesville-Afbermarie Airport (CHO)

Charlottesville, Virginia
Stalr Replacement Project - Construction Phase

Price Studlos Project No. 2011-02

Date: August 2018

Est Houry Est
Description Hrs  Rate Cost Totals
Work Hour Cost_(wiOverhaad)
Baslc Sevices
Principal 4 §210 840
Pro] Mar/Reglstarad Prof 48 $155 7440
Dealgn Professional 8 §135 1,080 1
Proj Production/Admin 4 $BS 340
Subiotal: 84 $8,700 $9,700

Lump Sum Fee! $9,700

20f3




EXHIBIT A

Client: Talbert & Bright, Inc.

Owner: Charotiesville-Albermaria Alrport
Cherlotteaville-Albermarie Alrport (CHO}
Charlottasville, Virginia

Stalr Replacement Project - Construction Phase
Price Studlos Project No, 2011-02

Date: August 2016

Est
Dascription Cost Tolals
Reimbursable Expenses
Travel & Miscallaneous 0 348
Printing: in-house only 100
food: (4) trips x (1) staff 4 18 60 X
Structural Engineer 600
Estimate Cost & Fixed Fes $1,108 $1,108
Budget Amount: $1,106 |
SUMMARY OF DESIGN SERVICES FEES
EXHIBIT A
Client: Talbert & Brght, Inc.
Owner: Charlottesville-Albermaria Alrport
Chartotiesville-Albarmarle Alrport (CHO)
Charlotlesville, Virginia
Price Studios Project No. 2011-02
[FEE: CA Tee * Reimbursakie Expenses T 310,806]

30f3



TALBERT & BRIGHT

WORK AUTHORIZATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Charlottesville-Albemarie Airport
Stair Replacement for Long Term Parking Lot
Construction Phase Services

Work Authorization No.: 16-03
August 8, 2016
TB! Project No.: 2215-1603

It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of

our Contract for Professional Services.

Description of Work Authorization: Talbert & Bright shall provide Professional Services
as described in the attached Scope of Services.

Time Schedule: The schedule for the above referenced work shall be completed per

the attached Scope of Services.

Cost of Services: The method of billing and payment for Professional Services shall be
in accordance with the attached Scope of Services.

Approved:
22D A - z’ 4 =
A, () L ; o
For:  Charlottesvilie-Albemarie For: gt & y(ght

Airport Authority
Title: £ by e Ui -

Title: ice President

Date: © | { | 1S PV Date: September 6, 2016

> ¥ i o= 7 /ﬂ j

‘ YRS LY, >H# 3 / M
Witness: ) Withees: —

2AS1603 Wa Cevar.does



November, 2016

1. Executive Director’s Update

a. Parking Feasibility Update/Rental Car Agreement Update — Staff is working with the
consultant to wrap up the preliminary parking feasibility study. When a decision is made
about whether or not to proceed with the construction of a parking deck that will also house
the rental car “ready and return” lot, then an RFP for rental car services will be pursued.

b. Personnel Update — The recruitment/interview process for the vacant marketing assistant
position is underway. Last month, one of the maintenance techs resigned to take a position at
an airport in northern Virginia.

c. Construction Update —

a. Runway 3-21Rehabilitation Construction Project — The FAA was able to assist with
the funding of both the rehabilitation of the runway and taxiway system. The
contractor will be surveying the project and working with the engineers to perform
the preliminary work on the project.

b. Triturator Project — The project is being wrapped up and training is being provided to
the tenants.

c. Step Rehabilitation Project — The southernmost set of steps have been removed and
work is underway on the two remaining sets.

d. Marketing and Air Service Update — To be provided



